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SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON FOOD AND DRUGS
Chairman: Mr. Harry Harley

Vice-Chairman: Mr. Rodger Mitchell

and Messrs.
Armstrong Enns Pennell
Asselin (Richmond- Fairweather Pilon

Wolfe) Francis Roxburgh

Baldwin Gauthier Rynard
Basford Howe (Hamilton South) Valade
Cashin Nesbitt Whelan
Casselman (Mrs.) Orlikow Willoughby—24
Cété (Longueuil) Patterson

(Quorum 13)

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.




ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Fripay, July 26, 1963

Resolved,—That a Special Committee be appointed to consider and report
on (a) the hazards of food contamination from insecticides, pesticides, and
other noxious substances; and (b) the safety and cost of drugs; that the
Committee consist of 24 members to be designated later by the House; that the
Committee be empowered to send for persons, papers, records, and to report
from time to time and to print such papers and evidence from day to day as
may be deemed advisable; and that the provisions of Standing Orders 66 and
67 be suspended in relation thereto.

Tuespay, July 30, 1963

Ordered,—That the Special Committee on Drugs and Pesticides, appointed
on July 26, 1963, be composed of Messrs. Armstrong, Asselin (Richmond-Wolfe),
Baldwin, Basford, Cashin, Casselman (Mrs.), C6té (Longueuil), Enns, Fair-
weather, Francis, Gauthier, Harley, Howe (Hamilton South), Mitchell, Nesbitt,
Orlikow, Patterson, Pennell, Pilon, Roxburgh, Rynard, Valade, Whelan, and
Willoughby.

WEDNESDAY, July 31, 1963

Ordered,—That the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of the Special
Committee on Food and Drugs appointed at the last session, together with all
papers and records laid before it, be referred to the Special Committee on
Food and Drugs appointed at this session.

Attest.

Léon-J. Raymond
The Clerk of the House

29484-3—1}



The Special Committee on Food and Drugs has the honour to present its
FIRST REPORT

Your Committee recommends that it be empowered to sit while the House
is sitting.

Respectfully submitted,

Harry Harley,
Chairman.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, August 1, 1963
(1)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met today at 2:10 p.m. for
organization purposes.

Members present:—Messrs. Armstrong, Baldwin, Basford, Cashin, Coté
(Longueuil), Fairweather, Francis, Harley, Mitchell, Orlikow, Pilon, Roxburgh,
Rynard, Whelan, Willoughby—(15).

The Clerk of the Committee attending and having called for nominations,
Mr. Roxburgh moved, seconded by Mr. Basford, that Mr. Harley be elected
Chairman of the Committee.

There being no other nominations, Mr. Fairweather moved that nominations
close.

- Mr. Harley was declared duly elected Chairman. He thanked the members
for the honour conferred upon him and assured the Committee that he will do
his utmost to deserve the confidence placed on him. He paid tribute to the
Chairman of the Food and Drugs Committee of the last Parliament, Mr.
McDonald, who fulfilled his functions in the most able manner.

On motion of Mr. Whelan, seconded by Mr. Cashin,

Resolved, (unanimously)—That Mr. Mitchell be elected Vice-Chairman.

The Clerk read the Orders of Reference.

Standing Order 67 having been suspended by the House, Mr. Mitchell
moved, seconded by Mr. Rynard,

Resolved,—That the quorum of the Committee be set at 13 members.

On motion of Mr. Rynard, seconded by Mr. Fairweather,

Resolved,—That a subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure comprised of
the Chairman and 6 members to be named by him, be appointed.

Pursuant to its Order of Reference, giving the Committee power to print
from day to day its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence, it was agreed to
refer to the subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure the question of deciding
on the number of copies to be printed.

The Evidence taken at the last Parliament having been referred to the
Committee, on motion of Mr. Basford, seconded by Mr. Armstrong,

Resolved,—That the Committee seek permission to sit while the House is
evidence of the Special Committee on Food and Drugs appointed last session
together with all papers and records laid before it be reprinted as an appendix
to this day’s proceedings.

On motion of Mr. Basford, seconded by Mr. C6té,

Resolved,—That the Committee seek permission to sit while the House is
sitting.



Before adjournment, Mr. Baldwin suggested that the members of the
Committee be supplied with a copy of a booklet entitled “Use of Pesticides”,
a Report of the United States President’s Science Advisory Committee. The
Clerk was instructed to obtain copies for the use of the Members.

At 2:30 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Gabrielle Savard
Clerk of the Committee




APPENDIX

REPRINT OF

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE

Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4

OF THE

" SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON FOOD AND DRUGS

(First Session—Twenty-fifth Parliament)

(1962-1963)

(Referred by the House on July 31, 1963 and reprinted

as authorized by the Committee)



(Membership 1962-1963)

SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON FOOD AND DRUGS
Chairman: Mr. R. M. T. McDonald
Vice-Chairman: Mr. Georges Valade

and Messrs.
Baldwin Harley Mitchell
Enns Horner (Jasper-Edson) Nicholson
Fairweather Marcoux Orlikow
Haidasz Martin (Essex East) Patterson

Rynard—15
(Quorum 8)

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.




ORDERS OF REFERENCE

FripaY, December 7, 1962.

Resolved,—That a Special Committee be appointed to consider and report
upon (a) the law and practices relating to the control of the introduction,
marketing and use of drugs; and (b) the dangers arising from contamination
of food by the use of chemicals to kill weeds, insects and other pests;

That the Committee consist of 15 Members to be designated by the House;

That the Committee be empowered to send for persons and papers and to
report from time to time;

That the Committee be empowered to sit during the sittings of the House;

That the Committee have power to print such papers and evidence from
day to day as may be deemed advisable; and

That Standing Order 66 be suspended in relation thereto.

MonpAay, December 17, 1962.

Ordered,—That the Special Committee on Food and Drugs, appointed on
December 7, 1962, be composed of Messrs. Baldwin, Enns, Fairweather, Haidasz,
Harley, Horner (Jasper-Edson), Marcoux, Martin (Essex East), McDonald
(Hamilton South), Mitchell, Nicholson, Orlikow, Patterson, Rynard, and Valade.

Attest.

LEON-J. RAYMOND,
Clerk of the House.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, December 19, 1962.

(1)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met today at 2 p.m. for organi-
zation purposes.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Enns, Fairweather, Haidasz, Harley,
Martin (Essex East), McDonald (Hamilton South), Nicholson, Orlikow, Rynard,
and Valade—11.

The Clerk of the Committee attending and having called for nominations,
it was moved by Mr. Rynard, seconded by Mr. Fairweather, that Mr. McDonald
be elected Chairman of the Committee.

Mr. Valade moved, seconded by Mr. Haidasz, that Mr. Rynard be elected
Chairman.

And a discussion arising, Mr. Martin opposed the withdrawal of Mr.
Valade’s motion and requested a recorded vote. The Clerk, being bound by the
Rules for the election of the Speaker, stated that she proposed to put the first
motion first.

Whereupon Mr. Baldwin expressed the view, in which the Committee
concurred, that Dr. Rynard’s contribution would be more valuable as a member
than as Chairman of the Committee.

By consent, Mr. Valade withdrew his motion.

The first motion being put, Mr. McDonald was unanimously elected Chair-
man of the Committee.

Mr. McDonald took the Chair and thanked the Committee for the honour
conferred upon him.

On motion of Mr. Enns, seconded by Mr. Fairweather,

Resolved,—That Mr. Valade be elected Vice-Chairman of the Committee.

The Chairman then referred to the part of the Order of Reference giving
the Committee the powers to sit during the sittings of the House, and to print
such papers and evidence from day to day as may be deemed advisable.

On motion of Mr. Martin, seconded by Mr. Baldwin,

Resolved,—That a Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure comprised of
the Chairman and the Vice-Chairman and one representative from each of the
Opposition parties be appointed.

After discussion, it was agreed that the Committee set the number of
proceedings to be printed at a subsequent meeting.

At 2.25 p.m., on motion of Mr. Nicholson, the Committee adjourned to
the call of the Chair.



6 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, January 24, 1963.
(2)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9.30 a.m. this day. The
Chairman, Mr. R. M. T. McDonald, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Fairweather, Haidasz, Harley, Horner
(Jasper-Edson), McDonald (Hamilton South), Mitchell, Nicholson, Patterson,
Rynard, and Valade—11.

The Chairman observed the presence of a quorum. The Clerk of the Com-
mittee read the Orders of Reference.

The Chairman announced that, in accordance with the resolution adopted
at the first meeting, the following members had been chosen to act with him
and the Vice-Chairman on the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure,
namely: Dr. Haidasz, Mr. Orlikow, and Dr. Marcoux.

At a meeting of the Subcommittee the Chairman stated, it was decided
that the Chairman should make a general statement with regard to the terms
of reference and then proceed to consider the Agenda that was prepared for
the Committee.

Accordingly, the Chairman read his statement into the record including the
list of proposed witnesses as well as a schedule of meetings which the Com-
mittee approved tentatively.

It was agreed that notice be sent to all the suggested witnesses expressing
the desire of the Committee to call them at a later date.

After discussion, it was further agreed that the name of the Minister of
Forestry and his officials be added to the list and that the Chairman contact
the Department of Justice with a view to having a statement regarding the
jurisdiction of the Committee.

On motion of Mr. Valade, seconded by Mr. Horner,

Resolved,—That 750 copies in English and 750 copies in French of the
Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence be printed.

Agreed,—That the Committee seek permission of the House to sit in Mont-
real on Thursday, Friday and Saturday morning, February 14, 15 and 16 next.

At 11 o’clock, on motion of Mr. Baldwin, seconded by Mr. Mitchell, the
Committee adjourned until Tuesday, January 29, at 9.30 a.m.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.



PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, January 24, 1963.

The CHAIRMAN: We have a quorum. First of all, I would like again to thank
the members of the committee for electing me chairman of this committee.

We will commence by having the clerk of the committee read the complete
terms of reference so that we all know where we stand.

The CLERK OF THE COMMITTEE:
FripAY, December 7, 1962.

Resolved that a special committee be appointed to consider and
report upon (a) the law and practices relating to the control of the
introduction, marketing and use of drugs; and (b) the dangers arising
from contamination of food by the use of chemicals to kill weeds, insects
and other pests.

That the committee consist of 15 members to be designated by the
house;

That the committee be empowered to send for persons and papers
and to report from time to time;

That the committee be empowered to sit during the sittings of the
house;

That the committee have power to print such papers and evidence
from day to day as may be deemed advisable; and

That standing order 66 be suspended in relation thereto.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you. The subcommittee on agenda and procedures,
comprised of your chairman, vice-chairman, Mr. Valade, Dr. Haidasz, Mr.
Orlikow and Dr. Marcoux, met on Tuesday of this week at 11.45 a.m. to discuss
the over-all agenda that was prepared by your chairman, and we had a general
discussion on the terms of reference. At that time it was decided that the chair-
man should make a statement with regard to the terms of reference and then
proceed to go through the agenda that was prepared for your consideration.

I have several copies of remarks, if some members would like to have a
copy. Following this, we then can have a general discussion if the members of
the committee deem it to be in order.

The first statement I should like to make concerns the chairman’s views
related to the terms of reference. I think it probably should be looked at in
three ways: safety of drugs, safety of pesticides and the possibility of investi-
gation of prices.

As indicated in the terms of reference, I think the main purpose of this com-
mittee is to check into the responsibility of all people in the drug business in
Canada in regard to the safety of drugs and into the introduction and handling
of drugs and pesticides as well as the marketing of these drugs for public use.

I might say that the report of the special committee of the Royal College of
Physicians and Surgeons on drugs will be introduced into the house today and
this will enable the members of this committee to become well informed of this
special committee’s report. I am sure it will assist you in our future discussions.

As far as the price situation is concerned, I, as your chairman, want to be
fair about this. I think the Minister of National Health and Welfare has given
us certain powers. On December 17, 1962 at page 2242 of Hansard, he stated:

Mr. Speaker, in closing this debate I should like to point out that I
think it is probably up to the committee itself to determine the definition
of the word “marketing” in the resolution.

i)



8 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

If we do this in an orderly way—and I hope in a non-political way—we might
be of service to the people of this country.

I have had passed out copies of the agenda and, with your permission,
I would like to start with the drug situation in connection with safety aspects
and then go on to the pesticides and contamination of food, followed by the
price discussion at the end. In this way we will be able to proceed in an orderly
way.

The first section is the drug safety section which, I think, should be broken
down into subsections, as discussed by the subcommittee. The first section
would deal with the law and practices relating to the control of the introduc-
tion, marketing and use of drugs in Canada and this, no doubt should be bro-
ken down into a number of sections:

1. (a) The control of the introduction, marketing and use of drugs under
the Food and Drugs Act and the regulations; (b) preclinical testing of drugs
with reference to an evaluation of the safety of new drugs by means of tests
on animals; (c¢) existing practices in respect of the testing of drugs in humans
for the purpose of assessing safety and effectiveness; (d) a general appraisal
of the present day practices in respect of the preclinical and clinical testing
of drugs for marketing, and (e) existing practices in respect of the marketing
of drugs.

2. Report by the chairman of the special committee of the Royal College
of Physicians and Surgeons, under the direction of Dr. Brien. As indicated
before, this report will be tabled in the house today by the Minister of National
Health and Welfare and,

3. Report on existing legislation in various countries pertaining to the
testing and distribution of drugs.
I would like to go into detail in the drug section point by point.

2. (a) It is my feeling that the Minister of National Health and Welfare
Honourable J. Waldo Monteith, should make a statement pertaining to the
terms of reference and give an explanation of the government’s policy in this
regard.

2. (b) The director of the food and drug directorate should explain the
particular sections of the Food and Drugs Act and regulations which provide
him with the authority to control the introduction of drugs into Canada.

He should explain the administrative procedures which are followed
within the directorate to have a new drug released to the public for clinical
and general use.

The director should explain the limitations in the existing act and
regulations in respect of the control of both new and old drugs, which he
feels are lacking.

Differences in the regulations in the United States and Canada in the
handling of new drugs should be explained; for example, prescription drugs,
research, preclinical requirements, effectiveness data and advertising.

The director should explain any difficulty pertaining to personnel make-
up and so on, and perhaps mention any recruiting and understaffing problems.

2. (c) Pharmaceutical manufacturers should be asked to present the com-
mittee with a report on existing practices in respect of the preclinical testing
of drugs. They should be asked to outline the type of preclinical testing which
is carried out on various classes of drugs before the drugs go into clinical
trials and give an evaluation of the effectiveness of present testing procedures
in the prevention of serious side effects in humans during clinical trials, and
later when the drug is released for general use.



FOOD AND DRUGS 9

In their report, they should give a description of how they transmit their
information to the druggists and physicians in the country as a whole, with
particular reference to their advertising brochures.

In this connection I might mention three names:

Dr. Armand Frappier, Directeur. Institut de Microbiologie et
d’Hygiéne de I’Université de Montréal, Dr. J. Parker, Director, Research,
Chas. E. Frost and Co., Montreal, Dr. J. D. McColl, Director, Pharma-
cological Research, Frank W. Horner Limited.

There is another list of manufacturers and professional people that your chair-
man has at his disposal, which can be used to facilitate our investigation.

2. (d) Pharmaceutical manufacturers should provide the Committee with
a report on these practices in respect of the clinical trials which are carried
out in advance of the general release of new drugs. This report should cover
at least the following:

(i) Information on their selection of clinical investigators, for example,
what is their criteria of acceptability for the selection of qualified
investigators?

What part does the manufacturer’s representative play in actually
planning the clinical trial?

Are these trials carried out in hospitals?

What is the criteria of acceptability for a new drug?

(ii) Any specific recommendations concerning existing legislation on
new drugs on which they would like to comment pertaining partic-
ularly to the safety element.

There are two names for your consideration here, Dr. K. K. Ferguson,
Director, Connaught Laboratories, Toronto, Ontario and Dr. L. Smith, Medical
Director, Ayerst, McKenna and Harrison Limited, Montreal, Quebec.

The references are the same as I have read out for section 2 (c), pertain-
ing to the other witnesses that may be called.

2. (e) Any expert or experts in clinical medicine should be called to give
an appraisal of existing requirements respecting the preclinical and clinical
testing of drugs before their release for general use. He, or they, should
answer such questions relating to, for example, are we doing all that can be
done .1’n our preclinical and clinical testing of drugs to safeguard the public and
s0 on?

There are three gentlemen indicated here who are eminent in the field in
the United States. I have a list of Canadian people but it is very lengthy and
that is why I did not incorporate it in this statement. We have: Dr. J. T.
Litchfield, Director, Experimental Therapeutic Research Section, Lederle
Laboratories, New York, Dr. J. Holland, Medical Director, American Home
Products, New York and Dr. K. K. Chan, Director, Pharmacological Research,
Eli Lilly and Company, Indianapolis.

We have an extensive list of eminent doctors and professors in Canada
whom the committee may like to consider at a later date.

2. (f) Pharmaceutical manufacturers should be requested to present to
the committee the various methods which are used to promote the sale of
drugs in Canada. Such methods as advertising, labelling and detailing of drugs,
and qualifications of drug representatives in the field should be examined by
tl(xle_ cc;’x;unittee. Consideration of their quality control practices would be
advisable.

(i) Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association.
(ii) Canadian Pharmaceutical Association.




10 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

2. (g) It would appear to be advisable to hear from a general practitioner,
or practitioners, about the impact of all these various methods of drug promo-
tion on the practice of medicine and whether he or they would have any
comment to make on present-day practices in so far as they may effect the
safe administration of drugs.

A practicing physician or physicians appointed by the Canadian Medical
Association.

2. (h) The committee should investigate ways and means of informing
the public of the misuse of drugs in the home; for example, making sure that
drugs are out of the reach of children; cleaning out medicine cabinets regularly
and so on.

Mrs. A. F. W. Plumtre, President, Canadian Association of Consumers,
Ottawa.

Information officers of the Department of Health and Welfare should be
called.

3. The Chairman of the special committee of the Royal College of Physi-
cians and Surgeons should be called to present to the committee the recom-
mendations in that committee’s report. They should inform the committee the
reasons for the recommendations which have been made and be expected to
answer questions. They will probably require other members of the committee
to assist him in answering questions.

Terms of reference of this committee are:

To examine critically and objectively our present procedures for
dealing with new drugs, the requirements of the regulations, and any
other matters that, in the opinion of the committee, are relative to the
issue. I should point out that the purpose of the new drug regulations is
to ensure safety.

Dr. F. S. Brien, Chairman
Dr. E. A. Sellars and Dr. R. Dufresne.

4. In order for the committee to have a better idea of how the sale and
marketing of drugs are controlled in other countries, it would be advisable
to have someone appear before the committee and outline some of the regula-
tions which are in effect in various countries. The World Health Organization
has a unit which deals with standards for pharmaceuticals. The head of the
unit should be able to provide the committee with details on existing legisla-
tion in various countries and be able to give a limited appraisal of existing
legislation.

Mr. Paul Blanc, World Health Organization, Geneva, Switzerland.

The next section of the proposal is a list of professional people, profes-
sional associations and individuals that might be called. I do not have
the list of manufacturers because the list is as long as your arm and I think we
can trust the subcommittee to bring proper proposals before this committee in
respect of this aspect. If you like I will go through the list of witnesses that we
propose calling for your consideration in these terms and their qualifications or
shall I just take it as read?

I think perhaps I should go over them. They are: Dr. A. D. Kelly, General
Secretary, The Canadian Medical Association, 150 St. George Street, Toronto
5, Ontario; Mr. J. C. Turnbull, Secretary-Manager, The Canadian Pharmaceuti-
cal Association, 221 Victoria Street, Toronto, Ontario; Dr. E. W. Bensley, Sec-
retary, The Pharmacological Society of Canada, Montreal General Hospital,
1650 Cedar Avenue, Montreal, Quebec; Dr. John C. Laidlaw, President, The
Canadian Society for Clinical Investigation, 36 Hudson Drive, Toronto, Ontario;
Dr. W. W. Tidmarsh, Secretary, The Canadian Paediatric Society, 79 Percival
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Avenue, Montreal 28, Quebec; Dr. J. Wendell MacLeod, Secretary, Association
of Canadian Medical Colleges, 710 Albert Avenue, Saskatoon, Saskatchewan;
Dr. Don. W. Gullett, Secretary-Treasurer, The Canadian Dental Association,
234 St. George Street, Toronto, Ontario; Dr. L. P. E. Choquette, Executive-Sec-
retary, The Canadian Veterinary Medical Association, P.O. Box 416, Ottawa 2,
Ontario, and Dr. Georges Filteau, President, College of Pharmacists of Quebec,
1290 St. Denis Street, Montreal, Quebec.

Those are the professional associations that I have listed in the report.

Then we have a list of trade associations as follows: Mrs. A. F. W. Plumtre,
President, The Canadian Association of Consumers, 1245 Wellington Street,
Ottawa 2, Ontario; Mr. Stanley N. Condor, General Manager, The Canadian
Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association, 301-311 Royal Bank Building, 90
Sparks Street, Ottawa, Ontario.

I will have my French colleague read the last one.

Mr. VALADE: The last one on the list is: M. Jean-Marie Pepin, Secretaire,
1’Association des Fabricants du Quebec, de Produits Pharmaceutiques, C.P. 125,
Station Youville, Montreal 11, Quebec. That is the Secretary of the Association
of Quebec for the manufacturing of drugs.

The CHAIRMAN: I have next a list of the individuals proposed in respect of
this section which is as follows: Dean F. N. Hughes, The Faculty of Pharmacy,
University of Toronto, 46 Gerrard Street East, Toronto 2, Ontario; Docteur
Armand Frappier, Directeur, Institute de Microbiologie et d’Hygiene, de L’Uni-
versité de Montreal, 2900 Boulevard Du Mont-Royal, Montreal 26, P.Q.; Dr.
John F. McCreary, Dean, The Faculty of Medicine, University of British Colum-
bia, Vancouver, B.C.; Dr. K. J. R. Wightman, Professor of Medicine, University
of Toronto, 46 Gerrard Street East, Toronto 2, Ontario.

Dr. J. K. W. Ferguson, Connaught Medical Research Laboratories, Univer-
sity of Toronto, Toronto, Ontario; Dr. F. C. Fraser, Professor of Genetics, McGill
University, Montreal, Quebec; Dr. John O. Godden, Associate Editor of C.M.A.
Journal; Dr. Elizabeth Hillman, Head of Poison Centre of Montreal’s Children’s
Hospital, Montreal, Quebec; Dr. Rabinowitch, P.O. Box 216, Hanover, Ontario;
Dr. O. Brzeski, Sandoz Pharmacy Company, Montreal, Quebec; Dr. Hans Selye,
Montreal, Quebec; Professor William Boyd, Toronto, Ontario; Dr. J. G. Foulks,
University of British Columbia; Dr. E. E. Daniel, University of Alberta; R.
Christie, Professor of Medicine at McGill University, Montreal, P.Q.

Dr. Ford, Department of Medicine, University of British Columbia, Dr.
McNeil of Calgary, Dr. Roger Dufresne of the special committee of physicians
and surgeons, Dr. D. E. Cameron, Allan Memorial Institute of Montreal, Dr.
A. Hoffer, University of Saskatchewan, Dr. Tyhurst, University of British
Columbia.

That is the first section on drugs, and if you will turn to the end of your
report you will see a schedule of meetings that I have prepared for the con-
sideration of the committee. I think that before we get into pesticides, we
should go over this agenda so that we can consider safety as a whole.

The following is the schedule of meetings of the special committee on food
and drugs: January 24—this morning a general discussion of the report of the
chairman of the subcommittee was proposed.

January 29, that is next Tuesday, at 9:30 a.m. it is proposed that the
Hon. J. Waldo Monteith, Minister of National Health and Welfare give his
statement, followed by Dr. C. A. Morrell, director of the food and drug director-
ate, Ottawa, pertaining to the policy of the government and the position of
the directorate as indicated in the first part of my statement; January 31,
9:30 a.m., a continuation of that discussion.

29484-3—2



12 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

February 5, 9:30 a.m., it is proposed that members of the special committee
of the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons, drug investigation com-
mittee, Dr. S. S. Brien, chairman, Dr. E. A. Sellars, and Dr. R. Dufresne be
called to give witness pertaining to their report, which by that time will have
been in our hands as I believe it is going to be tabled in the house today.

On February 6, 9:30 a.m. and February 7, 9:30 a.m., we will continue with
discussions, if necessary, of the investigation of the committee as I mentioned
above.

February 12 and 13, we will visit Montreal to see first hand clinical
research and manufacturing facilities, to include units at the Hétel-Dieu hospi-
tal under the directorship of Dr. Jacques Genest, Ayerst, McKenna and Harrison
Limited, biological and pharmaceutical chemists, and Charles E. Frosst and
Company, and their Kimm laboratories.

February 14—we can have a discussion on that later. I do not think the
committee should crowd its hearings because if we bring witnesses from all
over the country or from the United States or anywhere else, we should leave
ample room in which to give them consideration so that they will not have to
stay here for two or three weeks.

Mr. HADASZ: Are we going to be allowed to discuss this agenda later?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes; at the end of the discussion I want to throw the whole
section open for discussion on drug safety and on the agenda.

February 19, 9:30 a.m., start receiving evidence from professional associa-
tions, trade associations and professional individuals, all relating to section “A”
of the terms of reference. “The law and practices relating to the control of the
introduction, marketing and use of drugs.” (safety)

February 26, 9:30 a.m., Mr. Paul Blanc, World Health Organization,
Geneva, Switzerland who has kindly consented to come that week, if we want
him to.

Meetings in future will be determined at a later date.

Can we now have a discussion on the agenda as outlined? The reason we
kept the special associations and professional people off until February 19 is
that we wanted the permission of this committee to notify all the proposed
witnesses of our intention to ask them, thereby giving them ample time to pre-
pare their statements or reports to this committee. We thought that by having
the departmental officials and the special committee of the Royal College of
Physicians and Surgeons, first we would do this in a very orderly way. Cogld
we have a discussion of the schedule, or would you like an over-all discussion
of the drug situation?

Mr. MitcHELL: If I might intervene here for a moment, when you spoke
of government officials I noticed that R. C. Hammond was not included in your
group. As you know, he is the director of narcotic control, and under his
direction are the special schedule G drugs. This is very necessary for this
committee’s information.

The CHAIRMAN: This was discussed, and I did not propose a list of all
the people within the Department of National Health and Welfare pertaining
to this problem because I thought that when the minister made a statement
he would have all the people pertaining to every section of the legislation under
his administration with him and they could give us a list of the people that
are necessary to investigate this problem completely.

Mr. MitcHELL: He would be included under the food and drug directorate.

Mr. Hamasz: I was just going to make a statement on the schedule of
meetings, and specifically the meetings scheduled for February 12 and 13—
visits to Montreal.
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The CHAIRMAN: If I might interrupt, this has not been actually scheduled;
I have just made some preliminary phone calls and suggested certain dates
which can be changed at the wish of the committee. I wanted to do it in an
orderly way.

Mr. Hamasz: Members of the Liberal party on this committee would be
attending the annual meeting of the advisory council of the National Liberal
Federation on February 12, therefore February 12 would not be a suitable
date for us.

The CHAIRMAN: Might I suggest then, if it is the wish of all the members
of this committee, that we could transfer the date from February 12 to
February 13 and 14, in other words, we would transfer the date to Wednesday
and Thursday, and this would get away from any change. We could change
this easily to another week.

Mr. HARLEY: There are other things on February 13. Could we make it
February 14 and 15?

The CHAIRMAN: I am in the hands of the committee. The only reason
these dates were announced in the report is that I talked to these people about
a certain date. We can have it any day or week you want. Is it convenient for
the members of the Liberal party to come on February 13 and 14?

Mr. NicHoLsoN: If we are tied up on February 11 and 12 it would seem
to me that rather than go down on the evening of February 12 it would be
better to go down on February 14 and 15.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it agreeable to the committee that we go to Montreal—
and we must ask permission of the house to do this—on February 14 and 15
instead of February 12 and 13?

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: There is no Place Pigalle in Montreal.
The CHAIRMAN: We will not have to worry.
Mr. FAIRWEATHER: These kind people are safe.

Mr. HARLEY: I did not have time to go through the complete list of
witnesses as far as their qualifications are concerned. I was thinking par-
ticularly of drugs. Was there any thought of calling someone who might be
an organic chemist not connected with a drug organization?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, at the end of the whole statement I wrote a
paragraph—I probably got ahead of myself—where any person that the com-
mittee wants in an unbiased way, in other words not associated with a
manufacturer or a research institute for profit, should be called by the com-

mittee, and if any members of the committee have witnesses they wish to call,
please submit their names.

Mr. HarLey: I was thinking of an organic chemist and a biologist.
The CHAIRMAN: Have you a name?

Mr. HarLEY: Not offhand. The only organic chemist I can think of is
Professor Rogers of the University of Toronto.

The CHAIRMAN: I will have a list, prepared by the department, of eminent
men in that field so that the subcommittee or the committee can consider it.

Mr. BALpwiN: Mr. Chairman, first I would like to compliment the chairman
and those members of the subcommittee who have so painstakingly and thor-
oughly prepared this report. I think it will make our task a lot easier. It indi-
cates an excellent series of meetings.

I would like to make the suggestion that this is a matter of which we
have had some inkling in the proceedings in the House of Commons already. I
refer to the matter of control. I think this will be particularly so when we
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come to deal with the second branch of our inquiry, namely, pesticides, insecti-
cides and so on; and, judging from what you have said, we shall be making
most careful inquiry into the existing situation, bearing in mind that we will
be making certain recommendations.

That brings up the question of just how far, in a divided federal jurisdic-
tion, we, as the parliament of Canada, are going to be able to make suggestions
which will be valid. I suggest that we might consider calling—if the committee
so wishes—somebody from the Department of Justice. I think this should be
done at the latter part of the proceedings, and it should be someone who would
be able to tell us on what basis the present Food and Drugs Act rests, and on
what basis the establishment and legality of any recommendations we make in
the future will rest; and at the same time, we should bear in bind that provincial
governments all have some jurisdiction as well. This might give us some indica-
tion as to what steps have been taken by the provincial governments along
the lines into which we are making inquiry.

The CHAIRMAN: We shall check into that and have it put on the agenda, if
it is the pleasure of the committee.

Mr. MiTcHELL: I would like to commend the committee on accepting the
invitation to go to visit those two pharmaceutical manufacturing plants in
Montreal. It is not particularly new to some of us on this committee, but it will
be particularly new, and very interesting, for those who have never had that
opportunity. It should also satisfy some of the questions which might be asked
about the subject of control of pharmaceutical preparations and of other chemi-
cals through to their being found in marketable form. I think it should serve
. to answer some of the questions which might be asked.

Mr. NicHOLsON: I am also very pleased to see that the visits to these manu-
facturing plants are included. I wonder if, in the course of our visit to Montreal,
we might include a visit to a proposed pharmaceutical manufacturer whose
background is not purely Canadian, but more that of North America. I have
in mind Ciba, whose parent office is in Switzerland, or something of that kind.

The CHAIRMAN: We will take a note of that for consideration by the com-
mittee. The only problem of this visit is that it means that for two days, to be
visiting these three people that we recommend initially, we would have to be
running around the place. If we crowd in too many people in that two-day
visit I do not think we would get any value out of the investigation. But if the
committee wishes to make the visit at some particular time, I think it might
be in order for us to go.

Mr. NicHOLSON: I know something about the chemical industry and of the

differences which exist between Canada and Europe, and the United States
and Europe in that regard.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you give me your permission to investigate this,
Mr. Nicholson, and I shall report on it at the next meeting?

Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): I think a lot of these European companies
do not have full manufacturing facilities in Canada, but I have in mind one of
them which may do all its North American testing in Canada. I think it is
Ayerst, McKenna and Harrison Ltd.

Mr. MrrcHELL: I think the European companies with branches in Canada
and the United States would be more in the way of packaging operations than
that of test control.

Mr. VALADE: May I ask of a question of Mr. Nicholson for clariﬁcatiop?
Are you talking about the rough material, the production of raw material
which goes into chemicals and pharmaceuticals?

Mr. NicuHoLsoN: Yes.
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The CHAIRMAN: May I go on to the next section. I mean the terms of
reference. Section (B) reads: “The dangers arising from contamination of
food by the use of chemicals to kill weeds, insects and other pests”.

1. “Chairman’s Remarks.” Well, I have made my remarks at the first
of this meeting.

2. Control of pesticide residues in foods under the Food and Drugs Act
and Regulations.

3. Registration and control of pesticides under the Pest Control Products
Act.

4. Role of the provincial entomologist in the use of pesticides.
5. The toxicological testing of pesticides prior to use.

6. Industrial and commercial evaluation pertaining to development of
pesticides.

7. The need for the use of pesticides in agricultural production.

8. Current agricultural practices relating to the use of pesticides in Canada
and trends for the future.

1. I have already made my remarks.

2. (a), statements of the Minister of Health and Welfare, the Honourable
J. Waldo Monteith, and the Deputy Minister of National Health and Welfare,
Dr. G. D. W. Cameron, or any other interested people we have pertaining to
the. responsibility of the government and with reference to the health and
welfare department in this regard.

2. (b) The director of the food and drug directorate should outline the basic
legislation and the regulations which have a bearing on the control of pesticide
residues in foods. The administrative procedures followed in handling of a
submission regarding a pesticide and the division of responsibility between
the Department of Agriculture and the directorate in the handling of such
submissions, should be discussed. The information required for the establish-
ment of a tolerance for residues of a pesticide in foods should be given as well
as the procedures employed in arriving at a satisfactory level, and future
safety in years to come. Terms such as toxicity, hazard, acceptable daily
intake, permissible level and tolerance should be carefully explained.

A statement of the number of tolerances established and the pesticides
which are permitted on a no residue basis should be provided as well as the
number of crops involved. Problems relating to methods of determination
of the pesticide residues should be discussed.

Results of surveys of pesticide residues in food in Canada, the action
taken when excessive residues are encountered, the manpower available to
the directorate for this work and the type of investigation currently underway
by the department should be discussed.

Dr. C. A. Morrell, food and drug directorate, director, Department of
National Health and Welfare, or any other person we deem necessary, or
that Dr. Morrell would like to bring with him.

3. A representative of the Department of Agriculture should be called
to explain their responsibilities under the Pest Control Products Act. This
should include the information required for registration, division of responsi-
bility between Department of Agriculture and the food and drug directorate.
Labelling requirements including all advertising material re warning state-
ments and antidotes should also be explained.
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The department should also give the number of registrations under the
act, and the effectiveness of the present legislation.

Mr. S. C. Barry, deputy minister of agriculture.

Mr. R. C. Phillips, director, plant products division, Department of
Agriculture, Ottawa.

Mr. C. H. Jefferson, chief, feed, fertilizer and pesticide section, plant
products division, Canada Department of Agriculture, Ottawa.

4. A provincial entomologist should explain his role in the development
of the provincial spray calendars and the basis on which decisions regarding
recommendations for use of specific pesticides are reached.

Professor Harold Gobles, provincial entomologist for Ontario, entomology
department, federated colleges, Guelph, Ontario.

5. A toxicologist could explain to the committee the toxicological testing
required on pesticides before they are considered for use on agricultural crops.
He should be asked such questions as to the validity of animal tests in relation-
ship to the safety factor in humans, the adequacy of such tests and related
problems.

Dr. Julius M. Coon, Professor of Pharmacology, The Jefferson Medical
College, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. (Chairman of the subcommittee on toxi-
cology, food protection committee, national research council, Washington, D.C.)

6. A representative of the agricultural chemicals industry should be
called before the committee to outline the procedures which they employ
in the development and testing of a pesticide.

This testimony should include a discussion of toxicity tests conducted on
experimental animals and the field tests carried out on a pesticide.

The Canadian Agricultural Chemicals Association could be asked to suggest
a representative of their industry.

7. There should be an extensive discussion on the use and need for pesti-
cides in agriculture. A competent agricultural scientist should be called to
discuss this aspect of the problem—Dr. D. A. Chant, officer-in-charge, ento-
mology laboratory, Canadian Department of Agriculture, Vineland, Ontario.

8. An agricultural scientist with a broad knowledge of the use of pesticides
should be asked to discuss current agricultural practices in Canada. He should
be asked to discuss alternatives such as biological control of insects and other
pests as well as trends for the future.

He should also be asked if there are any papers or information at his
disposal relating to studies carried out by foreign governments in this field.

Dr. Henry Hurtig, associate director, pesticides, programme directorate,
research branch, Canadian Department of Agriculture, Ottawa.

Dr. Robert Glen, assistant deputy minister, research branch, Canadian
Department of Agriculture, Ottawa.

There are a good many other persons in this field who could be called. I
anticipate this question being asked: There are writers of books such as
Rachel Carson who take a very extreme view, and I think all members of the
committee should avail themselves of the opportunity of reading those
books.

Eminent men in the fields of pharmacology, therapeutics and chemistry
should be called to give evidence in relation to the possible harmful effects
on the human body in the use of insecticides, and recommendations to minimize

, these harmful effects, if any.
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There is a list I have prepared. It is not complete because I did.not have
an opportunity to get the companies. However, I will go over it briefly. The
professional associations include the following:

Dr. E. H. Bensley, secretary, The Pharmacological Society of Canada,
Montreal General Hospital, 1650 Cedar Avenue, Montreal, Que.

Dr. A. D. Kelly, general secretary, The Canadian Medical Association,
150 St. George Street, Toronto 5, Ontario.

Mr. P. H. G. Michael, general manager, Canadian Institute of Chemistry,
48 Rideau Street, Ottawa, Ontario.

Mr. J. E. McConnell, executive secretary, Agricultural Institute of Canada,
176 Gloucester Street, Ottawa 4, Ontario.

Then the trade associations:

Mr. Michel Chevalier, general manager, Canadian Agricultural Chemicals
Association, 3405 Cote des Neiges Road, Montreal 25, P.Q.

Mr. W. K. St. John, executive secretary, National Dairy Council of Canada,
Room 305, The Journal Building, Ottawa, Ontario.

Mrs. A. F. W. Plumptre, president, Canadian Association of Consumers,
1245 Wellington Street, Ottawa 3, Ontario.

Mr. John Monkhouse, executive secretary, Dairy Farmers of Canada,
147 Davenport Road, Toronto, Ontario.

The individuals include Dr. Mark Nickerson, Faculty of Medicine, Depart-
ment of Pharmacology and Therapeutics, University of Manitoba, Winnipeg,
Manitoba.

There are some other persons such as Rachel Carson, and although I do
not have her proper title I remember her name in the book. There are no lists
here of the chemical manufacturers. It is my understanding, in discussion with
the agricultural section of the federal government, that a great many of the
raw chemicals used in pesticides are manufactured in the United States and
imported into Canada. I have asked that they prepare a list of the major
manufacturers, the people to whom they sell their products, and how they
go into the process. This will be a complete list so that the committee can
scrupulously go through it.

I think this committee as a whole should recommend the names of any
persons they might like to call in the field of pharmacology, therapeutics and
chemistry in this regard.

Mr. NicsoLson: I would like to join with Mr. Baldwin and Mr. Mitchell
in complimenting you, Mr. Chairman, and the steering committee—more par-
ticularly yourself—on this very excellent memorandum which has been
prepared.

It does seem to me that there is another part of the federal government
which should be brought into this part of the study; that is the Department of
Forestry. We spend millions of dollars a year in British Columbia—hundreds
of thousands—in large wholesale spraying of forests for the purpose of killing
insects. That has an effect on the food, not only because of the berries, but
also the fish and wild life. I think in many ways the forestry department is
almost as important as the agricultural department.

The CHAIRMAN: I thank you very much for bringing that to cur attention.
At our meeting the doctor in charge of research in the agriculture department
did mention this. There are the soil conservation people, the cross breeding of
agricultural products, and the people pertaining to wood products and wild life,

Mr. NicHoLsoN: This is more than that. There is a special committee in
British Columbia made up of representatives of the federal government, the
department of forestry of the province and the department of lands and mines
of the province as well as industry. They take a whole section of Vancouver
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Island and the mainland and spray the area. They are, and have been for some
time studying the effect on fish life, food, agriculture and other things. This
spraying extends over miles.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Nicholson, might I say that in preparing the agenda
in respect of this subject matter I have the permission of the committee to
call the Minister of Forestry and his officials. This could be incorporated in
the agenda.

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: In New Brunswick the same situation pertains. In one
instance the federal Department of Fisheries sued a crown corporation. It was
a joint federal, provincial and pulp and paper company venture. The fisheries
department lost a lot of fingerling salmon as a result of spruce budworm
spraying. There is some balance there and it may be interesting to hear the
philosophy of the balance.

The CHAIRMAN: I think if Mr. Nicholson’s suggestion could be adhered to
we could bring in both agriculture and forestry, and in that way I think
we can do things properly.

Mr. NicHoLSON: I think there is an assistant deputy minister who has a
broad background of experience in respect of the tests for the control of the
budworm and other insects. I am inclined to think that this assistant deputy
minister or the director in charge of this branch might be more helpful rather
than the minister.

The CHAIRMAN: It is anticipated that we will be discussing the aspect of
the government’s responsibility and therefore initially should call the minister
to give a statement. Then we might have the officials of the department who are
necessary in helping us complete our investigation.

Mr. RyNARD: I am wondering, Mr. Chairman, if we should follow Mr. Bald-
win’s suggestion and have someone from the Department of Justice so that we
might have his views in respect of the various things we can do. Take, for
instance, the department of lands and forests. In the province of Ontario
that department is under the provincial government, and perhaps we should
have their field clearly defined before we start into a federal program which
may interfere with a provincial program. Let us know what our fields are.
I think it might be worth while to have that made plain before we get too
deeply into the matter.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any discussion on that point?

Is it the wish of the committee that I get in touch with the Department of
Justice in order to have someone prepare a statement in respect of the re-
sponsibility of this committee pertaining to the division of responsibility be-
tween the federal and the provincial governments?

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: Not if we are to be restricted.

The CHAIRMAN: No. It is not our intention that this committee is to be
restricted.

Mr. Varvape: I think this committee is involved with investigating into
the history and use of drugs and pesticides; we are not going to impose on
any legislative or provincial jurisdiction. As a fact-finding committee I think it
does not matter whether it is a provincial or federal jurisdiction. We just want
to bring out the problem and, after that, the responsibility would be shared by
the provincial or federal government, if it comes to a solution.

. The CHAIRMAN: Is it the wish of the committee that a departmental of-
ficial from the Justice Department be called to give an explanation or should
we reserve this for the latter part of our hearings.

Mr. Rynarp: My thought, Mr. Chairman, was not to have any interference

whatsoever. It was just so that we would know what the situation was legally.
I hope I did not intimate that there should be any restrictions applied at all.
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Mr. VALADE: Do you think we should call these people when we come to the
recommendations of the committee at the end of our hearings? Is it the wish of
the members of the committee to request their advice on this? Would that be
all right?

Mr. Rynarp: It is all right. My feeling is that if we know beforehand just
what the situation is we can go ahead and make recommendations.

Mr. VALADE: I am worrying about having the statement made before we
start our inquiry. If we do we might be involved in some restrictions insofar as
investigation is concerned.

Mr. BaLpwin: It is my suggestion that we have a very brief statement
from someone from the Department of Justice along the line Dr. Rynard sug-
gested before we deliberate and propose recommendations. However, I feel the
same as anyone else, namely, that the deliberations here should be completely
exhaustive and we should cover everything whether under our jurisdiction or
not. When we come to make suggestions later on, then I think there should be
a great interest shown not only on the part of our federal government but on
the part of provincial governments as well as to where the responsibility might
lie, and then at the latter part of our proceedings we might call in a represen-
tative from the Department of Justice if we think it is necessary at that time.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it the wish of the committee that I have the Depart-
ment of Justice make a short statement or should we have a lengthy statement
at the end before we make our recommendations.

Hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any further discussion in connection with the pesti-
cides section?

Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): Mr. Chairman, I have in mind one section
which has not been mentioned today and which I think is very important to us,
particularly in Western Canada. It has to do with the grain trade, the use of
pesticides and the residue in grain particularly, not only for domestic consump-
tion but export consumption. This is vitally important to us and it is at the
fore in Western Canada at the moment. I suggest that Mr. Connacher, chief
testing officer in the board of grain commissioners be one of our witnesses. As
well, it would be of great assistance to us if we could have from the Depart-
ment of Agriculture the veterinary director general.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any other discussion in connection with the pesti-
cides section? If not, I will go on to the next section, namely prices and costs.

I anticipated there might be a problem in this regard and I would like to
read out again what the minister said in the House of Commons on December
7 at page 2442 of Hansard, at which time he was replying to the suggestion
that this committee investigate the cost of drugs. He said:

Mr. Speaker, in closing this debate I should like to point out that I
think it is probably up to the committee itself to determine the definition
of the word “marketing” in the resolution.

Since my appointment as your chairman, on December 19 I have given
considerable attention to this and it is my feeling that the prime objective of
this committee is the safety factor—and this was the intention of the govern-
ment. However, the minister, as you will note, did give us an opening in the
wording of this to discuss certain situations pertaining to the costs. As your
chairman I would not want the safety aspect to get thrown into the back-
ground because I think it is the most important thing that faces this country
today. We probably will have reference to the thalidomide tragedy and so on,
and if we confuse the two initially we will get into trouble later on. I think we



20 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

should start our hearings on the drug safety factor and leave in abeyance con-
sideration of the cost factor until after the restrictive trade practices commis-
sion reports. Members of this committee will be supplied with copies of this
report.

The thing that I fear from the legal aspect is that many people who may
be named in this report might be charged under their terms of reference and
might incriminate themselves by coming before this committee and testifying
on the cost of drugs. It is my opinion that if we mix up safety and the price
factors or costing we will not cover what the terms of reference adequately
state.

I would like to have the unanimous consent of the committee to defer the
complete discussion on this section until later on—without hampering the
committee in anyway—thereby leaving the matter open until the restrictive
trade practices report—on which Dr. Haidasz posed a question in the house
yesterday—is tabled. We were given to understand that this would be forth-
coming shortly, which would be about in three weeks time, I think.

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: Mr. Chairman, I think there is another feature in
connection with the costs; the royal commission on health has had exhaustive
evidence on this matter and, of course, their report is expected soon.

The CHAIRMAN: If I might interrupt, Mr. Fairweather, I had another
section to cover before completing my remarks.

I was going to suggest that a great many briefs were presented to the
royal commission on health services pertaining to the costs and although I
do not wish to hamper this committee my view is that the safety factor is of
prime importance. I would ask that we delay any decision in connection with
costs as interpreted in the word “marketing” in the terms of reference until
after the restrictive trade practices report. If we proceeded in this way I
think we would serve the purpose of this committee better.

Mr. NicHOLSON: I noticed, Mr. Chairman, that there is no reference to
proprietary and patent medicines. I have received a number of telephone
calls in Vancouver on this subject requesting that we discuss it. I was in
receipt of these calls owing to the fact perhaps that I was the only one on the
committee from British Columbia.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Morrell and I have had discussions with about 30
people in getting together my information. Dr. Morrell is going to clarify
his position with regard to the control of drugs and at the same time I think
he is going to make a reference to patent medicines and whose responsibility
it is, throughout the manufacture and research into these medicines. It was
the intention of the chairman perhaps to call people that do the importing of
these patent medicines to prove their clinical responsibility in that regard.

Mr. MITcHELL: Mr. Paul Soucy is the gentleman in charge of proprietary
and patent medicines as far as the Department of National Health and Wel-
fare is concerned. He is in Dr. Morrell’s department and I am sure he would
be available to answer any questions.

The CHAIRMAN: In outlining the first section I did not want to go in!:o
too much detail and that is why I approached the chief person in.volved in
each of these sections. However, this committee can call anyone it sees fit
to call

Are there any further discussions on the three sections we have covered?

Mr. Hamasz: Mr. Chairman, I think that the formation of this committee
is a direct result of the thalidomide tragedy. In view of that fact I feel that
the company which introduced thalidomide into Canada should be permitted
to present a view following whatever evidence may be given to us by the
officials of the Department of National Health and Welfare. I was wondering
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whether you had given notification of these hearings to that company or
whether someone from that company had notified you of their intention to
appear before this committee.

The CHAIRMAN: I might say, Dr. Haidasz, that I did not want to officially
write anyone until this committee had given me permission to do so, although
I have received telephone calls from many manufacturers and associations.

No one from the William S. Merrell Company has telephoned or written
to me, but it was the intention of your chairman to write letters to professional
associations and manufacturers, professional people and research people indi-
cating that we propose to call them at some future date in order to give them
ample notice. I might say that the Merrell company was on my list of manu-
facturing companies to be notified. I did not include the complete list in this
statement because of its length. If any members of this committee wish indi-
viduals called or companies notified other than those I have listed, I should
be very pleased to have an indication in this regard.

Mr. RYyNARD: Mr. Chairman, I am in agreement with Dr. Haidasz’ sugges-
tion that someone from the Merrell company be called, and I would also like
to suggest that Dr. Fraser be called as soon as possible because of the fact
he is an outstanding man in the genetics field.

As Dr. Haidasz has indicated, the thalidomide tragedy is the actual cause of
the formation of this committee and in that regard I think someone from the
Merrell company and Dr. Fraser should be called as quickly as possible.

. Mr. NicHOLSON: Mr. Chairman, I should like to make one other suggestion.
You have suggested in your report that we call one or more general prac-
titioners. I am wondering also about the many articles that have appeared in
Macleans’ Magazine and other places, and whether it would be advisable to
call as well as one or more general practitioners, one or more paediatricians
because of the fact children are involved.

The CHAIRMAN: That is exactly why Dr. W. W. Tidmarsh, Secretary of the
Canadian Paediatric Society is to be called, and it is presumed that he will bring
people with him who are specialists in this field.

Mr. HARLEY: I was pleased to hear Dr. Haidasz refer to the thalidomide
question. I think it should be pointed out to the individuals of the company
responsible for the introduction of thalidomide into Canada that it is not
our intention in having them appear before us to place them on trial or to give
them the opportunity of exonerating themselves, but for the purpose of
providing this committee with information in respect of the handling of drugs
of this type in order that some measure can be taken to prevent any possible
further tragedy.

The second item upon which I should like to touch has reference to the
statement in the House of Commons regarding pesticides. There is one aspect
of this matter in respect of agriculture that has not been mentioned and which
I think probably should be mentioned. That is the use of drugs for cattle, which
is not really considered dangerous, but which gives rise to contamination
through feeding or the use of chemicals for killing weeds and pests. I have
reference to drugs and several antibiotics that are used for the purposes of
fattening cattle. I think this is a very important aspect that should be considered
thoroughly. It is my understanding that certain drugs are being injected into
cattle before they are killed which are supposed to be meat tenderizers. This
is another aspect which I think should be considered.

Mr. HAamaAsz: I believe that one of our terms of reference covers a study
of food additives especially in relation to baby foods.
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The CHAIRMAN: I must apologize, Dr. Haidasz, for not bringing the list
which you sent me, although I might mention that you did send a letter to me
listing all those companies that you felt should be asked to appear.

Mr. Hamasz: I feel that as well as calling representatives from the
companies which manufacture food additives, particularly in respect of children’s
foods, we should also have representatives appear from companies that have
made available in Canada the drug known as L.S.D., namely the Sandoz com-
pany, in order to air the complaints made by the various psychiatrists in clinical
research in respect of alcoholism and schizophrenia. I feel, therefore we should
call some represenative from the Sandoz company.

Mr. BALbwiN: Mr. Chairman, I might point out in respect of the question
raised by Dr. Harley that the definition of the word “drug” itself in the act
refers also to drugs used in connection with animals or human beings.

Mr. HARLEY: It was my suggestion that the drugs used for meat tenderizing
and for the fattening of cattle, such as hormones, would not be covered.

Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): Mr. Chairman, I think these are all covered
in the act.

Mr. HARLEY: What does the chairman visualize as our hours of sitting?

The CHAIRMAN: This chairman visualizes a long session. It was our thought
that we would meet regularly on Tuesdays and Thursdays at 9.30 in the morn-
ing and sit until 12 or 12.30. We also thought that if it was the desire of the
committee to complete the evidence of a witness we should sit after orders of
the day until perhaps 5.30, using Wednesday mornings from 9.30 until 10.30
in order to complete a witness’s testimony of the previous day. It is also our
feeling that we should deal with the drugs section first, complete that, and then
consider the second section in respect of contamination of foods and insecticides.

Mr. HArRLEY: I take it there would be no objection to questioning one
witness in relation to the second section even though the witness was called in
respect of the first section?

The CHAIRMAN: I think that will be satisfactory providing that we do not
become side-tracked and involved in an extensive discussion resulting in a
loss of the main theme of continuity. I do not foresee any problem in this regard.

Mr. BALpwIN: Although most witnesses will probably do so, it might be
suggested to them that they prepare and send briefs to us so that we can follow
the briefs at the time they are presenting their evidence. I think this practice is
a very useful one. They should, of course, be informed that they will be allowed
to expand upon the remarks contained in the brief.

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: I think that is a good suggestion providing we do not
follow the practice of allowing the witnesses to read their long briefs. We can
all read, or at least that is the assumption.

The CrHAIRMAN: I think we will find that individuals representing trade
and professional associations appearing before this committee will have briefs,
although perhaps certain biologists, chemists, pharmacologists and professional
people from universities and independent laboratories may not present briefs.
They will, of course, be called on to explain their positions in respect of certain
fields. I will, however, indicate in my letters to these companies and professional
peoples that it would be preferable that they submit briefs to this committee
before their appearance.

Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): Mr. Chairman, one of my colleagues happens
to be the medical director of S.K. and F. and has offered the use of a film in
respect of the Kefauver inquiry into drugs in the United States. It is about one
half hour in length. He has suggested that perhaps this committee would like
to see this film and, if so, he will make it available.
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The CHAIRMAN: What is the pleasure of the committee in regard to this
situation?

Mr. NicHOLSON: Mr. Chairman, I wonder whether Dr. Horner has seen
that film.

Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): No, I have not, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: It is my opinion that the steering committee should take
this suggestion under advisement and bring a report to this committee after
finding out what this film contains. Certainly an extensive discussion in respect
of the Kefauver anti-trust study in the United States would hamper us in our
progress.

Mr. MITcHELL: Mr. Chairman, I have a copy of Senator Kefauver’s amend-
ment to the United States federal food and drug act which was presented by
him at NATO last November. I happened to be on that committee and I have
it in my files. It would be available any time you want to refer to it.

The CHAIRMAN: I may point out that the special committee of the Royal
College of Physicians and Surgeons in their report, I understand indicated that
they did make a visit to Washington to consider the safety aspect. I think
that before we give any consideration to calling any witness from Washington
at the government level we should hear them first so that they would not
have to go through external affairs and get into a great deal of difficulty.

Mr. VALADE: I do not think the committee has been empowered to have
French copies printed.

-The CHAIRMAN: It will be done in order.
Mr. VALADE: In the interest of this committee we should have it done.

The CHAIRMAN: I have a list of correspondence, copies of which I will
file with the clerk of the committee. These are letters I received from manu-
facturers associations, consumer associations, manufacturers of drugs, French
associations in the province of Quebec, microbiologists, and interested people.
Rather than read them all out, I will file them with the clerk of the committee
and have a photostat made of them so that we will have a file on all the
correspondence.

We require a motion to determine how many copies of the evidence in
English and French are required.

Mr. MiTtcHELL: What is the usual number, is it 750 English and 250
French?

The CHAIRMAN: As the clerk advises me, it depends on the interest. I would
suggest that we have initially 750 in English and 500 in French, or maybe
even the same number in French because a lot of the people who are going to
be called before this committee have indicated to me that they would like
to keep complete documentation of what is going on in the committee so that
when they do come they can serve a better purpose.

Mr. VaLape: I will move that an equal number of French and English
copies be made available, and that the number be 750 of each.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it the pleasure of the committee to adopt this motion?
It is seconded by Mr. Horner. All in favour? Opposed, if any?

Motion agreed to.

The only other problem will be that if we go to Montreal on that date
we must seek permission of the house to have our actual sittings take place
in Montreal. If we do not do this it will just be an unofficial journey, and
I think it should be an official journey. If I have permission of the committee,
I would like to ask this from the house. That is agreed.
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Mr. NicHOLSON: Since February 14 and 15 are Thursday and Friday, might
it not be wise, in case you needed to extend the visit to Saturday, to make
provision to do so rather than have to make another trip down there? We
are going to visits plants and factories.

The CHAIRMAN: I will be frank with you. In talking to the people in
Montreal they said they would like us to come on Wednesday afternoon and
use Wednesday afternoon, Wednesday night, Thursday and Friday. I anticipated
some difficulty in the Wednesday night situation, as has been indicated in the
house, and that is why I did not do it. I myself would prefer to have Wednesday
afternoon, Thursday and Friday, but if you want to have Saturday morning,
it does not matter.

Mr. MITcHELL: Mr. Chairman, what is the opposition to Wednesday
evening?

The CHAIRMAN: There was no opposition except that there is a Liberal
meeting on Sunday, Monday and Tuesday, and they did not want to crowd
things. They also have correspondence to look after.

Mr. RYNARD: Why not arrange it for next week?

The CHAIRMAN: Except that the following week is the only week that
the representative of the world health organization is available. If we could
not get him, then it would be three months before we could get him again.
Thursday, Friday and Saturday is fine with me.

The Vice-CHAIRMAN (Mr. Valade): The only point here is that production
does not go on in some of the firms on Saturdays, and you may not see the
operation.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Some of them operate continuously.

The CHAIRMAN: Some of the people I spoke to in Montreal indicated that
they did not operate on Saturdays, and that was the reason we took the
middle of the week. What is the pleasure of the committee, should it be

Thursday afternoon, Friday and Saturday, or Thursday, Friday and Saturday
morning?

Mr. NicHOLSON: Thursday, Friday and Saturday morning.
The CHAIRMAN: I will look after that.

Is there any other business we would like to bring before the committee?
Can I have a motion for adjournment? It is seconded by Mr. Mitchell.

We will adjourn until next Tuesday at 9:30 a.m.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TUESDAY, January 29, 1963.
(3)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9.35 a.m. this day, the
Chairman, Mr. R. M. T. McDonald, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Enns, Fairweather, Haidasz, Harley,
Horner (Jasper-Edson), Martin (Essex East), McDonald (Hamilton South),
Nicholson, Orlikow, Patterson, Rynard, and Valade. (13).

In attendance: The Honourable J. Waldo Monteith, Minister of National
Health and Welfare; Dr. G. D. W. Cameron, Deputy Minister of National Health;
Mr. R. E. Curran, Legal Adviser, Department of National Health and Welfare;
Mr. Eric Preston, Chief of Personnel Services, Department of National Health
and Welfare; from the Food and Drug Directorate: Dr. C. A. Morrell, Director;
L. I. Pugsley, Associate Director; Dr. R. A. Chapman, Assistant Director in
Charge of Scientific Services; Dr. J. B. Murphy, Chief Medical Officer; Mr. M. G.
Allmark, Chief of the Pharmacology and Toxicology Section; Mr. Paul Soucy,
Chief of the Proprietary or Patent Medicines Section; and Mr. R. C. Hammond,
Chief of the Narcotic Control Division.

The Chairman opened the meeting and informed the Committee that the
dates of the proposed meetings in Montreal have been set for February the 14th,
15th, and possibly the 16th.

He invited the Minister of National Health and Welfare to address the
Committee.
Mr. Monteith introduced the officials of his department who were in

attendance. He read a statement, copies of which were distributed to the
members, and he answered questions thereon.

At the conclusion of the Minister’s remarks and the questioning thereon,
Dr. Morrell presented a brief respecting the ‘“Procedures for Examination of
New Drug Submissions required by the Food and Drug Regulations” and, at the
request of some members, he gave explanations as he went along.

Copy of Dr. Morrell’s statement together with a chart showing the estab-
lishment of the Food and Drug Directorate were distributed to the members
of the Committee, the witness being examined thereon. Dr. Morrell answered
questions about the number of new drug submissions made annually, the
requirements of the law, the definition of “qualified investigators”, etc. He was

assisted by the officials of the Department of National Health and Welfare and
of the Food and Drug Directorate.

A copy of the Food and Drugs Act was also distributed to each Member.

The Minister gave a short statement on the status of the discussions carried

with the provinces in regard to the rehabilitation of thalidomide babies. Assisted
by Dr. Cameron, he answered various questions.

On motion of Mr. Fairweather, seconded by Mr. Horner,

Ordergd,—That the Chart of the establishment of the Food and Drug Direc-
torate be included in today’s record. (See Appendix “A”).

On motion of Mr. Nicholson, seconded by Mr. Harley,
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Resolved,—That the number of printed copies of the Committee’s Minutes
of Proceedings and Evidence in English including Issue No. 1 be increased from
750 to 1500, and that a sufficient number of copies be made available to the
Chairman of the Committee for mailing purposes.

On motion of Mr. Orlikow, seconded by Mr. Horner,

Resolved,—That permission be sought from the House for the Committee to
meet in Montreal, Quebec, on Thursday, Friday and Saturday, February 14, 15
and 16, 1963, and that the Clerk of the Committee accompany the Committee
to Montreal.

The Chairman announced that the Committee would continue its hearing of
the Minister and the departmental officials at the next meeting.

On motion of Mr. Nicholson, at 12.30 p.m. the Committee adjourned to
Thursday, January 31st, at 9.30 a.m.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE

TuUESDAY, January 29, 1963.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen I see a quorum.

Before we start I should like to inform this committee that I have been
in touch with the people in Montreal concerning the trip. It has been changed
to Thursday, Friday and Saturday mornings, February 14, 15 and 16.

Also, Dr. Brien’s special committee on new drugs will be here next
Tuesday morning at 9.30. I talked to Dr. Brien on the telephone and we are
endeavouring to get in touch with the other two gentlemen of that committee
to make sure that they can be here at that same time.

I felt this morning, if it is in accordance with the committee’s wishes,
that we would hear the minister and then ask any questions we have in
respect of his statement; then hear from Dr. Morrell, the director of the food
and drugs directorate, and then question him in regard to his statement. I
hope that is in accordance with the committee’s wishes.

Some Hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

Honourable J. WaLpo MONTEITH (Minister of National Health and Welfare):
Mr. Chairman, I wonder whether, this being the first meeting of the committee,
it would be in order for me to introduce some of the officials of my department
who are here with me?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, sir.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr. Chairman, on my right is Dr. G. D. W. Cameron,
deputy minister of national health and welfare, and then Dr. C. A. Morrell,
chief of the food and drug directorate; Mr. R. E. Curran, the department’s
legal advisor and Mr. Eric Preston, chief of personnel services.

In addition to the director, the following senior staff members from the
department of food and drugs are present:

Dr. L. I. Pugsley, associate director; Dr. R. A. Chapman, assistant director
in charge of scientific services; Dr. J. B. Murphy, chief medical officer; Mr.
M. G. Allmark, chief of the pharmacology and toxicology section; Mr. Paul
Soucy, chief of the proprietary or patent medicines section and Mr. R. C.
Hammond, chief of the narcotic control division.

I think generally these will be the chief people of the department who will
be available to supply information to us.

You will all have read many press reports, and heard a great deal said
in the commons chamber, on the death-dealing properties of certain drugs,
and on the general pollution of his environment by man himself.

In this committee, which certainly has an immense task before it, you will
have an opportunity to learn at first hand of the views of the experts in
medical and scientific fields. You will, we trust, utimately be able to put this
whole picture into perspective, in your own minds and in the minds of all
Canadians.

The apparent effects of thalidomide will be with us through the lives of
every man in this room, as its victims grow into the world.

It is our job to ensure that these victims are cared for in the best possible
manner, that their needs are met to the fullest extent we can devise, and to
ensure, as much as is possible, that a similar tragedy will never occur again.
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But we must also bear in mind that thalidomide is still a good drug. It
was its side effects, as later evidence indicated, that can be harmful. It induced
sleep quickly and without ill effect, but we have learned that it should never
be taken during pregnancy.

I am not standing in defence of thalidomide, but it must be pointed out
that even the common headache remedy can be dangerous, and cause death,
if misused.

There is no such thing as a completely safe drug. The safety factor must
be weighed against the value of the drug in relation to its own known dangers.

Penicillin is an example. It has saved millions of lives. But some people,
sensitive to it, have died. Should we prevent the sale in Canada of penicillin?

Canadians must be allowed to enjoy all the benefits of scientific discovery—
and there have been many in recent years—but they must also be protected.

When the risks cannot be avoided, they must be reduced as much as pos-
sible to the point where the balance will be on the side of promoting health and
not compounding suffering.

This committee was set up by the government with a twofold terms of
reference. It is being asked to consider and report upon:

(a) The law and practices relating to the control of the introduction,
marketing and use of drugs;

(b) The dangers arising from the contamination of food by the use of
cemicals to kill weeds, insects and other pests.

I understand from the chairman that the committee will attempt to con-
centrate first on the drug question and I, too, will do so today.

I will, of course, follow proceedings with intense interest. I would be
pleased to return at a later date to explain fully the department’s role in the
protection of Canadians from chemical contamination.

Both questions deserve undivided attention and I commend the committee
for separating one from the other as much as possible.

The responsibility that every Canadian receive the utmost protection in
the use of drugs is one that cannot be discharged by any one division of govern-
ment. The burden must be shared by manufacturers of drugs, the medical pro-
fession, pharmacists and even individual Canadians.

The role of the government is not to delay or deny the benefits of science
to Canadians, but to ensure that drugs reach the market only after all reasonable
precautions have been taken to inform the medical profession of any risks and
of any undesirable side effects.

Increased drug safety is a goal we are always striving for.

Our objective was increased safety for the public when we introduced in
Parliament last October legislation reinforcing aspects of our drug control
provisions.

The changes in our Food and Drugs Act provided authority to impose addi-
tional controls on the distribution of drug samples; authorized the prohibition of
the sale of a drug, and emphasized that new drugs require special consideration.

Our aim is also safety when we require that a manufacturer take every
precaution possible in introducing a new drug.

There must be quality control, exhaustive animal and clinical testing and
the provision of detailed information to the medical profession.

It is also the responsibility of government to maintain a staff competent to
administer the food and drug legislation.

The job of this staff is to provide adequate technical advice, conduct analyses
and tests of drugs, do research and carry out field inspections.
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Members of this committee will recall that the staff question was one of the
principal points raised in the report of the special committee on new drugs of
the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons, which I tabled in the house last
week.

I hope this committee will examine its report most exhaustively, as I con-
sider that the findings and recommendations are of the greatest value.

Dr. Brien, the committee chairman, will be available for any enquiries you
may wish to direct to him, and I am sure that his research into the systems
employed by governments other than our own could also be of benefit to you.

Dr. Brien’s committee felt that the staff of the food and drug directorate
was not as large as it should be.

We are aware of this and have for some time been trying, with some
success, to increase staff there.

Its director, Dr. C. A. Morrell, is here today to appear before the committee
and will be available to answer questions in an effort to give you a complete
picture of the directorate’s operations.

There have been suggestions—and there will probably be more—that the
directorate increase its staff to the point where it can conduct original research
into all drugs introduced in Canada.

Some seem to think that too much onus is placed on the companies and
not enough collaborating research is performed by the policing agency.

Our firm conviction is that we must insist a manufacturer accept full
responsibility for something he puts his name on and sells to the general public.

. Any softening of this conviction could result in the weakening of one of
the principal elements of our control program for the protection of the public.

This does not mean our responsibility is lessened or that we are relying on
the companies to do everything.

Our job is to see—to insist—that the companies do their job and, from
time to time, to check on their work, and to carry on sufficient research and
investigation in our own establishment to be able to not only check the work
of the manufacturer, but to form well-based opinion on the quality of the
work being done with a special eye open to possible dangers to the consumer.

Under the present system, manufacturers are required to submit detailed
reports on the development and testing of drugs—tracing this process through
laboratory and clinical stages. Our experts can—and do—detect shortcomings
by scruitinizing these reports. They then require supplementary information.

To have our people retrace the experiments already conducted by the
manufacturers would appear to be cumbersome and unnecessary. It would
mean a gigantic staff, needless repetition, huge cost, and, in effect, might lead
to eventual subsidization of the industry.

I don’t think we could justify this to the taxpayer.

The present system has worked well. Our Food and Drugs Act is second
to none in the world. It has been used as a model by the World Health
Organization.

It sometimes takes years for drugs to win approval of the food and drug
experts—some never do. Companies are repeatedly asked for additional
information.

In the last 11 years, the directorate has passed some 2,000 new drugs
through its screening process with results that were not questioned until very
recently.

In other words, every possible care now is taken to ensure that Canadians
are protected. And the system now used appears to be working.

But there can be improvements in any undertaking. We are looking to
this special committee to make valuable suggestions for such improvements.

20484-3—3}



30 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

This is why the government called the committee. It will hear evidence
from experts in many spheres and their advice will be of great help in formu-
lating future government policy.

The thalidomide tragedy has spurred us all to greater action. The govern-
ment, as you know, not only introduced new legislation, but also made plans
for strengthening the food and drug directorate.

Last August, I announced to the provinces that the government stood ready
to share the cost of rehabilitation of thalidomide victims. Since then, a number
of fact-finding groups have been working to add to federal and provincial
knowledge of the problems in this sphere. The expert committee on habilita-
tion reported last week, and copies were tabled in the house.

There is one point that should be stressed—the problem of drug controls,
and the constant exchange of technical information that is needed to make
such controls completely effective, is not Canada’s alone. Nations in many
parts of the world have turned their attention to it in recent months.

Before the thalidomide stories had gained prominence in our newspapers,
the Canadian Government took action that could have far-reaching results.

It initiated and co-sponsored a special resolution on drugs at the World
Health General Assembly in Geneva.

It is hoped that the resolution will lead to an improvement in the exchange
of drug information among nations of the world, and further the standardiza-
tion of procedures regarding new drugs.

Prompt, world-wide exchange of information of new drug developments
would help to a great degree in preventing the recurrence of a thalidomide
tragedy.

In this opening statement I would like to wish members of this committee
every success in their deliberations. They have taken on an onerous task, the
completion of which should result in great benefit to all Canadians.

Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I might just add that naturally I will be
available and will be at the committee’s beck and call at any time it might
wish to have me before it. It does happen that other meetings are frequently
held on Tuesdays and Thursdays, and at certain times perhaps I could be
excused from this committee’s meetings although I will always be available
for questioning. I am wondering whether this will be satisfactory, and I make
this request so that you will appreciate why I perhaps am not present at every
meeting of this special committee.

The CHAIRMAN: I would think that would be satisfactory. It this agreeable
to the committee?

Some Hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, has anyone any questions to ask?

Mr. OrLiIKOW: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask the minister several
questions. First of all, I have had some correspondence with people in the field
such as doctors, who are still concerned as to whether the department actually
has the authority to order the withdrawal temporarily or permanently of a
drug which has been approved, but in respect of which in latter stages there
may be new evidence indicating there are difficulties. It has been said again
and again by people in the field that this was a primary difficulty in respect of
thalidomide, and that after some information was available which should have
indicated that at least the use of the drug should be temporarily suspended,
it was not because the department had to work more or less by voluntary co-
operation and that the department therefore waited because of certain uncer-
tainties. Certainly we would all hope that there would not be a recurrence of
what happened with this drug, but if there were another incident like this, does
the law, as it is now written, give the department the authority to order a drug
company to halt the distribution and to withdraw immediately all the drugs
which have been investigated?
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Mr. MonTEITH: Yes, we believe it does; by putting the drug under schgdule
H we prohibit the distribution, the sale, and so on of a drug. We can do this by
order in council.

Mr. OrrLikow: I think this is pretty satisfactory.

I would like to ask Mr. Monteith another question. On December 28, 1960,
Dr. Morrell issued a trade information letter No. 191 which went out to a large
number of people. I will read the memorandum.

In the interests of public health it is now considered necessary to
stengthen the regulations under the Food and Drugs Act in respect to the
conditions under which drugs are manufactured for sale in Canada. For
this purpose I propose to submit the attached regulations.

The Honourable, the Minister of National Health and Welfare.

I will be pleased to have your comments and suggestions on or before
March 31, 1961.

One of the points which was included, and I quote, is (i):

A system of control that will permit a complete and rapid recall of
any lot or batch of a drug from the market when such is found to be
unsatisfactory or dangerous.

I understand that those recommendations were never implemented. I
wonder why they were not because it seems to me that that one in particular
would have given the department all the authority necessary to handle the
thalidomide problem. According to the information I have it was never
implemented.

Mr. MoNTEITH: I may stand corrected on this but my understanding is that
these regulations, and any set of regulations which we bring out as indicated
by that letter, are taken up with various groups in an effort to have the most
satisfactory and worth while set of regulations possible.

Dr. Morrell, am I right in saying that some of these regulations are still
being considered?

Dr. C. A. MorreLL (Chief of Food and Drug Directorate): Yes, Mr. Monteith,
they are. I might say that if Mr. Orlikow reads the rest of it he will see that
those records must be kept by the manufacturer, and certainly such was the case
at that time; I think it was in 1960.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Yes, December 1960.

Dr. MorreLL: We certainly had the idea the manufacturer himself would
do the recalling but he must keep records so that he would know how to do
this in a most efficient and expeditious manner. It was our hope to have it
required by law to keep such records so that the manufacturer himself could
recall a remedy if necessary.

Mr. OrLIKOW: But in any case it was not done, Mr. Chairman. This is the
point I am making. After Dr. Morrell has spoken I would like to ask him some
questions about the whole matter, but it does seem to me, and it was brought
to my attention by people in the field who expressed their opinion in a letter
to me, that these regulations being put into effect would have given the depart-
ment the authority needed to move much faster in the thalidomide problem.
I am just curious about why there was objection from the manufacturers and
difficulties which were not foreseen when Dr. Morrell sent out these proposals.

Mr. MoNTEITH: Mr. Orlikow, I think we can answer your question better by
questioning Dr. Morrell, and subsequently I would be pleased to speak on it.

Mr. OrLIKOW: The only reason I raise this, Mr. Monteith, is that I would
like to know whether Dr. Morrell recommended it and you countermanded it.
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Mr. MonNTEITH: I do not recall the details of it, but I would like to hear
Dr. Morrell give his side of the story.

The CHAIRMAN: To save any duplication, can we have Dr. Morrell of the
drug directorate make his statement and make us aware of his views, and then
both the minister and the director would be prepared to answer questions
simultaneously?

Mr. OrLiKOW: I have just one other question to put to Mr. Monteith. The
report which was tabled from this special committee made some pretty specific
recommendations about increased staff for the department. Mr. Monteith said in
his opening statement that the department was giving it favourable considera-
tion. I forget the exact words he used. I wonder if you have accepted pretty well
the precise recommendations they made and if you have accepted their recom-
mendations as to how many more people you need. I would also like to know
if you have some idea of the time it is going to take, a year or two or how long,
until you get that extra number of people which they recommend.

Mr. MonNTEITH: Actually the increased staff which has been requested for
some little time has been the following. This was before the report came in
and before we knew what the report was going to contain. We had then
requested certain increases and approved increases prior to the report. In the
new drug submission field they are the following: One medical officer, one
technical officer, two support staff, two chemists. This is in the pharmacology
and toxicology division, two chemists and one support staff. Pharmaceutical
division, one chemist and one support staff; microbiology, one bacteriologist
and two support staff.

Now, this has been recommended and accepted at the moment, but, as I
said before, the actual report was received and the staff will again be looked
over with a view to the suggestions in the report.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: Those are your recommendations as far as the staff comple-
ment is concerned. Is that as far as your establishment is concerned?

Mr. MoNTEITH: Yes, the increase in the staff.
Mr. OrRLIKOW: But they have not yet been hired?

Dr. MorgeLL: They have hired one man, but recruiting is a difficult
problem I might say.

Mr. Haipasz: Why does Dr. Morrell think that recruiting is so difficult?
Is it because of the wage scale or because of a lack of men qualified to fill the
jobs in Canada?

Mr. MonTEITH: I still think this is a question which Dr. Morrell can
answer much more readily and exactly than I can.

Mr. MARTIN: I would like to ask a question. Mr. Orlikow asked a question
which may have left a wrong impression. He asked the minister if he had
countermanded any suggestions made by the director. The minister then replied
to that “I think we had better wait until Dr. Morrell gets on the stand.” I am
sure the minister did not mean to leave that impression.

Mr. MonNTEITH: I certainly did not mean to leave the impression that I
countermanded any suggestions made by Dr. Morrell, but I still feel the whole
question could probably be better taken up by him.

Mr. MARTIN: Did you countermand any suggestions made by Dr. Morrell?
Mr. MoNTEITH: Not to my recollection.

The CHAIRMAN: I think I interrupted the minister at that stage and asked
the committee if Dr. Morrell could make his statement so that we could have
both statements before us. Is that in accordance with the wish of the committee?
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Mr. MARTIN: You did, but I thought that was the wrong procedure in
view of the impression that Mr. Orlikow had left. Now, the minister has said
that to the best of his knowledge he did not countermand any suggestion made
by Dr. Morrell.

Mr. OrLikow: I did not make that suggestion. I just thought this should
be in the record of the future. I have no knowledge and I made no suggestion
at all that the minister countermanded any recommendations made by Dr.
Morrell.

The CHAIRMAN: Could we now have Dr. Morrell’s statement? It is agreed.

Dr. MORRELL: Mr. Chairman, I have prepared a statement on the pro-
cedures used by the food and drug directorate in handling new drug sub-
missions. I think this has been distributed to each member. It may be rather
dull reading but I am prepared to read it.

The CHAIRMAN: I think we should have it read.

Dr. MoRreLL: Although the regulations imply that the new drug submissions
should be sent to the minister, they are usually addressed to the director. If
they are sent to the minister, they are sent from there to the director’s office.
The director’s secretary sends them at once to the medical section.

In the medical section they are examined, first of all, to determine whether
or not the drug in question is a new drug as defined by section C.01.301. In the
great majority of cases the drug is found to be a new drug. In either case the
manufacturer is notified of the receipt of the submission (usually on the same
day) and if it is a new drug, pertinent information relating to it is entered on
a file card and in a ledger. There are some cases where it takes a good deal
longer to make a decision, but usually on the same day the manufacturer gets
a receipt of the submission.

Mr. NIicHOLSON: Most of us know what a drug submission is but it would
facilitate matters if Dr. Morrell could explain what it is at this point.

Dr. MorreLL: I am afraid it is going to be dull. Section C.01.302 of the
present regulations requires every manufacturer to submit to the minister what
we call a new drug submission in respect of any drug that is new as defined in
the regulations. There is a definition of the new drug in the regulations.

In the present regulations, section C.01.301, this definition appears. This
submission has to be made in the form, manner and contents satisfactory to
the minister. It should include all the information that the manufacturer has
in respect of that drug. It should include the chemical structure, composition;
the methods of control; the methods of manufacture; the labelling; the claim
the manufacturer is going to make; the pharmacology and toxicology of the
drug; the clinical results of the tests to discover what hazards are encountered
in the use of the drug; the dosage in which the drug should be given in the usual
course of treatment; the pharmaceutical form in which the drug is put up for
use, and so on. All of this infromation on these subjects must be included in
the new drug submission. It is then required that this information be filed in
duplicate with the minister before the drug is put on the market in the usual
commercial way. Prior to this, of course, the manufacturer must have used the
drug both in the laboratory and in the clinic in order to collect the information.

Provision is now made under section C.01.307 of the regulations to allow
him to do this. He must, before sending out a new drug for clinical trial, notify
tl}e minister that he is going to do so, supply the minister with a name or a
dlstipguishing mark by which the drug is known, he must label it—there is a
special statement required on the label which says “for use by qualified investi-
gators only”—and he must send it only to a qualified investigator. He must also
keep records of the reports of these investigators on the results of that clinical
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trial, and if the minister, or the director in this case, requires to see these reports,
he must make them available to the director for examination. That is all
covered under present section C.01.307.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Thank you.

Mr. VALADE: Can I ask a question in this regard? What is the essential
element required to classify a drug as a new drug in comparison with similar
drugs that could be on the market?

Dr. MorreLL: There are several reasons for calling a drug a new drug.
No. 1, and the one that occurs probably to all of us at once, is that it is a new
chemical structure that has not been used previously in medicine. It may have
been known but not used for medical purposes, or it may have been developed
simply for medical purposes. These things are now appearing on the market
because the pharmaceutical industry is interested in developing new products.
If it is a new compound obviously it is a new drug. Now, a combination of
known drugs that have not been previously used in combination, is also a new
drug. It may be a combination of two or more perhaps well known drugs. This is,
in most instances, called a new drug. If it is a combination of known vitamins,
it is not considered to be a drug. A decision must be made as to whether the
combination used is really to be considered as a new drug.

If a known drug has been recommended for a brand new use in medicine
it is a new drug. Let us take as an example aspirin which has been known for
60 years or more; let us suppose that someone came out today with a recom-
mendation that aspirin was effective in the treatment of cancer. In this case
we would consider that aspirin in that context was a new drug and we would
require the manufacturer to submit evidence on the effectiveness and safety of
the drug under those conditions of use. If a drug has been given by the oral
route, that is taken by mouth, and some manufacturer finds that it would be
more effective or beneficial if injected, then we would also consider that to be
a new drug. These are the main categories of new drugs and they are defined
in the existing section C.01.301. A new drug therefore is not just a new com-
pound, but it also has those connotations.

Mr. VALADE: Let us follow this line of questioning, Dr. Morrell. Did you
classify thalidomide as a new drug compared to other brands of tranquilizers
with other brand names in America, such as Stemetil?

Dr. MorreLL: We classified thalidomide as a new drug because it was a
new chemical structure, so obviously it was a new drug. There was no debate
on that with the manufacturer or with anyone else. I continue with my
statement.

A clerk then prepares a routine form and the new drug submission is taken
to the central registry where it is given a file number. The submission is then
put into a docket, together with forms for routing and recording of comments,
and sent to the associate director. The duplicate copy of the submission is kept
by the medical section.

The associate director examines the submission in reference to the type of
drug and the claims made for it and sends it to the appropriate laboratory
section.

The laboratory, using criteria related to the recommendations for use of the
drug, and those are recommendations given by manufacturers, reviews the
pharmacological, toxicological and clinical work and also the chemisty, the
manufacturing controls including the method of analysis. An actual trial of the
method of analysis is seldom made at this stage.

It should be noted that the submission may be passed to more than one
laboratory section; it may go to two or three sections if there is data or in-
formation in it requiring expert comment by specialists in different disciplines.
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The laboratory people do not make their comments on the form provided but
write them as a summary of the data and information given in the submission
with comments on their adequacy in relation to the criteria presented in a
guide used for this purpose and when they have finished with it, the submission
and the comments are returned to the associate director.

The associate director studies the comments made by the laboratory people
and checks them with the information given in the submission. He always
examines critically the claims and proposed promotional material and frequently
discusses with the laboratory people their comments, objections and suggestions
on the whole subject matter in the submission. He may also discuss at this
point, any questionable features in the submission with the medical section.
Finally, the associate director sets down a summary on the form provided, of
his own comments, remarks and recommendations in respect to the submission,
and returns the submission and the accompanying file of comments to the
medical section.

It is the duty of the chief medical officer together with his chemist assistant
to then review all the reports and the submission itself. Special attention
needs to be paid to the manufacturing controls described and to the clinical
data. The nonproprietary (proper) name, if there is one, is recorded or decided
upon at this time and in conjunction with the associate director, whether or
not the drug should be a prescription drug. If there is any deficiency found
in the new drug submission, a letter is written to the manufacturer by the
chief medical officer pointing out what is missing or what is wrong with the
submission and stating that further information is necessary or that something
contained in it is unacceptable. Such a letter to the manufacturer states also
that the new drug submission is not acceptable in its present form.

If, however, there is no objection taken up to this point and if everything
else is satisfactory, the submission is sent to inspection services for a review
of the labels. Labels are examined for compliance with the labelling require-
ments of the food and drug regulations. Inspection services also review the
wording of promotional material and if they find it objectionable the matter
is reported to and discussed with, the medical section. Inspection services then
return the submission with their comments to the medical section. At this
point a new drug card for the product in question is completed and a new
drug acceptance form is made out. Very frequently a letter is also written to
the manufacturer pointing out some objection to the labelling or other similar
matter that must be corrected. Both the new drug acceptance form and this
letter are sent to the director who signs them both and they are then mailed
to the manufacturer. This is a standard form and the wording is the same for all
new drugs.

The Director may be informed, at any time during this whole procedure,
that there is some special difficulty arising or that disagreement with the
manufacturers has occurred during the processing of the submission. Such
information, depending on the seriousness of the difficulty, may lead to a
conference of food and drug officers or a conference which includes the manu-
facturer’s representatives as well as food and drug staff, for the purpose of
establishing or clarifying a policy or resolving the disagreement in a manner
that is proper and in conformity with the requirements of the act and regulations.

In actual practice, the number of conferences on new drugs in which the
director is involved is smaller than those in which the associate director, the
laboratory staff or the medical section take part. These latter meetings are
fairly numerous. There is considerable correspondence and often telephone calls
and visits from the manufacturer’s medical or technical staff in connection
with many new drug submissions.
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The regional and district offices are advised by a monthly sheet of the
new drug submissions received and of those pending or cleared. They receive
as well, a card summarizing the new drug submissions cleared which is
intended to be filed under proper (non-proprietary) name, brand name and
manufacturer’s name.

Processing of Supplementary Information

After a new drug submission has been accepted, any deviation in the use,
composition, pharmaceutical forms, etc. from information and data given in
the original submission, may be the subject of a supplemental submission. A
supplement may involve a change in (1) the trade name, (2) the method of
manufacture, (3) the dosage or dosage forms, (4) the method of analysis,
(5) the labelling, (6) additional active ingredients, (7) additional inactive
ingredients (colour, flavour, excipients, etc.), (8) additional claims. If there
is a significant change in the active ingredients, method of manufacture, route
of administration or dosage forms so that the safety is questionable, the so-
called supplement may be classified as a new drug submission and entered
and handled accordingly. If it is a relatively simple change in the formulation,
labelling, method of analysis, manufacturing process or a small extension of
the claims, it is considered as a supplement and handled as soon as possible.
If a reply can reasonably be expected to be given within two weeks, the
information is not acknowledged. If it appears that a longer time will be
required for review, the receipt of the supplement is acknowledged. Supple-
ments are not numbered but a rscord is kept of all correspondence in the
correspondence record book. If the supplement involves the use of a new
trade name, a revised card is issued. If it involves a new dosage unit, a new
card is usually issued, but not always.

Since supplements may range all the way from one paragraph in a letter
(e.g. notification of change of address or a change in a trade name) to a
number of volumes (if they are trying to justify an extension of claims),
it has been difficult to work out a standard method of handling them. We
have been forced to do the best we could with the staff available.

Mr. NicHoLsOoN: Mr. Chairman, I would like Dr. Morrell to indicate how
many new drug submissions they may have in the course of a month or so?

Dr. MorreLL: I have a table here which indicates the number for the last
four or five years. This is a list of bona fide new drug submissions received,
not including supplementaries. During 1958 there were 162; during 1959,
197; during 1960, 197; during 1961, 150 and during 1962, 177. Someone has
made the addition and it is 883 for those years.

' Mr. NicuoLson: If a drug has been accepted in the United States, Great
B{'ltgm or some other country of the world, it would still be a new drug sub-
mission in Canada, is that right?

Dr. MorreLL: Yes, sir.
Mr. NicHoLsON: Thank you.

Mr. Harrey: I should like to ask Dr. Morrell whether he would go
through the steps that take place before it becomes a new drug submission?
In other words, how does the drug company inform you that they are going
to put a new drug up for experimental purposes? What is the procedure fol-
lowed before it reaches this stage?

: Dr. Mor_mELL: Mr. Chairman, they notify us by a letter that usually
gives some information. If I may say so, at this stage, and perhaps it is a

l_ittle early,. I think we need some strengthening of section C.01.307, which
is the section I am referring to and which covers the restrictions on the
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distribution of what we mnow call drugs for investigational use only. The
manufacturer informs the minister of an identifying name or mark by which
the drug can be recognized. That is the first thing, and that has a practical
value from an enforcement standpoint. If this drug comes into the country
from outside, and I can tell you that a great majority of them do, at least
we can notify our inspectors at the customs that such and such a drug with
the mark of such and such a kind is to be admitted if it is addressed to the
proper people.

It should be labelled also, of course, “to be used by qualified investigators
only.”

The manufacturer prior to making the shipment must assure that any
person to whom the drug is sent is a qualified investigator and has the
facilities for the investigation to be conducted by him. This individual must
assure the manufacturer that the drug will be solely used by him or under
his direction for investigation. That information must be obtained by the
manufacturer and that assurance given to him in writing so that we can see
that he has received it. The manufacturer as well must keep accurate records
of such distribution and the results of such investigation and make these records
available for inspection by the directorate.

Those are the total regulations in force now at this moment covering
drugs for investigational use prior to the submission of a new drug submitted
to the minister.

Mr. HarLEY: I was wondering in respect of the qualifications of researchers
whether this is something to be considered by the manufacturer and in respect
of which the department has nothing to do at this stage?

Dr. MorreLL: We can argue about that, sir, but as far as the final decision
is concerned, it would have to be made in court. If a manufacturer refused
to accept our arguments and wished to carry on, it would be up to the
magistrate or the judge to decide whether the persons to whom the manu-
facturer had sent the drug were really qualified investigators.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Morrell, have you the power under the act to initiate
such action?

Dr. MorreLL: We can always initiate action for a violation of the regula-
tions. This would in our opinion be a violation of the regulations, that is, if we
disagreed with the qualifications of the investigator.

Mr. BALpwiIN: Dr. Morrell, I wonder whether you would speak a little
louder when you are carrying on a discussion with someone closer to you?

Dr. MoRrreLL: Yes. I am sorry.

Mr. VALADE: Dr. Morrell, I should like to ask you a question. When you
have cause to think that a drug should be investigated further, do you advise
the pharmaceutical or medical organizations in each province, or what is the
procedure taken in this regard?

Dr. MORRELL: Are you referring now to a drug that is in the category of a
drug for investigational use prior to marketing?

Mr. VALADE: Yes, I am referring to drugs in this category prior to
marketing.

Dr. MorreLL: No. We have had very little experience and very little action
in respect of drugs for purely investigational use. They are not yet the subject
of new drug submissions and are simply put out for trial to a qualified
investigator.

We have had some action and have taken some action in this respect, includ-
ing one action not too long ago, which you may remember. In that case we
notified the manufacturer that he must cease distribution for that purpose or
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any other purpose. Our charge would be that he had violated a portion or all
of section C.01.307, if it came to a court action. We do not make this informa-
tion public. Nor do we notify anyone else as a matter of fact and have not up

until the present.

Mr. VALADE: Is that true even though a new drug has been accepted and
it has been discovered that there are some secondary effects which have been
drawn to the attention of the directorate, or do you then advise the medical
or pharmaceutical bodies in this nation?

Dr. MorreLL: No, and it is quite common, as you may know. A drug is in
the market for some time with wide use on a large number of patients—it may
have been millions, and by a great number of medical practitioners, many
thousands—and you will discover, or someone will discover a side reaction or a
contra-indication which was not revealed when the new drug submission was
made. Our law requires the manufacturer to give adequate direction for use.
Also the act itself in section 9(1) prohibits anyone from labelling, advertising
or promoting a drug in a matter that is false, misleading or deceptive or likely
to give an erroneous impression regarding its safety.

So, falling back on this law and this authority, we have required all
manufacturers to give adequate directions for the use of their products, and
the term “adequate directions” would certainly require them to give warnings
of side effects or contra-indications. The law makes this the responsibility of
the manufacturer. Our responsibility is to see that he does do so. So that the
manufacturer then sends out a warning, or puts it in a package circular his
directions for the use and a notation of any new contra-indication or new
undesirable side effect so that the doctor himself can be aware of all of the
dangers that are known about the drug at any given time.

Mr. VALADE: I should like to follow up this discussion with one further
question, Dr. Morrell. Have you in the past communicated by letter or advised
those medical or pharmaceutical bodies or organizations representing these
medical professions of any of the new developments in regard to drugs?

Dr. MorreLL: We do communicate with the pharmacists and the doctors
in respect of drugs. One of the most common bits of information we give them
is information about a drug put in the “prescription only sale” category. It is,
of course, essential for these people to know and we issue an annual card
which is sent to I think every practicing doctor and every practicing pharmacist
in the country to inform them as to what drugs now may be sold retail only
on doctor’s order. This I think is the main communication we have had with the
medical profession as a whole in the past.

In recent months we have, of course, sent several letters—I think three,
but two anyway—directed to individiial doctors, or at least to the medical
profession, in respect of thalidomide, in one case, and other drugs in respect of
which we had some information regarding possible certain associated side
effects that were undesirable. We have informed them of these things.

This is a new policy in so far as the administration of the act has been
concerned. We have always, up to this year at least, considered that it was the
manufacturers’ responsibility to inform the profession or the public, and in the
case of the public, to warn on the label of any reasons for dangers in respect
of the use of a drug.

Mr. OrLiKOW: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask one question, without
being critical, in respect of the thalidomide incident. Having regard to the
system of holding the manufacturing company responsible for doing the
investigation work in regard to drugs and in the light of what happened with
the use of thalidomide, is a new policy necessary, and if so what does the depart-
ment think should be adopted in this field? I raise this question because I know
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that my wife had taken thalidomide over a period of time before the adverse
information was available, and although it did not create difficulties in the
usual sense there certainly was some kind of an effect—I will not use the
term “breakdown” because I do not wish to exaggerate the situation. There
was also quite a substantial lapse in time in the information getting from
the companies to the doctors and then to the patients. I am aware of many
cases in which this did happen and I am wondering whether, in the light of
the fact that we are using so many more new and very potent drugs, a review
of the procedure of leaving this up to the manufacturers is not necessary. After
all, the manufacturer, and I am not being critical at the moment, is interested
in selling his drugs and may not be in such a hurry, as would the department,
in transmitting this information. I am wondering whether the policy followed
now is sufficient unto itself, particularly in light of recent developments.

Dr. MoRrReLL: Mr. Chairman, certainly in the light of hindsight I may say
that it probably is not sufficient. I think we are going to ask the minister
for authority in the regulations to remove certain investigational drugs, or
new drugs from the market and return them, at least to the new drug status,
when sufficient evidence is available to indicate that something should be done.

In respect of the thalidomide incident, and in light of the knowledge we
had at that time, and the information that was supplied to us,—I think you
all have copies of the yellow book in respect of the information that was given
to us—I feel that there was no delay in taking the action that was provided
for in the Food and Drugs Act and regulations.

The CHAIRMAN: Excuse me, may I interrupt you for just a moment? This
yellow book can be obtained on request. This is the information with regard
to the thalidomide drug and is printed in two volumes.

Dr. MogrrReLL: The manufacturers met with our group on December 1 and
gave us very sketchy information as to what they had heard was happening
in Europe. Our reaction was to require them to give doctors this information
at once. On December 5, one company sent out a letter and on December 7,
the other company sent out a letter to all medical practitioners in Canada
warning them that thalidomide was not to be used, because it was contra-
indicated, in other words, in women of child bearing age. I think on looking
back on what I know, that warning was very effective, Mr. Orlikow, but
certainly hindsight is better than foresight.

We feel that some authority should be provided to require that a manufac-
turer recall a drug at once whenever the minister feels that there is sufficient
evidence criminating a drug, until the matter is cleared up.

I know that Dr. Brien’s committee has also suggested that we be given
authority to do this.

Mr. VALADE: Dr. Morrell, you just mentioned the term “sufficient evidence”
in respect of certain drugs. Is that not a term which involves an awful lot of
discussion?

Dr. MoRrreLL: And how!

Mr. VaLapE: I think one of the difficulties arises in regard to a decision as
to what is sufficient evidence and what is not sufficient evidence.

Dr. MorreLL: I do not think you can regulate in this regard, sir. I think
this has to be a matter of judgment which leans far backward.

Mr. OrLikow: If this involves a matter of judgment in your department,
then it becomes a very simple thing because then, depending upon what
happens, the public will be able to decide whether the judgment exercised
was proper or not. If this involves a matter of judgment diffused between your
department and the manufacturing companies, as seems to have been the case
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in the past, then how can anyone establish if a mistake has been made, when
it was made, where it was made and by whom it was made? It seems to me
this is an important matter, Mr. Chairman. I raise this matter in respect of
thalidomide not because of what has happened but because I feel that we
should surely learn some lesson for the future.

The CHAIRMAN: I think that is precisely the reason this committee was set
up.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Therefore, Mr. Chairman, has it not been established
sufficiently that judgment must be vested with the department? This does not
mean that there may never be medical action, at least from a local point of
view, but I think we have to be sure that the department has to widely use
its judgment when dealing with these requirements.

Mr. NIcHOLSON: It is my understanding, Mr. Chairman, that that is a
recommendation of the special committee.

The CHAIRMAN: That is right.

Mr. HARLEY: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask a few questions in regard
to control in Canada. We are concerned with safety, and it certainly does
influence the workings of the department. Do drug or manufacturing companies
have to prove or satisfy themselves not only as to the safety of a drug, but as
to its effectiveness in respect of the reason it is prescribed?

Dr. MorreLL: Dr. Harley and Mr. Chairman, safety is, as you know, a
very relative term. First of all, I do not think the manufacturers can prove a
drug to be safe in the popular usage of that term. Safety is a relative term. In
respect of drugs it is never absolute, and to ask a manufacturer to prove that
his drug is safe I think would finally lead to the rejection of most drugs. So
that we really look for information as to any possible hazard or danger and
the evidence of such which turns up in the clinical trials and investigations of
the drug during the investigational period. This is the thing we really look for
primarily.

You cannot help but look for evidence also of effectiveness. I think this
goes along with your scrutiny of a new drug submission in respect of so-called
safety. We have been in the habit, of course, of looking for the effectiveness or
evidence of effectiveness which is claimed for it by the manufacturer, or will
be claimed for it when it is on the market. We have at times questioned the
evidence that is supplied in this respect but it has not been a prime considera-
tion. The prime consideration has been to get evidence as to the proper dosage,
proper use, and hazards that accompany its proper use as well as the warnings
and information that should go to the doctor in respect of the proper use of
the drug. The doctor who is going to administer the drug cannot do so unless
he knows when he should not give it and what to expect when he does give it.
This is what we are really looking for. We do not ask the manufacturer to prove
that his drug is effective, if you mean by “prove” that there is no doubt
about it.

I have thought about this often enough. If it is effective in 20 per cent of
the people you give it to, is that proof, and if it fails in the other 80 per cent
of a certain group, in respect of some types of diseases, this would be a
welcome addition, I think you would agree. So that we have got away from
refusing to admit a drug altogether on the basis of effectiveness.

I note that the Brien committee has made the recommendation that we
should require in our regulations “substantial evidence” rather than proof of
the effectiveness of a drug.

Mr. HARLEY: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask one follow-up question.
Perhaps this should be answered by individuals of your staff who review these
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submissions, but I was wondering whether in the study there is a placebo
test, so that some idea can be gained as to whether the drug is effective or not?

Dr. MoRReLL: I am afraid they do not, Doctor Harley, but if you wish
details in this regard you will have to ask some of the individuals who do the
reviews themselves.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you like to reserve that question until we have
individuals familiar with this situation before us?

Dr. MorrerLL: Doctor Pugsley and Doctor Murphy are both here, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. HARLEY: Mr. Chairman, perhaps it would be of information to some
members of this committee if I explained that “placebo” means the use of
a substance of no chemical action at all, involving the use of a capsule or
tablet containing sugar instead of a drug in order to see if there is any reac-
tion to it.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you like to ask any question in that regard?
Dr. MorreLL: The answer to your question is, not always.

Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask Dr.
Morrell whether or not teratogenic studies are required in respect of new
drug submissions particularly where the new drugs are associated with women
of child bearing ages?

Dr. MorreLL: Teratogenic studies were not required prior to the develop-
ment of thalidomide.

Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): Are they required now?
Dr. MorgeLL: Yes, not by regulation but by administration.

Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): I should like to ask a supplementary ques-
tion. Is there a reasonably good study in this regard which can be standardized?

Dr. MorreLL: The answer is no. I do not think that you can predict from
animal tests what will happen in humans. It is true that several groups of
people have been able to produce malformed rabbits in litters, the mothers
of which have had thalidomide in high doses, but this has not been uniformally
obtained. Other people have been unsuccessful. Several at least have been
successful in this regard.

One of our projects, and I am sure a project that is being studied by a
great many people not only in industry but in universities, is aimed at defin-
ing some reliable teratogenic tests which can be done on animals, embryos or
tissues.

Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): I have just one further simple question. Do
manufacturing firms having large submissions of new drugs have to pay a
substantial fee for these processes?

Dr. MorgreLL: No, sir, they pay nothing.

Mr. Barpwin: Mr. Chairman, I was interested in that exchange between
Doctor Morrell, Doctor Orlikow and Mr. Valade. In this respect I should like
to point out that I have noted from reading the regulations that regulation
C.01.303 provides that no person shall sell a new drug where certain material
changes are made in the conditions of use, labelling, pharmaceutical form,
dosage, strength, quality or purity for manufacturing methods or facilities for
control, and I wondered whether we could achieve the purpose behind this
discussion by adding thereto, that if it becomes apparent to the manufacturer,
or if he discovers that there are side effects or contra-indications, that did not
appear in the new drug submission or in the original investigation, that he
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shall automatically be prohibited from selling it. Would that be a fair and
practical way of solving this problem?
Dr. MorreLL: Do you mean automatically prohibiting it forever?

Mr. BALDWIN: Oh, no, I imagine this would be subject to the regulations,
and I am sure that any schedule added to the legislation must be flexible. I am
just suggesting that possibly it should be required of a manufacturer which
becomes aware of side effects or contra-indications to cease selling the drug
because of an automatic prohibition under section C.01.303, perhaps until
further direction from the department.

Dr. MorreLL: That would be possible, I am sure.

Mr. BALpwiN: I wanted to go a step further. Do you think it would be
fair and practical to do so?

Dr. MorreLL: We have always considered, and I know that this is past
history, perhaps, although there has been some good basis for it, that a doctor
should be allowed to use a drug providing he is told of all the dangers. He
knows then how to use it. As soon as a new side effect it discovered, if he is
informed at once, and I mean within a week at the most, then the doctor can
continue to use it.

You know that thalidomide is not the only drug that has had a series of side
effects. Many well known useful and powerful drugs have been on the market,
some of them for four or five years, before it was found that there are certain
conditions, or certain groups of people to whom you should not give these
drugs because it is dangerous to them and may kill them and, in fact, it has
killed some people. As soon as this is known, or we are made aware of this,
the manufacturer is required to make this information available at once to all
people who are using the drug.

If it is a drug on prescription the only people who are using it legally, at
least, are those people who are using it under a doctor’s order. We feel that
it is up to the medical profession to make their own decisions. There may be
conditions in which they have to weigh the evidence. They perhaps must ask
themselves: If I do not give it to the man he is going to die anyway but if I
do give it there is this danger; which should I do under the circumstances?
This is up to the practitioner, I think.

I suppose we could adopt a certain regulation such as you have suggested,
but I do not know just how it would work. I am trying to visualize a case in
which it would so work.

Mr. BALDWIN: I was not thinking so much of the medical profession. My
mind was directed particularly toward the results of your discussions with the
manufacturing or pharmaceutical houses which become aware of some side
effects or contra-indications so that the prohibition to sell would become auto-
matically applicable to the manufacturer.

Dr. MorreLL: It might be useful if the prohibition were to the effect that
he should not sell it until he gave this information to the public and the medical
profession. There might be some value in it in that way.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Doctor Morrell, did I understand you correctly to say that
on December 5 and again on December 7 a notice went out to all medical
practitioners in Canada in respect of thalidomide?

Dr. MorgreLL: Yes. There were two companies involved, as you know.

Mr. NI1cHOLSON: Yes.

Dr. MoRRELL: One company got their letter out on December 5 and the
other company got a very similar letter out on December 7, addressed to all
practitioners in Canada.

Mr. NicHOoLsON: Did you see the letters in these cases?
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Dr. MorreLL: I saw copies of them, yes.

Mr. NICHOLSON: Were they sent in such a form that the doctor could
not help but have his attention directed to the importance of the situation?

Dr. MogrreLL: I thought they were sent in a proper manner. They were
sent in a long envelope, and it is true that the manufacturers’ name I think
was on the corner, but also in large bold faced type at the lower left hand
corner was printed: “IMPORTANT DRUG WARNING”. This was to call to
their attention not to throw it unto the waste paper basket.

Mr. HARLEY: Apropos of that I can give Mr. Nicholson copies of it.
Mr. FAIRWEATHER: I would like copies of all of them.

Mr. VaLaDE: I have a question on administration. Dr. Morrell, how many
persons do you have that are responsible to you in the directorate?

Dr. MoRreLL: In the whole directorate? They are not all concerned with
drugs.
Mr. VALADE: I mean just those concerned with drugs.

Dr. MoORRELL: About 40 per cent of our staff works on drugs, and 40
per cent of 400 would be around 160.

Mr. VaLabpE: Did you make an estimate as to the required minimum
number of persons that your directorate would need in order to comply with
the necessities?

Dr. MorreLL: It would be difficult to say.
Mr. VALADE: Let us say the minimum necessities.

Dr. MorreLL: I was told a while ago, and I think it made pretty good
sense, that if you ask the chief of police how many policemen he needs, he
always needs more, but if you ask the mayor, he or she may not be in
agreement with it.

Mr. Hamasz: I would like to ask Dr. Morrell a question. In view of his
experience with this drug thalidomide, what, in his opinion, should some of
the new regulations in the Food and Drugs Act be and which of them should
be legislated?

Dr. MorreLL: If we start at the beginning, there should be some changes
in C.01.307 which is the section related to the control and investigation of
drugs. I think we should have authority to demand all information that
the manufacturer has at that time. In many cases he has more information
than he gives to us. I think the regulation says that all he needs to do is to
give us an identifying name in respect to the drug. However, I think we ought
to have the authority to say that this is not enough and that we want to
know the exact composition. If the manufacturer has not got it, then we want
to know something about the nature of the drug, for example, if it is an
extract of glands, or else we would like to have the exact chemical composition.
He can give us a great deal more information.

Secondly, I think we should have a little closer check on the selection
of qualified investigators. It will be difficult I think to define in any regulation
what a qualified investigator is because there is such a variety of them that
I do not think it would fit a regulation, but something will have to be worked
out in this respect to improve what we now have.

Thirdly, I think perhaps we should know in advance to whom the manu-
facturer is going to send his drug for investigation, whether it be a clinical
trial or some other trial. I presume that the minister would have authority
to disagree with the manufacturer’s proposal if that was thought to be necessary.
Certainly, during this stage of investigation the manufacturer himself should
have adequate controls to standardize the drug, at least to a certain extent.
This is something that we suspect is not always known.
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Finally, I think we should have authority to stop a clinical trial promptly
at any stage in the investigation if the minister finds that there is some danger
to the public resulting from this clinical trial.

The CHAIRMAN: Could I interrupt for one second, Dr. Morrell? Do you
have an example where some of these regulations that you would like to have
put into effect were not put into effect because of the law? Let us take as
an example the Liefcort situation in Montreal with Dr. Liefman. Were you
hampered in any way in putting your mechanics into effect because of the
regulations?

Dr. MorreLL: I think we were hampered to a certain extent. It revolves
largely around what is a qualified investigator. I think we disagreed with
Dr. Liefman’s definition of the qualified investigator. This was one of the
hampering features in dealing with that problem.

Mr. OrLiIkOW: Did you have the authority to tell Dr. Liefman, and to
make stick, what you considered were qualified investigators, failing which
he could not really put his drug on the market?

Dr. MorreLL: Not really, Mr. Orlikow. I know we do not define in the
regulations a qualified investigator so it becomes a question for a magistrate
to decide. The actual objection we had to the so-called study that Dr. Liefman
was undertaking was based on the fact that the reports from the investigators
that had been returned to him were unsatisfactory under the terms of sec-
tion C.01.307.

Mr. Hamasz: Mr. Chairman, could Dr. Morrell tell us what is the present
status of the drug Liefcort? Has the department recommended to the govern-
ment to put it on schedule H, or are they still studying this problem?

Dr. MorreLL: The present status of Liefcort is that it may not be used
by anybody else but by Dr. Liefman. Dr. Liefman is now a qualified licensed
medical practitioner and we feel that we cannot interfere in his practice,
but no one else except Dr. Liefman is to use the product. Actually, the product
itself labelled as such is not now distributed. He can, of course, prescribe
to his own patients any medication or treatment that he sees fit.

Mr. Hamasz: I have one more question on the drug Liefcort. Does the
director or does the department feel that the drug Liefcort is safe for humans?

Dr. MorreLL: That is a difficult question. Evidence has not been presented
that it is. We felt at the time that we were examining the files of Dr. Liefman
that there were no reports on the side effects which we would anticipate from
our knowledge of the drug at that time. We had to analyse that drug to find
out what was in it, and when we knew what was in it we felt that there
was not the kind of information we could anticipate, in the report. We have
read about the side reactions since, but in so far as we are aware from the
information we have we could not say that it was safe or really unsafe. If
we took the evidence available to us, it seemed to be safe, but we were still
suspicious because of what we considered the inadequate information that
was presented.

Mr. PATTERSON: Dr. Morrell, you made reference to the studies that had
been carried out by Dr. Liefman in connection with that particular drug. I
wonder if there is any significance in the fact that you qualified that reference
and said “so-called studies”.

Dr. MogrreLL: I did not feel that they were proper, thorough and suitable
studies to demonstrate what we expected them to demonstrate. I do not think
he could have ever submitted a new drug submission that would be acceptable
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on the type of results that we saw he was getting from the drug. I also felt
that the studies were not thorough or real studies.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Dr. Morrell, in one or two of the regulations, in at least
one, C.01.307, the expression “qualified investigator” appears. Now, it is not
uncommon in legislation to see a term such as magistrate, or police officer,
but when you put an adjective to determine whether a person is qualified or
not, you cannot ask a judge to do it. Surely, the use of the term “qualified
investigator” implies something when it appears in the regulations.

Dr. MorreLL: It is a good question. It is one that we have often debated:
What is a qualified investigator for a particular job? If a drug is reputed to be
useful in the treatment of cancer, for example, I think a qualified investigator
dealing with the drug would be a man who is specializing perhaps in internal
medicine.

He would certainly have to have the services of a pathologist. He would
have to know definitely whether the tumour was malignant or whether it was
not. In other words, he would have to diagnose whether it was cancer and
what type of cancer it was. He would have to be a man with experience and
with the facilities to measure any improvement in the condition of the patient.
There are many things that be would have to have at his disposal as well as
experience and knowledge to be what we would consider a qualified investiga-
tor. I would suppose if it was a question of a drug that is going to be recom-
mended for the treatment of, let us say arthritis or rheumatism, the qualified
investigator would best be one who is associated with the clinic that makes a
specialty of the study of rheumatic diseases and who has all the facilities at
his disposal to measure the improvement and to diagnose the illness so as to
be sure he is starting out with something that is really rheumatism, to discover,
what type of rheumatism, and one who has all the facilities necessary to
measure improvement if there is improvement.

Mr. NicHOLsSON: In view of what you said, do you not think then the
definition of qualified investigator should be written either into the act or into
the regulations?

Dr. MorreLL: We are going to try to do it.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Would it not be better to have it written in, in spite of
the difficulties?

Dr. MorreLL: But if something came up suddenly that was not there,
we would have to run to the minister to get an amendment.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: Would you not agree that that would be better than
having a general term of this nature?

Dr. MorgreLL: It would make it easier to administer.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: It seems to me that this is an extremely important point
because unless the department has the authority either through the regulations
or just through practices, to exert a very large extent of influence, if not
control, on what is proper investigation, then it seems to me that the only
other alternative, in order to get protection for the public, is to write into
the law the actual controls. This is what they seem to be doing in the United
States, and many competent doctors feel they are going too far. However,
it does seem to me that, difficult as it may be, this is essential. One competent
investigator suggested to me that people doing the initial investigation should
be full-time people working in a hospital or in a research set-up, and that
really part-time people, in the initial stages at least, are not either qualified
or not directly enough concerned to do the adequate testing which is required.
Yet, he seemed to indicate in his letter that on occasion testing has been

fione in companies by part-time people who just are not qualified to do the
initial testing at least.
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The CHAIRMAN: Can I make one suggestion?

Mr. Orrikow: I was just going to say, Mr. Chairman, that while I agree
with Dr. Morrell and Mr. Nicholson that this may be a difficult objective to
reach, it is a must if the department is really going to be able to do the job
which is required.

The CHAIRMAN: Before Mr. Harley asks a question, I wonder if Dr.
Morrell could relate to us the Liefcort incident? How was it brought to his
attention, what happened and what did the department do about it? We might
like to have a look at a specific case. Would that be difficult?

Dr. MoRrRrReLL: When was it brought to our attention? I am not sure I
can tell you right now.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps Mr. Harley could ask his question and your
assistant can think about it.

Mr. HARLEY: What I wanted to know of Dr. Morrell is whether he could
give us some idea at the present time as to how much control work the food
and drug directorate actually has. You mentioned that you eventually analyzed
Leifcort and found its contents were such and such. I wonder if you could
give the committee some actual idea of how much of that type of work you
do and how much of it is strictly a quantity measurement rather than a
quality measurement.

Dr. MorreLL: Mr. Chairman, the control work we do is certainly not
confined to new drugs, and I presume you want me to discuss the whole of it.
The number of drugs sold has been estimated from simply counting the number
of items advertised or presented for sale in manufacturers’ catalogues and
distributors’ catalogues, so you can see the basis of it. There are about 25,000 or
more pharmaceutical products. These are not separate or distinct entities
but are pharmaceutical products on the market. The same drug of course may
be sold as a tablet, a capsule, in a solution or otherwise, but we would
call all of them separate products. I have been told the Canadian pharmaceutical
manufacturers association has said that they produce about 75,000 batches a
year of all of their products. Then, there are those manufacturers which do
not belong to the pharmaceutical manufacturers association, so I am not
able to estimate how many batches there would be from them. I would
estimate the number is much smaller than the one I have given. As I have
said, our function is a police function, and we go to the wholesaler or manu-
facturer usually, but occasionally to the retail pharmacy and purchase samples
of drugs. We bring them back to the laboratory and they are then analyzed.
They are analyzed quantitatively.

When we do the testing of narcotics, for example for the R.C.M.P. when
they want to know whether it is heroin or another narcotic, we do not have
to tell them how much. However, when we analyze a solution or a capsule
or a tablet, we would have to know the quantity because it is related to the
strength and standard under which the drug is sold. In this case a quantitative
analysis is made. There may be several ingredients contained in the drug,
so of course a quantitative analysis of all of these ingredients is necessary to
know whether the composition at least meets the standard.

Then, there is the second aspect which is required by the regulations: is
the drug available to the patient. In other words, if the patient swallows a
pill, will it eventually dissolve in his intestines or will it pass right through
without solution. There are requirements for the disintegration time of various
tablets. A tablet is put through this test to see if it meets the requirements. We
do 2,500 to 3,000 analyses of drugs in a year. These of course are aimed at
particular areas in which we have reason to be suspicious. They are not just
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drawn blindly from any drug on the market because we feel it is necessary
to make our efforts tell as much as possible.

Then we do some imports of drugs either in bulk or in finished form, and
I cannot give you the number of samples that they take in this area.

Mr. HarLEy: I was just wondering whether you would have a rough idea
of how many of those samples were up to standard and how many were
sub-standard?

Dr. MorreLL: I think that two or three years ago I did make a study of
the number that did not meet the requirements in every respect. Now, I
want to make it clear that the requirements are spelled out mathematically.
If you have a five grain tablet, let us say, you cannot have less than 95 per cent
and more than 105 per cent of the five grains in the tablet. I think in that
study, if I remember correctly, very close to 30 per cent did not meet the
requirements in every way. A great proportion of these did not meet the
requirements in a minor way. In those cases the manufacturer was warned.
When it was 80 per cent or 70 per cent or somé other lesser or even greater
percentage, the product was removed from the market. We feel these to be
the most effective means of protection. I think it is also an effective lesson
for the manufacturer because he may stand to lose many thousands of dollars
in his product.

Mr. Rynarp: Dr. Morrell, I was wondering how many import drugs you
hold up and for how long? What would your average be?

Dr. MorreLL: I can get that information for you but I cannot answer
it immediately.

Mr. RyNARD: My second question is: how many drugs do you let in on
a special permit through the Food and Drugs Act?

Dr. MorgreLL: We have no such thing.

Mr. Rynarp: I am going back to the time when there were drugs that
were on the market in the United States, for instance, and you could get a
special permission to use that drug through the Food and Drugs Act. I am
thinking particularly, and you will recall this, of Thiouracil. Quite a long
time elapsed here in Canada before it came in. Could you get special permis-
sion if you were satisfied that this drug on record in the United States where
it was used was a good drug?

Dr. MoRreLL: I presume, Dr. Rynard, you got it yourself. If a drug
were directed to Dr. Rynard, there was a time when we said: “let it go”. If
it came to a manufacturer or to a wholesaler, then we stopped it.

Mr. RynNARrD: In other words, you did not hold up any clinical work from
a medical standpoint?

Mr. OrrLikow: I would like to get back to this other question which
Mr. Nicholson began. Despite the difficulties, what was the thinking of the
department on this question of trying to be more specific about what would
be considered qualified investigators?

Dr. MorgeLL: I think we must do something about it, but I cannot give you
a definition.

Mr. OrLIKOW: You are not at that stage yet.

Mr. VALADE: Is it possible to make a schedule that would place qualified
investigators in a certain category without being absolute about it? This would
define certain basic qualifications in certain fields of medicine.

Dr. MorgreLL: Probably. I would think, Mr. Chairman, that we would
consult with the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons or the Canadian
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medical association or the society of clinical investigation or some other medical
group when we tried to make such a definition.

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: I am interested in what I might call the international
warning system. It intrigues me that for instance in many areas of defence
we have this system but is there an early warning system in this phase of our
life as well?

Dr. MorreLL: There is not yet established an early warning system, but
the department of national health representative at the Geneva world health
organization meeting last May initiated and co-sponsored a resolution which
was adopted I think by the world health organization’s general assembly, which
asked the world health organization to study this matter with a view to making
some recommendation toward setting up such a system. I do not know what
action has been taken.

Mr. MoONTEITH: Mr. Chairman, is there not supposed to be a report at the
next meeting of the W.H.O. in- this regard? Perhaps Doctor Cameron could
give us this information.

Dr. G. D. W. CAMERON (Deputy Minister of National Health and Welfare):
Mr. Chairman, that is being considered by the executive board of W.H.O. at the
present time. We are a member of the executive board. Doctor Layton is there
and this matter is being dealt with.

Mr. HOrNER (Jasper-Edson): I should like to ask Doctor Morrell as to the
present status of LSD. It is, as I understand, included in schedule H, but it
is available to qualified investigators, is that right?

Dr. MorreLL: That is essentially correct, yes. In the case of LSD a qualified
investigator is restricted in the sense that he must be working in an institution
approved by the minister.

Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): May I just suggest that we may probably
get some policy in regard to a definition of a qualified investigator by question-
ing some of the individuals who will be coming before us at a later date.

The CHAIRMAN: I hope the committee will keep that thought in mind.

Mr. NicuHOLsON: Mr. Chairman, I should like to suggest that perhaps we
give those individuals advance notice of our intention to ask for their assistance
in this definition rather than taking them by surprise as was Doctor Morrell
this morning.

The CHAIRMAN: I might say that anyone who it is proposed to call before
this committee will receive copies of the proceedings of this committee so that
they will be informed as to what is happening.

Mr. OrLikow: Will this be done on a regular basis, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: I am trying to set it up on a regular basis, but I will of
necessity require a motion from this committee to print additional copies of
its proceedings in view of the fact that we do not now have sufficient numbers
to follow such a practice.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: Doctor Morrell, during recent months, probably because
of the thalidomide and LSD situations, attention has been directed toward the
dangers or adverse effect of new drugs. What about the good side effects of
new drugs, and I think that as an example we could refer to dramamine; is
this left to the individual practitioner to report it to you or to report it to
the drug manufacturers? When a drug being used for one purpose is discovered
by accident to have good medicinal qualities for some entirely different purpose,
how is that information brought to the attention of the professions?

Dr. MorreLL: The clinician who has discovered this new use should report
it to the manufacturer, or report it to the medical journal.
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Mr. NicHOLSON: Should he not report it to you?
Dr. MorreLL: No, he does not report it to us.

Mr. NicHOLSON: This involves an article in the medical journal or a report
to the manufacturer?

Dr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. MONTEITH: Mr. Chairman, I should like to correct one statement
which may have been somewhat misleading. I think Doctor Morrell mentioned
that 30 per cent of drugs were found defective in some minor form or another.
Actually this should be 30 per cent of a selected list of drugs in respect of
which there was some general thought that something could be wrong, or there
was some suspicion about the drug, is that not right?

Dr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. MonTEITH: It was not 30 per cent of all drugs that were found to be
in this category, but 30 per cent of a selected list in respect of which there was
some suspicion.

Dr. MorreLL: I would hope, Mr. Chairman, that I made that clear but
apparently I did not. I said that these drugs were selected for particular
reasons. We did not take the drugs off the market without having some particular
suspicion or some real reason for thinking that enforcement was needed in this
area. I pointed out that some of these defects were minor ones, and many were
minor ones, so that the impression should not be given that 30 per cent of all
drugs in Canada are defective because they are not. These were selected, as
I say, with care, in order to make the most use of our man power.

Mr. MonTEITH: It was 30 per cent of that selected group that were found
defective in some minor ways?

Dr. MORRELL: Yes.

Mr. Hamasz: Mr. Chairman, I should like to direct another question to
Doctor Morrell. Leaving the topic of qualified investigators, the next individuals
down the line I presume are the distributors. What are the present regulations
in force which are imposed on distributors and manufacturers? In other words,
do they have to be licensed? Do you have to know who they are, or do they have
to obtain a permit from your department? How are they allowed to carry on
their business in this country?

Dr. MorReLL: Are you referring to these people in a commercial sense,
Doctor Haidasz?

Mr. Hapasz: Yes.

Dr. MorreLL: They do not have to notify us in general. They are not
licensed in general. Licences are required for certain groups of drugs which are
listed in schedules C and D of the Food and Drugs Act. In addition, licences
are required for the manufacture, importation and distribution of controlled
drugs and by controlled drugs I mean drugs containing amphetamine or
barbiturates, which we have in schedule G, some of the hormones, and schedule
D which includes injectable antibiotics, vaccines and serums. No one may sell
a drug of that type in Canada unless he has been licensed to manufacture them
for sale here. This licence is granted under the Food and Drugs Act following
an inspection of the manufacturers’ premise, a study of the facilities, and when
the manufacturer is licensed, the first batch or several batches are released only
after repeated tests are carried out in departmental laboratories.

In respect to schedule G drugs, and these were ones that were implicated in
the goof-ball sales in the illicit market; since September, 1961, to deal in these,

K} import or to export, one must have a licence under the Food and Drugs
ct.
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Then in respect of other types of drugs that are not specifically dealt with
under the Food and Drugs Act, but are specifically dealt with under the Narcotic
Control Act, all drugs that are listed in the Narcotic Control Act as narcotic
drugs, must be sold and handled only after a licence is obtained.

Then there is the Proprietary or Patent Medicine Act which is also ad-
ministered by the food and drug directorate, and in this case a manufacturer may
ask for a registation of his fomula and, if granted, he will be licensed.

Mr. Hamasz: Following this question up, Doctor Morrell, could Doctor
Liefman be interpreted or recognized as a manufacturer of Liefcort?

Dr. MorreLL: Well, he at one time had a company called the Endocrine
Research Laboratories which was for the purpose of manufacturing Liefcort,
and I think he was, therefore, a manufacturer of Liefcort.

Mr. Hampasz: Did he have a licence from your department?
Dr. MogrreLL: No, he had no licence from our department.
Mr. Haipasz: Liefcort contains cortisone, does it not?

Dr. MogrreLL: It was manufactured as an investigational drug. It was only
in the investigational stage, Doctor Haidasz. He had not come to the point
where he was manufacturing it commercially.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, at the extensive hearings which were held
in the United States one of the problems which became obvious was the
problem in respect of drug companies naturally being interested in getting
their products on the market as quickly as possible. I am wondering whether
there ought not to be more control or the right of control by the department
enabling it to insist that there be more thorough and detailed clinical trials
before the distribution of a drug is allowed, and if Doctor Morrell thinks that
necessary, would the regulations have to be changed to give that authority?

Dr. MorreLL: Mr. Chairman, I think that would be a matter of judgment as
to whether adequate clinical trials had already been done. I would like to point
out in this connecton that most of our new drugs, and perhaps all types, do
not originate in Canada but originate abroad or in the United States, and the
majority of new drug submissions that we receive contain clinical trials, or
the results of clinical trials that were carried out in other countries. This is a
matter that was certainly referred to by the committee of the Royal College,
."a\nd I think recommendations were made by Doctor Brien and his committee
n respect of clinical trials which will have to be studied very carefully.

Perhaps I ought to say here that all new drug submissions that come in
are not always satisfactory. I would say that more than half of them are sent
back with a request for additional information; certainly more than half. I think
we have in all at least 52 new drug submissions that have never been accepted,
and we have a great many as a matter of fact, in respect of which the acceptance
has been delayed for over a year after they were received because we have
demanded, (and in this case we can demand) from the manufacturer that he
supplement the information he has given us by further clinical testing in cer-
tain aspects. A great many of them are held up for this reason for up to a year.

In other words, a manufacturer who sends in a new drug submission will
not always—will not often get his new drug submission accepted within a
matter of a month or two.

Mr. HARLEY: Doctor Morrell, I should like to change the subject for one
moment.and go back to an earlier reference to a change in the Food and Drugs
Agt panlcqlarly in respect of controlled drugs such as barbiturates and ampheta-
i!:llm;esﬁi think you suggested that this change necessitated a fairly large addition

staff?

Dr. MorgreLL: I believe it involved an addition of 21 individuals.
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Mr. Hartey: I wonder whether you could give us some idea of the problem
that was prevalent before this legislative change and the effect of this change
as it now appears?

Dr. MORRELL: Mr. Hammond is here, who administers this, and perhaps he
should answer it. I can give in general terms what I know about it.

Prior to the amendment to the Food and Drugs Act in 1961 and the setting
up of schedule G, these drugs were obtained only on prescription as they were
already in schedule F, and could legally be bought only on a doctor’s order.
I presume that the temptation and the demand for them in the illicit market was
sufficient to make it profitable and desirable for some people to obtain them in
whatever way they could and peddle them on the street corners or in the taverns,
or wherever they were sold.

This was a difficult matter for the police to handle because there was no
such thing as illegal possession, and if you had a pocketful of nembutals, you
did not have to tell them where you got them. I think the only offence in this
regard then was to sell them if you were not selling them by prescription,
and you could be charged then under the Food and Drugs Act in respect of
that illegal sale.

This was not very satisfactory because there was not a very strong penalty
applied in these cases. The matter grew to considerable proportions in certain
cities in Canada. In view of this circumstance the Food and Drugs Act was
amended to provide for schedule G.

Now before you can sell a barbiturate you have to have a licence, from
either the province to practice medicine or to practice pharmacy, and as a manu-
facturer, importer or wholesaler you must be licensed by the Department of
National Health and Welfare, in order to deal in these drugs. In addition, you
must keep thorough records of what you buy and what you sell and to whom
you sell, so that this makes it possible for the department with a proper staff to
examine the records at the wholesale, retail and manufacturing level and to
audit them and give the information to the department which can be examined
to see that the manufacturers are accounting for the products they buy and the
ultimate sales to the various people. I think there is no doubt about this having
had a satisfactory effect in lessening, if not altogether stopping this illicit traffic
in such things as barbiturates and amphetamines. Mr. Hammond will know
the details of this.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you like to hear from Mr. Hammond in this regard,
Doctor Harley?

Mr. HARLEY: I will leave that to the committee.
The CHAIRMAN: We will hear from Mr. Nicholson first.

Mr. NicHOLSON: In the report of the special committee of the Royal College
there appears the recommendation that more testing be done by universities
and by research councils in order to assist you in your work. Are you using
universities in this regard now, Doctor Morrell?

Dr. MoRReLL: Are you referring to clinical testing?
Mr. NicHOLSON: Yes.

Dr. MorreLL: I think the manufacturers have succeeded in getting some of
the universities to take an interest in the clinical testing of new drugs.

; Mr. NicHoLsoN: Does your department use the facilities of universities
in this regard at all for clinical testing?

Dr. MorreLL: No.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: Do you use these facilities if there is a dispute of any
kind?



52 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Dr. MorreLL: We do not do clinical testing, Mr. Nicholson. This is a
responsibility of the manufacturers. If we do not like the manufacturer’s
clinical test we tell the manufacturer or hold up his drug application
which forces the manufacturer to do further work in this regard.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Have you any idea of the extent to which manufacturers
and pharmacists are using the facilities of universities for clinical testing?

Dr. MorreLL: I cannot give you any figure as to the extent.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Is there any member of your staff who would have that
information?

Dr. L. I. PugsLEY (Associate Director): We have not any records of the
extent to which this is done, but normally hospitals and hospitals attached to
universities do the clinical trials in the majority of instances.

The CHAIRMAN: I would think that when the pharmaceutical association
appears before us we will receive more detail in this regard.

Mr. ORLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, before we hear from Doctor Morrell’s assist-
ant, I should like to point out that I have a report before me from a committee
of the Canadian medical association on pharmacy which was made I think last
year or the year before, in which they suggested that the special controls on
barbiturates and amphetamines, which were put in for what would appear
to be good reasons, have in fact induced doctors to write prescriptions for
alternatives for which in fact we know there has been less clinical testing and
in respect of which we know less, and we may be worse off in some ways
than we were before. I am not an expert and am just attempting to summarize
what is said in this report. I know that these matters are not too easy to
deal with but I am wondering in the light of our experience since these
regulations were amended, whether any thought has been given as to the
results.

Mr. R. C. HAmMoOND (Chief of the Narcotic Control Division): Mr. Chair-
man, undoubtedly there may be some occasions where physicians may decide
to use another type of drug other than a controlled drug, but there is nothing
in the legislation or our controlling measures which in any way deters the
physician from using these drugs for medical purposes. We have had no
indication that to any extent the physicians have been concerned in this
way. In fact, the evidence has been just the opposite. We have heard many
remarks emanating from the profession which indicates that they welcome
the control.

Mr. OrLiIkOW: I was not trying to suggest the opposite, but only wanted to
suggest that some of the drugs which are being used instead of barbiturates
or amphetamines are not subject to the same controls. In other words, a
patient does not have to get a new prescription every time. Does this situation
create a problem?

Mr. HavvionD: It is possible that some problems have been created in this
regard.

Mr. Hamasz: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask the director a question
in respect of imported drugs. Are there any provisions in the act or regulations
which require the food and drugs department to carry out the provisions
of investigating a drug such as apply to drug manufacturers in Canada?

Dr. MORRELL: Are you speaking of new drugs or any drug?

Mr. Hamasz: I am referring to new drugs and any drugs that are imported.
Are they subject to the investigations in respect of drugs manufactured in
Canada?

Dr. MorreLL: There are several classes of drugs that are dealt with in dif-
ferent ways. If it is a new drug that has been developed in a foreign country,

e
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and that might include the United States, very often a great deal of the '}n-
vestigative work is done in the foreign country. This is the country in which
the manufacturer has his research staff and has his hospital and university
connections, and it becomes a matter of habit and custom for him to carry
out the basic work at least in that country. In many cases when a new drug
submission comes in we find that little if any clinical or pharmaceutical test-
ing has been done in Canada. We have been asking for ten years or more that
such a drug be tested in Canada, certainly clinically. That is, we have asked
that some testing be done here. I think that as a result of the pressure that we
have exerted over the years, more and more clinical trials are being carried
out in Canada.

There is nothing in the act or regulations that demands that clinical trials
must be carried out in Canada.

In respect of ordinary drugs or drugs that are not classed as new drugs,
and there are those that are manufactured, as I said before, under licence,
and I refer now to those that are listed in schedules C and D of the act,
including such drugs as have been listed in schedule C, liver extract injectable,
liver extract injectable with other medication, liver extract injectable crude,
liver extract injectable crude with other medication, insulin, insulin made from
zinc-insulin crystals, globin insulin with zine, insulin zinc suspension, N.P.H.
insulin, isophane insulin, protamine zinc insulin, anterior pituitary extracts
and radioactive isotopes and under schedule D, living vaccines for oral or
parenteral use, drugs prepared from micro-organisms or viruses for parenteral
use, sera and drugs analogous thereto for parenteral use, and antibiotics for
parenteral use; these can only be sold in Canada by a manufacturer licenced
by the department under the Food and Drugs Act to do so. This implies that
before they receive a licence their premises, personnel and facilities are in-
spected by departmental inspectors making visits.

Mr. Hamasz: Do the inspectors visit Europe?

Dr. MorreLL: The inspector makes a visit to Europe if the manufacturer
is in Europe and to the United States if it is manufactured in the United States.
The inspector then makes a report which, if satisfactory, leads to the renewal
of a licence. If it is a new drug that is to be licenced it must be a new drug
submission. That means they must be inspected before they can get their
licence. After this process is completed, then they may be licenced if the report
of the facilities and all the rest of it is satisfactory and up to our standards.
So that in that case I would say that the control of the foreign manufacturer
is nearly equivalent to that of the domestic manufacturer. I say “nearly” be-
cause perhaps he is not quite as close and does not get as frequent inspections.
The foreign manufacturer is usually inspected once a year, and certainly not
less than once every two years. The local manufacturer in Canada or in
the United States who has a licence is certainly inspected every year. The
foreign manufacturer is inspected not less than once every two years, cer-
tainly every two years or more frequently.

In respect of the other drugs, the general pharmaceutical specialties, we do
not have the authority to require, in our regulations, an inspection of the
premises, and our studies must be made on the product as it reaches Canada.

Have I made myself clear?

Mr. HAamasz: Yes. I should like to ask a supplementary question. In your
view, Doctor Morrell, do you not think that in the interest of Canadians
and in fairness to the Canadian pharmaceutical manufacturers, all imported
drugs should undergo the same review as domestic drugs?

Dr. MoRrreLL: Yes, essentially I think that is correct, and the Food and

Drugs Act really applies equally to any product sold in Canada whatever its
origin. I think that is essentially correct.
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Mr. Hamnasz: These regulations are not in force yet?

Dr. MorreLL: We do not have them as yet, no.

Mr. Hampasz: Do you think such regulations should be in force?

Dr. MorreLL: Yes, I think it would be very useful to have such regulations
in force.

Mr. VALADE: Is it possible, Doctor Morrell, to have the same treatment,
tests and conditions which apply in this country apply to foreign manufacturers
of drugs?

Dr. MoRReELL: Are you referring to the same inspection procedures, for
example?

Mr. VALADE: Yes.

Dr. MorreLL: I think it should be possible if they want to sell their
drugs in Canada. I think they should be prepared to undergo the same controls
as apply in respect of our domestic manufacturers.

Mr. VALADE: My question is based on the potential possibility that in a
country of say 40 million people there certainly would exist a greater possi-
bility for clinical tests than in this country of only 18 million people with
perhaps a proportionate number of medical people.

Dr. MorreLL: I suggest this depends on the country you refer to, sir. I
have been in countries where there are four or five times the number of people
that are in Canada and I can assure you that the controls are nowhere near
as rigid as ours. However, in other countries which are smaller their tests
and controls are as good as ours.

Mr. VALADE: I should like to ask a follow-up question in respect of a
subject referred to earlier. I think you said before that your department
licensed drugs and not manufacturers?

Dr. MorgreLL: I think that is correct.

Mr. VALADE: I am wondering whether it would be advantageous in respect
of the control of drugs to have your department license drug manufacturers
as well as drugs. This would not remove the control or licensing of drugs them-
selves but would add to the control by the imposition of certain responsibilities
upon manufacturers under licence, making them subject to the normal rules
and regulations.

Dr. MoORRELL: Are you suggesting that the manufacturer should be licensed
for all of his products?

Mr. VALADE: Yes, and then that would not, as I say, cancel out the
requirements for licensing drugs individually.

Dr. MorreLL: The basic legal question here could be answered by Mr.
Curran.

Mr. CuRRAN: On this question of licensing the manufacturer Mr. Baldwin
might have something to say. Our legislation is the criminal law and it does
not include the right for licensing a trade or a profession. We can license a
product under particular conditions, as we have done, but the general licensing
of the trade under the criminal law statute is not within our constitution.

Mr. VALADE: I thought that we licensed the medical men and by licensing
them we also licensed some medical corporations or medical organizations
such as the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons in the provinces of
Ontario and Quebec.

Mr. MonTEITH: That is a provincial matter.

Mr. VALADE: Yes, but would this involve only provincial legislation or
could it be done under federal legislation?
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Mr. CurRraN: In my view it would have to be done under provincial legisla-
tion, unless we changed the whole basic structure, in which case we would get
into a trade and commerce type of clause which means the provincial movement
of products. At the present time we are working under the criminal law which
has universal application in Canada, and if we change the basis we change the
whole structure of the control.

Mr. VaLapE: I have another question. Dr. Morrell said before that his
department has no legal authority to act in regard to offences against the rules
set by his department. Is that correct? Have you no authority to implement or
to stop the distributor of drugs or to stop a drug from being put on the market
if you feel that there might be danger in it? Is it true that you can just advise
but that you do not have the power to enforce this?

Dr. MorRELL: In the amendment that was passed last fall we have certainly
asked the minister to put that drug on schedule H which prohibits its sale
entirely.

Mr. VALADE: But only if it is on that schedule?

Dr. MoRRELL: There are other applications of this. If a product violates
some section of the existing regulations of the act—Ilet us forget schedule H—
then we have the power to seize it. For example, if a drug was found not to
meet the standard under which it is sold, and it might be twice as strong in
which case it is dangerous, we do have the power to seize these tablets or what-
ever they are and to have them destroyed or reworked. However, it must
violate some section of the act or some regulation. It is not because I do not
like it or I am afraid of it, but it must meet the requirements of the law, and
what we are here to do is to enforce the law as it exists. This is what we have
tried to do.

Mr. VALADE: I asked that question because I think it was not clear.

Mr. MonTEITH: I think it is fair to say, Mr. Chairman, that Dr. Morrell does
put before me every once in a while a submission that a certain quantity of a
certain drug, picked up under certain circumstances, which is other than as
advertised, should be destroyed, and this is done.

The CHAIRMAN: Before you go ahead, Dr. Horner, I should ask whether it
is in accordance with the wish of the committee that we close this meeting
at: 12:15.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Do we reconvene this afternoon?
The CHAIRMAN: Let us discuss this at 12:15.

Mr. HorRNER (Jasper-Edson): I would like to clarify the legal position here.
As I understood it earlier, all patent medicine manufacturers are registered or
licensed.

Dr. MorreLL: That is a voluntary thing. You do not have to register a
product but you may go and ask for registration.

Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): Let me get this clear. I can go out, make a
concoction and peddle it to drugstores without registering it with your de-
partment and without having a licence from you?

Dr. MorreLL: That is correct.

Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): How can your department have any control
over patent medicines or other medicines?

Dr. MorreLL: You can make this concoction you are talking about and
sell it to a drugstore. As soon as we know there is such a concoction on the
market we would certainly take an interest in its composition and so forth.
If we are not satisfied, then we can exert certain restrictions on the sale of that
product. But if you want to make that concoction and go to the department and
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ask for its registration, consideration will be given to whether or not it is proper
to register it under the Proprietary Patent Medicine Act.

Mr. HOrRNER (Jasper-Edson): May I ask you a further question in this
regard? Do you not feel that your department and your directorate would have a
better opportunity to police the drugs if all manufacturers of drugs were licensed
even as to product? In other words, anyone who makes anything for medicinal
purposes has to be licensed with your department. Is this unconstitutional?

Mr. CurraN: Mr. Chairman, this is a very complicated field and I do not
like to give an opinion on this. There are many ways in which controls can be
exercised short of absolute licensing. Normally the licensing of a manufacturer
would be a matter for provincial consideration, and I distinguish here between
the agricultural statutes which proceed under a different basis. In the case
that Mr. Horner has mentioned, it would have to comply with the Food and
Drugs Act and all the conditions of the act including suitable conditions of
manufacture and all controls which are applicable to all drugs. Therefore, it is
not quite as easy as suggested for anyone to come along and put a concoction
on the market. He is still subject to the Food and Drugs Act, and he is subject to
all of the controls of the Food and Drugs Act including prosecution and seizure
if his product violates any of the provisions of the act. Licensing by itself
would not necessarily do any more than is being done at the present time under
the elaborate control which the act provides. In case of proprietary patent
medicines, it is a voluntary matter with the manufacturer. If he wishes to sell
his product under a registration number, this is his choice. The product is
then scrutinized, and if Mr. Soucy and the food and drug authority are agree-
able that the product has therapeutic values, then registration can be given.
However, it is a voluntary matter with the manufacturer. Otherwise he can
market his product only subject to the rigid controls of the Food and Drugs
Act.

Mr. BALDWIN: I have a supplementary question on that issue. I also think
that such a person would be subject to the provision under the Criminal Code
which deals with deceptive and improper advertising, so that if claims were
made which were not correct then this person could be prosecuted under
criminal law.

Mr. CurraN: That is correct. I think it is section 3 or 7, which provides it
to be an offence if a person should advertise a product for the purpose of stim-
ulating its sale and makes claims for it that have not been subject to adequate
and proper tests. The onus is on the accused to show the adequate and proper
test to which a product has been subjected. It is also subject to the provisions
of the Food and Drugs Act. There are therefore two statutes which would
govern this situation.

Mr. VALADE: The department has some inspectors whose duties are to
check into all the distributing sources and to report to your directorate on
new drugs, patent medicines and things of that nature. Is that not so?

Mr. CurraN: That is so.

Mr. HARLEY: I have two questions; the first one I will put to Dr. Morrell.
Could he tell us the method by which heroin was taken off the market? This
is apropos to what Mr. Valade was asking.

Dr. MorreLL: I will ask Mr. Hammond.

Mr. HAMMOND: Mr. Chairman, the story behind this is that the world
health organization recommended that the use of heroin be restricted. I think
it was in 1954 or 1955, I am not sure, but from that date on we did not issue
any further permits or licences permitting the importation of supplies into
Canada. The fact is that we still have supplies in Canada and they are not
being used. With the changing events in medicine there has been a change from
heroin to other analgesics.
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Mr. HARLEY: If a hospital wishes to acquire some of this drug is it still
available?

Mr. HAMMOND: Supplies are still available. It might be difficult to get
it in an exact strength of tablet, but there are supplies available.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Before I reach the question I originally intended to ask,
I should like to direct a question to Mr. Curran. I refer to a concoction of the
kind Dr. Horner speaks about; in order for it to come within the definition
of a patent medicine, it would have to be patented, would it not?

Mr. CurraN: I do not wish to get into historical events, but originally the
definition of a proprietary or patent medicine did contemplate a question of
patent.

Mr. NICHOLSON: Yes.

Mr. CURRAN: Under the enactments of today, most of these products are
not patentable and the commissioner of patents does not issue a patent in
respect of these products. In the first place, you do not patent a product, you
patent a process, and in this sense a patent medicine would not come within
the criteria which is associated with the issuance of a patent. In other words,
there is no machinery or method for making a preparation which would be
patentable. As I say, this is an obsolete expression which we have not as yet
stopped using.

Mr. NicHoLsON: Thank you. The other question I wish to ask is a follow-up
to a question asked Dr. Morrell earlier as to whether or not there is some ad-
vantage in having a clinical evaluation carried on by an impartial body such
as a university or competent medical school. Am I right that such a recom-
mendation was mentioned by the special committee of the Royal College?

Dr. MorreLL: Yes, I think you are right, Mr. Nicholson.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Would you agree that there is some advantage in adopt-
ing such a procedure?

Dr. MorgeLL: Yes, I think there would be some advantage in that regard.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: Thank you.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, there has been reference to the serious
problems in respect of the use of prescription drugs because of the proliferation
of these drugs. These drugs would not be produced and sold if they were not
being used, and they could not be used if the doctors did not prescribe
them. Doctors will only prescribe them after they have received information
about them. This results in a fantastic amount of advertising being sent
to doctors. I wonder whether the department has given any consideration to
modifying or regulating the type and amount of advertising which drug com-
panies can use. I am told that the Canadian Medical Association Journal has
been used in regard to this problem, but I understand that no real solution
has been found.

Mr. MonNTEITH: Mr. Orlikow, if I may just interject before Dr. Morrell
answers your question, I should like to point out that there was an amend-
ment to the act last autumn which actually prohibits the distribution of samples
as advertisement without the practitioner writing or signing some sort of
request for such samples. In regard to the actual advertising material, I think
perhaps Dr. Morrell can give you an answer.

Dr. MorreLL: There is a prohibition in the act which prohibits any
person from advertising a drug in a manner that is false, misleading or
deceptive, or likely to create an erroneous impression regarding its value,
merit or safety. We have certainly done our best to apply this section
of the act in respect of advertising of drugs to the general public. We do
this daily and I know that between 30,000 and 35,000 radio and T.V.
commercials were examined last year in respect of foods as well as drugs.
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We have the prohibitory section in the act itself, being section 3, which I
think is unique in the Canadian Food and Drugs Act. It states that no person
shall advertise any food, drug, cosmetic or device to the general public as a
treatment, preventative or cure for any of the diseases, disorders or abnormal
physical states mentioned in Schedule A, and no person shall sell any food,
drug, cosmetic or device that is represented by label, or that he advertises to
the general public in that way.

Schedule A contains a lot of rather serious diseases or disorders. That
prohibits, whether the advertising is honest or dishonest, the advertising of
them because the diseases and disorders that are mentioned are of such a nature
that proper diagnosis is necessary for the public to know whether they have
such a disease, and proper supervision and treatment as well as prescribing are
necessary if one is to get any advantage from the drug that is taken. If the
advertisement can persuade people to treat a pain in their chest or stomach
with such and such a product it may be that they are treating something that
they have not got, and what they have got is serious enough that when they
get around to going to the doctor it is too late. I think that in itself is a very
favourable section of the Food and Drugs Act, and this is certainly enforced.

When you come to a discussion regarding advertising to the professions,
we have in the past been rather loath to interfere with that advertising to the
medical profession. We have been rather loath to interfere in this field because
we feel that these people have been trained and are experts and will themselves
recognize falsehoods or puffery. In other words, they can take care of this.
However, we have not entirely refrained from taking steps in the case of anti-
biotics which had serious reactions in children and some adults, and we require
the manufacturer in his promotional material to include a carefully worded
statement about these reactions.

It may be that we need to go further in regard to advertising directed to
the general public, and I might say that the Canadian medical association itself
has set up a code. I do not know whether at the moment it is actually in use,
but we have seen this code and have commented on it for the Canadian medical
association. It seems to be a reasonable code. The intent of it, of course, is that
it must meet the code as set forth before it will accept advertisements for its
journals.

Mr. OrRLIKOW: My information is that this code is not yet in effect, but
it seems to me that doctors are deluged by so much material, competent as
they may be, they just do not have time to really sort it out, and it may be
that the department should do some of this sorting for them. I do recognize
that there are difficulties involved.

The CHAIRMAN: I may point out that Doctor John O. Godden, associate
editor of the Canadian Medical Association Journal is one of the witnesses
we propose calling. He may be able to give some information in this regard.

Mr. RYNARD: Mr. Chairman, a part of my question has been answered,
but I should like to ask Doctor Morrell if it is not true that in light of the
advertising that goes out by these firms to doctors, there is a great deal of use-
ful information in respect of tests carried on in universities and other well
equipped clinics of great use to doctors in evaluating the drug being advertised?

Secondly, I should like to state that any doctor can acquaint himself with
a therapeutic index which lists all those drugs, in order to make a com-
parison of the advertisements that are received. I do not know whether there
is such a therapeutic index in existence in Canada, but there certainly is one
available in New York through which one can check these drugs, their uses,
abuses and so forth. I just wanted to bring that point out and suggest that a
great deal of useful information is contained in many of the advertisements
received as a result of clinical trials of these drugs under proper supervision.
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Mr. PATTERSON: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask one question based
on a reference in the minister’s statement which he delivered at the beginning
of this meeting regarding the discussions that are carried on between himself
and the provinces in regard to the rehabilitation of thalidomide babies. I
wonder whether he could just inform us as to the status of these discussions
at the present time?

Mr. MoONTEITH: Actually at the time we requested such discussions we
found that the records in respect of deformed children, if you wish to call
them that, in the provinces are very incomplete. There was really no record
kept in any province concerning this matter. It was suggested that we under-
take a system of reporting these cases. I realize there are difficulties involved,
and I am assuming that perhaps the doctors will be able to speak to this
subject. I realize, of course, that they are loath to give private medical in-
formation on occasions, but it was hoped that we could acquire better statistics
concerning cases of malformed children.

Now, as far as thalidomide itself is concerned, we have had reports
from British Columbia, Manitoba, Ontario, Nova Scotia, Prince Edward Island
and Newfoundland. There are 31 cases reported from the provinces that I
mentioned, six of them are mild, 12 are moderate and 13 severe. We have some
later figures which have come in: Alberta 4, all severe, Saskatchewan 6, three
severe and three mild. There has been a report from Quebec of 70 unclassified
cases. There were no cases in New Brunswick and Prince Edward Island. At the
time of the Federal-Provincial Conference in August, the government offered
to participate in 50 per cent of any projects brought forward by the provinces
for the assistance of these cases. I do not think we have any project before us as
yet but I understand there are some coming forward.

Mr. PATTERSON: I have one supplementary question: does this include all
malformed babies or just the thalidomide babies?

Mr. MonNTEITH: Is it safe to say, Dr. Cameron, that we suspect the 70 cases
from Quebec include some generally malformed babies as well as babies where
thalidomide may have been involved? We do not have any real figure.

Dr. CaMmeRrRON: The Quebec investigation is still going on. These are not
classified cases. These are deformed children in various degrees of deformity,
and the question is whether or not they are associated with thalidomide. I
understand this has not been settled. The others listed by the minister are
associated with thalidomide to the best of our knowledge.

Mr. PATTERSON: Does the assistance program you have outlined, Mr.
Monteith, include all deformed children?

Mr. MonTEITH: No, it includes only those definitely tied in with thalidomide.
Dr. Cameron, would you like to supplement that answer?

Dr. CameRrON: I was just going to remind you that at the meeting with the
provinces on August 17 two proposals were made for the department to follow
up. One proposal was the establishment of a committee to look into the best
methods of dealing with deformed children, with particular reference to thal-
idomide. That committee was established, it did its job, it made its report, and
the program is now under way to acquaint orthopedic surgeons and others in
this country with the most up to date methods of dealing with these children.
It is recommended that three centres be established for dealing with these
children.

Mr. MonTEITH: This was tabled last Friday.
The CrAIRMAN: I will get you all a copy of the report, if you wish.

Dr. CamEeRON: I do not need to go into the details, as the chairman says,
because it is in that report. Funds have been authorized to carry out that
program.
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The other recommendation was that a study be made of our methods of
obtaining precise information about birth deformities in this country. This is not
satisfactorily obtained at the present time because the deformities are of many
different kinds, and on occasion it is not possible at birth or when birth regis-
tration is made to determine whether a child is possibly deformed internally
and the degree of the deformity. If we are going to get good information, we
have to have a more elaborate system. That committee has met and that
study is going forward. We see it is absolutely essential, if we are going
to advance our knowledge of the possible deleterious effect of drugs and
other substances that surround us, that we have better knowledge of what has
actually taken place. Those two committees have met and the job is under way.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, it is past 12:15. There are three things I
would like to take up before we adjourn. I would like to have a motion that
the chart of the food and drugs directorate be printed as an appendix to this
day’s minutes of proceedings and evidence. May I have that motion?

Mr. FAIRWEATHER: I so move.

Mr. Hamasz: There should be an explanation in regulation C.01.013 on
page 77 because it is not followed by numbers up to C.01.021. In other words,
there seem to be eight regulations missing on page 77.

The CHAIRMAN: I am only talking about this chart. I do not intend to have
the Food and Drugs Act and regulations printed.

Mr. HorNER: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: The next problem is that we do not have enough copies
of the proceedings. An additional motion is required. The motion should read
that the number of printed copies of the meetings of the committee of the pro-
ceedings and evidence in English, including issue No. 1, be increased from 750
to 1,500 and that a sufficient number of copies be made available to the chair-
man of the committee for mailing purposes. These would be mailed merely to
witnesses who may be called and not for my own use I may say.

Mr. NicHOLSON: I so move.
Mr. HARLEY: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

Mr. OrLIKOW: I hope you are going to make sure that not only people who
are witnesses but people in university departments and so on who are directly
concerned will be getting this. I do not suppose we can cover everyone.

The CHAIRMAN: I might point out one thing. I am going to try to send
this list to the people we propose to call. I really do not think we can mail it
to every university and every doctor in the country. I think it would not be
proper. They can get in touch with the Queen’s Printer and get it at their own
volition.

Mr. OrLIKOW: Will that be mailed from day to day?
The CHAIRMAN: We are trying to arrange it.

The other motion is that permission be sought from the house for the
committee to meet in Montreal, Quebec on Thursday, Friday and possibly
Saturday, February 14, 15 and possibly 16, 1963, and that the clerk of the com-
mittee accompany the committee to Montreal. This is only to get permission
from the house so that we can make our trip.

Mr. ORLIKOW: I was not here at the last meeting. Is the trip for the purpose
of inspection?
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The CHAIRMAN: Yes, the Hotel Dieu hospital, clinical research division,
Ayerst, McKenna and Harrison Limited, and Charles E. Frosst and Company in
Montreal.

Mr. NicHOLSON: You were going to give consideration and advice today on
whether or not we should visit the Ciba premises.

The CHAIRMAN: I might say, with regard to this motion, that the people I
called long distance felt that two and a half days would be squeezing it to see
that, and if an additional meeting or trip was contemplated it should be done
at the time. Can we have a motion?

Mr. PATTERSON: Was that not covered at the last meeting?

The CHAIRMAN: I have to have an official motion so that I can go before
the house and ask permission to do this.

Mr. OrLIKOW: I so move.
Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

Mr. NicHOLSON: Speaking of the list of witnesses to be called, I may
say that the head of the neurological research division of the university of
British Columbia has suggested that this committee give consideration to
calling Dr. George Ling, assistant professor of the department of pharmacology.
He is not only a brilliant scientist but he has spent years in the drug industry,
both in research and in sales. I think he would be a worthwhile witness.

The CHAIRMAN: I will get this down.

The other point was about the future sittings. My own view was that
we should not sit this afternoon. We should sit on Thursday at 9.30 a.m.
to continue our discussion with the minister and the directorate officials.
Is that in accordance with the wishes of the committee?

Mr. HARLEY: Did you call other witnesses for Thursday?

The CHAIRMAN: No. Is that agreed? The other thing is that the special
committee on drugs of the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons headed by
Dr. Brien, will be available at 9.30 next Tuesday morning and I think he will
have the other two members of this committee with him. These people are
very busy men and I propose that that day we sit from 9.30 am. to 12.30
and after Orders of the Day until 5.30 so that we might try to get this report
cleaned up in that one day so that these men can go back to their universities.

Any other business? The meeting is adjourned until 9.30 Thursday
morning.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

House or CoMMONS
TUESDAY, January 29, 1963.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Howard be substituted for that of Mr.
Orlikow on the Special Committee on Food and Drugs.

Attest.

LEON-J. RAYMOND,
Clerk of the House.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, January 31, 1963.
(4)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 9.50 a.m. this day. The
Chairman, Mr. R. M. T. McDonald, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Haidasz, Harley, Howard, Horner
(Jasper-Edson), McDonald (Hamilton South), Mitchell, Nicholson, and Rynard.
(9).

In attendance: From the Department of National Health and Welfare: Dr.
G. D. W. Cameron, Deputy Minister of National Health; Mr. R. E. Curran, Legal
Adviser; Mr. Eric Preston, Chief Personnel Services; Mr. D. H. Dunsmuir, Ex-
ecutive Assistant to the Minister: from the Food and Drug Directorate: Dr. C.
A. Morrell, Director; Dr. L. I. Pugsley, Associate Director; Dr. R. A. Chap-
man, Assistant Director in Charge of Scientific Services; Dr. J. B. Murphy,
Chief Medical Officer; Mr. M. G. Allmark, Chief of the Pharmacology and Toxi-
cology Section; Mr. Paul Soucy, Chief of the Proprietary or Patent Medicines
Section; and Mr. R. C. Hammond, Chief of the Narcotic Control Division.

A quorum being present, the Chairman welcomed Mr. Howard, a new mem-
ber of the Committee.

With permission of the Committee, Dr. Morrell read a short statement
being a summary of the action taken by the Department about the drug Liefcort;
this information was asked for at a previous meeting. He was questioned thereon
and was assisted by Dr. Murphy.

Dr. Morrell was also questioned about the application of the Rules of the
Food and Drugs Act to the vitamin preparations, and about commercial adver-
tising of drugs.

At 10.45 a.m., the Committee agreed to take a short recess.

At 11 o’clock the Committee reconvened.

Mr. Hammond, Dr. Cameron and Dr. Morrell answered questions about
controlled drugs and narcotics.

Following a request made by members at a previous meeting, Mr. Curran
explained the federal-provincial responsibility with regard to licensing. He
and Dr. Morrell answered questions thereon.

Before adjournment, the Chairman announced that the members of the
Special Committee of the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons will appear
before the Committee on Tuesday next, February 5, at 9.30 a.m., and that a
meeting has been arranged for the Canadian Pharmaceutical Manufacturers
Association to appear on March 5th.

It was agreed to ask the Associations who wish to be heard to supply the
Committee with copies of their briefs beforehand, so that the Members have
a more comprehensive hearing.

At 11.30 a.m. the Committee adjourned to Tuesday, February 5, at 9.30 a.m.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

THURSDAY, January 31, 1963

The CHAIRMAN: I see a quorum. Gentlemen, I would like to welcome Mr.
Frank Howard to our committee. He is replacing Mr. Orlikow today.

At the last meeting there were some questions asked and I believe Dr.
Morrell would like to make a statement in respect of these questions. The
first question, I believe that I posed, was followed up by Dr. Horner and Dr.
Haidasz. This was with regard to Liefcort and Dr. Liefmann. I wonder if Dr.
Morrell could bring us up to date on the procedures the department took
in respect of this drug. He might give us a brief resume.

Dr. C. A. MorreLL (Chief of Food and Drug Directorate): Mr. Chairman,
the attention of the food and drug inspectors was drawn to Liefcort through
a popular article in a newspaper, in which it was indicated that a new treat-
ment for arthritis had been discovered. The food and drug inspectors im-
mediately visited Dr. Robert Liefmann and explained to him the requirements
of the Food and Drugs Act in respect of the introduction of a new drug for
clinical trials, Dr. Liefmann was advised in writing that he must comply
with the requirements of section C.01.307 of the food and drug regulations.
Dr. Liefmann agreed to do so.

Since some time is necessary to obtain the results of clinical trials in such a
case, Dr. Liefmann was allowed several weeks in which to obtain these reports
from his qualified investigators. After this period.of time had elapsed, our
inspectors returned to Dr. Liefmann to assure themselves that he was, in fact,
carrying out all the requirements of section C.01.307. On the occasion of this
second visit, it was observed that not all of the requirements had been
adhered to and once more, Dr. Liefmann was advised of what he would be
expected to do. He again promised to adhere to the provisions of the
regulations.

At this time it was also learned that Dr. Liefmann had not given us the
facts about the true nature of the product and it was necessary for us to
analyze it in our own laboratories. Although Dr. Liefmann felt that the reports
from the investigators he selected were adequate, we could not agree with
him that they would be suitable for inclusion in a new drug submission
which, of course, is the purpose of clinical trials on new drugs that are still
in the investigational phase. Our inspection of his records of distribution and
of the reports received, showed them to be quite incomplete in complying
with the requirements of section C.01.307.

Several subsequent visits at short intervals by our inspectors indicated
no improvement from our point of view and finally, a letter was written to
Dr. Liefmann demanding that no further distribution of the drug to investi-
gators be made.

Dr. Liefmann agreed to cease further distribution and informed us that
Endocrine Research Laboratories had ceased to exist. Subsequent investigations
have indicated that Dr. Liefmann is confining his activities to his own private
practice and no products labelled as Liefcort are being given to his patients.

That is the summary of action taken by the department in respect of
the drug.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions on that?
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Mr. HARLEY: I was going to ask Dr. Morrell whether the United States
food and drug directorate was involved in this. I understand these products
are being given to people from the United States and taken over the border.

Dr. MorreLL: The United States Food and Drug Administration is certainly
interested because of the fact that the Americans are importing it for use;
but I must point out that he had given no indication to the United States
Food and Drug Administration that he was putting out a drug for clinical trial
in the United States. In fact, he was not officially doing so, and from that fact
alone the importation of Liefcort into the United States would have been
in violation of the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act of the United States. So, of
course, they were interested from the administrative standpoint.

Mr. HARLEY: I understand that the drug was actually taken in by a patient
who would return to the United States. Does this mean in law that he is
not really exporting it by giving it to someone in Canada who takes it over
himself?

Dr. MoORRELL: I believe this did happen; that they came to his office in
Montreal and took a lot of the drug back. I believe this happened frequently.

Mr. Hampasz: Did I understand your last two sentences correctly; that he
may give this drug to his patients?
Dr. MoRrRReELL: In so far as the Food and Drugs Act is concerned, I think

he may. I do not know of any authority in the Food and Drugs Act to tell him
he may not.

Mr. Hamasz: Did the department analyse the constituents of the drug
Liefcort, and what were the results of the analysis?

Dr. MorreLL: I said it was analysed.
Mr. HAmAsz: By whom?

Dr. MORRELL: By our laboratory. I think Dr. Stephenson in the food and
drug laboratory found it to contain estradiol, methyltestosterone and prednisone.

Mr. HAmASZ: From the reports we have read in the newspapers, I believe
that the laboratory in New York tested the doses of these three drugs in
Liefcort and found them to be above the therapeutic dose.

Dr. MorreLL: I think I have seen this report to which you refer, and that
dose of estradiol was ten times the usual dose. It is difficult to say it is never
given by a doctor in the dose that is in Liefcort, but the dose of estradiol at
least is higher than the usual dose suggested.

Mr. Haipasz: Were these same results obtained by your laboratory?

Dr. MoRReLL: Essentially. We got somewhat more than 9 times and they
got ten times the usual dose. There was no substantial difference in the results
that we heard of eventually from the Food and Drug Administration in the
United States and our own.

Mr. HAASzZ: Is not the Food and Drug Directorate also interested in the
several levels of doses of these drugs?

Dr. MorreLL: Yes, in a way, Dr. Haidasz. This was a drug out for in-
vestigational trials. As you know, having read C. 01.307, at the moment we
do not even have the authority to demand the composition. We found this
out by our own analysis. I would say that when a drug is out for investigational
use it is a different matter from when the drug is on the market in regular
commercial or medical use. It could be that the dose of a drug in investigational
use would be higher than usual for a certain condition for which some doctor
might think it would be useful.

Mr. Hamasz: But the dose of estradiol has already been established for
therapeutic purposes; it is not a new drug. The safe levels of the hormone
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estradiol have already been established. I do not think he had an excuse in
saying that in so far as the dosage of estradiol was concerned he was only
experimenting clinically. This has already been established.

Dr. MorreLL: I did not know there was one dose and one dose only used
for estradiol.

The CHAIRMAN: Could I have one clarification. Were the researchers or
clinical investigators in your view clinical investigators in this instance or was
this merely a testimonial?

Dr. MorreLL: The reports we saw were not satisfactory. Many of them
were in the nature of testimonials.

Mr. BALDWIN: In respect to Liefcort, as I understand it, it is now on
schedule H. Am I correct in that?

Dr. MorreLL: Liefcort is not schedule H. There are two drugs on schedule
H, thalidomide and LSD.

Mr. HAamASz: Does not Dr. Morrell think that liefcort should be put on
schedule H owing to the fact that a dose of estradiol is ten times the therapeutic
dose of that hormone.

Dr. MorreLL: Liefcort is not now being distributed to anyone.

Mr. Hamasz: Neither is thalidomide nor LSD.

Dr. MorreLL: No, because they are all on schedule H and liefcort is not
being distributed because we have told Dr. Liefmann he must not do it.

Mr. Hamasz: And yet he is allowed to use it on his patients when you do
not allow thalidomide to be used on certain patients.

Dr. MorreLL: Well, we feel that a doctor should be allowed to prescribe
in general what he thinks fit because this is the practice of medicine.

Mr. Hamasz: There are some doctors who believe they should prescribe
thalidomide to some male patients suffering from insomnia.

Dr. MorreLL: Yes.

Mr. Hamasz: Why do you allow liefcort to be given at the discretion of
a doctor and not thalidomide.

Dr. MorreLL: I think thalidomide is a special case.

Mr. Hamasz: Well, I still think you are in a way, as I say, not following
your line of judgment in the principle you have set forth, seeing that in the
case of thalidomide there are certain useful effects and certain harmful effects
and yet you abandon it completely, even at the discretion of clinical researchers.

Dr. MorreLL: Well, it was banned by an act of parliament.

Mr. Hamasz: Yes. But, as I say, the minister, upon your advice, can put
liefcort on schedule H; it does not have to go to parliament. It is this schedule
H that was legislated but not the individual drugs on schedule H.

Dr. MorreLL: We have investigated the distribution of liefcort since the
order was given to Dr. Liefmann and we certainly have found no evidence
that it is going anywhere else but to perhaps his own patients, and that I do not
know for certain.

Mr. Hamasz: I think that if you have adopted the solicitude to protect
Canadian patients from thalidomide, if liefcort is a dangerous drug you should
protect all Canadian patients from liefcort.

The CHAIRMAN: For clarification—as you know, I am not a practitioner—
does the food and drug directorate investigate many drugs other than liefcort
a year and do they direct the medical profession how to use these drugs?

Dr. MorreLL: I think the introduction of section 14(a) of Bill C-3 was

the first time that the Food and Drugs Act was used either directly or indirectly
to tell physicians what they may not prescribe.
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Mr. HARLEY: Mr. Chairman, I wanted to have a clarification from Dr.
Morrell on this one matter. I think he partially has answered the question
already. If Dr. Liefmann is able to prescribe the drug, liefcort, to his own
patients I assume then he must be continuing to manufacture it himself. In
other words, he obtains the ingredients somewhere but combines them himself.

Dr. MorreLL: Yes. As you know, there are three ingredients, estradiol,
methyltestosterone and prednisone and he could give his patients the same
amount of them separately as he has combined them in this mixture.

Mr. HArRLEY: I agree.

Dr. MORRELL: He is mixing them.

Mr. HARLEY: No doubt he buys these things in a more or less raw state
from one of the other drug firms and combines them in the proportion he
sees fit.

Dr. MorreLL: Yes, and he might even double the dose of estradiol, as far
as I know, and I do not think I could prevent him from prescribing any dose
of estradiol he saw fit to prescribe.

Mr. RYynarD: Dr. Morrell, did not the status of Dr. Liefmann change? Is he
not a licensed physician now; whereas he was not when you first took action?

Dr. MorreLL: He is a licensed physician now, and, as far as I know—and
I am sure I am right—at that time he did not have a licence.

Mr. RynaARrD: Yes, I do think there is a distinction there. The number two
thing is: did he see these patients repeatedly so he could change the dosage,
because there is a difference in dosage at the start; you may give a maximum
dosage and then bring the patient down to a therapeutic level. I do not think
that has been brought out. There is a difference in dosage.

Dr. MoORRELL: Yes.
Mr. RyNARD: I wondered whether he had seen these patients.

Dr. MorreLL: We saw a few record cards and some of his patients he saw
more than once.

Mr. RynaArDp: Did he change the dosage?

Dr. MorgreLL: I did not see the cards myself; the inspectors saw the record
cards and I do not know whether or not Dr. Liefmann changed the dosage.

Mr. RYNARD: In other words, the drugs that he was combining he might
have been buying from a reputable manufacturer and he may have been
giving those drugs which every physician uses in his practice. Then I think the
question comes up, if he did keep records, did he change the dosage and treat
his patients in accordance with therapeutic law. Certainly if he is a registered
physician now there has been quite a difference in the picture because pre-
viously he was not.

Dr. MorreLL: He was a graduate in medicine, you understand.
Mr. Rynarp: But he was not licensed.

Dr. MorgreLL: No.

Mr. RyNaARrD: Is that correct?

Dr. MoRrreLL: As far as I know that is correct.

~ Mr. HorNER (Jasper-Edson): I think the main thing is that, in fact, this
is not a new drug but rather a combination of old drugs.

l?r. MoRrgeLL: Yes and I am not sure it is a brand new combination; it is
certainly a combination of well known drugs.

Mr. HowaARp: Is it true that, as in the case of liefcort, there are combina-
tions of other drugs that go into making up thalidomide and lysergic acid?
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Dr. MorreLL: No sir; these are definite chemical entities.

Mr. HowARrD: So it would not be possible for a physician to compound them;
he would then have thalidomide and that is prohibited.

Dr. MorreLL: It is not easy to manufacture them. I do not think a doctor
would manufacture them in his own office.

Mr. HowaRrD: But in any event, if he did, it is prohibited.
Dr. MoRRELL: Yes.

Mr. MitcHELL: I would like to direct a question to Dr. Morrell. The with-
drawal of liefcort, or the suggestion that the doctor withdraw it would be for
two reasons, I presume; in other words, (1) it was dangerous in respect of
the dosage and (2) it had no medical use or had no curative action with respect
to what he was using it for, and it would be for one of those two reasons that
it would be removed.

Dr. MorreLL: No; we enforce the law and our enforcement action has to
be taken on a breach of that law in some way or other. There is a section of
the regulations, C.01.307, which governs the introduction of drugs for investi-
gational uses. When we went to Dr. Liefmann’s office, talked to him and saw
his records, we found that he was not complying with some of the requirements
of this section of the regulations. We asked him to do so and told him how he
might do it. He agreed to do so. Subsequent visits indicated that he was not
doing so and because he was then violating that section we told him he must
no longer distribute the drug to anybody else for any purpose.

Mr. MitcHELL: Then, for the committee’s edification, what was he violating
insofar as that section is concerned.

Dr. MorreLL: The section requires that when he distributes his drug,
it must be labelled for investigational use only—and I think there was a period
in which he did not do that. He eventually corrected that. He was supposed
to distribute it only to qualified investigators for the clinical trials. We ques-
tioned his qualified investigators. Finally he is required to collect investigators
reports—that is detailed reports—of the investigation that these people had
carried out. When we looked at these reports they were very unsatisfactory.
They were either missing in some cases or they were far from complete in
other cases. They were virtually only testimonials rather than detailed reports
of a clinical trial. This was again pointed out to him and he said he would
take the proper action. But, he did not, and then we told him he must not any
longer distribute the drug.

Mr. MitcHELL: Then you were qualifying the active product yourself as
being dangerous.

Dr. MogrgreLL: No.

Mr. MiTcHELL: You were merely asking him to abide by the regulations
which had nothing to do with the efficacy of the product according to the three
ingredients in it.

Dr. MorreLL: No. Had a new drug submission eventually been made we
would, of course, have looked very carefully at the evidence for hazards
that might have developed. There is one thing I might go back and say; we
did not see any reports of side effects in these reports from the clinical
trials and looking at the composition of the drug, as we eventually knew it,
we would expect some, and we did not see any. But had a new drug sub-
mission been made to us we would have looked for this and we would have
also looked at the evidence he had for effectiveness. But none was ever made.

Mr. MrrcHELL: No. You have not gone that far.
Dr. MorreLL: No.
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Mr. MiTcHELL: And even if he lived up to these regulations, which you say
he did, and then the product was controlled to your satisfaction, you would
or would not have any authority, shall I say, to qualify or investigate whether
this was in use or not.

Dr. MorreLL: Well, if he makes claims for it we consider him as a manu-
facturer in this instance and not as a practicing physician. And if he made
any claims that it was of value in the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis or
arthritis we would have been very much interested and concerned with the
information he supplied in his new drug submission to support this claim.

Mr. HARLEY: Mr. Chairman, I have a few more questions to ask Dr. Mor-
rell on this matter. Is there any existing legislation through which your depart-
ment can impose a time limit on an individual in respect of the investigational
use of drugs? Is there a time within which an individual must submit a new
drug submission?

My second point arises from an assumption on my part in respect of what
you said. If Doctor Liefman came to the department and said he wanted again
to do some investigational work on a drug, provided that he followed the regu-
lations of your department, although he had perhaps just changed the dosage
slightly, could he again distribute this drug to his patient?

Dr. MorreLL: There is certainly nothing in the law which states that he
cannot.

As to the time limit, there is no time limit set down, and the time does
vary greatly from a matter of a year to many years. The time in respect of
LSD was many years.

Mr. HARLEY: Is there any time limit in respect of an interim report that a
company would have to submit to you?

Dr. MorgreLL: No, there is not.

Mr. HARLEY: Do you think it would be of assistance if there was a time
limit in the regulations in respect of a drug being investigated, requiring a
company to report every six months on its progress?

Dr. MorreLL: Such a regulation might be of assistance. We now have the
authority to look at the company’s records which the company has collected in
respect of clinical trials and investigations. At the present time we can look
at those records at any reasonable time, so that if we are suspicious of some-
thing we can see what has been going on or accomplished at any particular
time.

Mr. Howarp: Doctor Morrell, is Liefcort what one might call, as they are
generally referred to, a combination drug which contains other drugs generally
used for different purposes?

Dr. MorgeLL: Liefcort is a brand name of a mixture of drugs. It is a mix-
ture of three drugs, as far as we are aware, in some kind of medium or vehicle.
It is a combined drug. The three drugs are well known.

Mr. Howarp: Yes, but are they administered normally for different mala-
dies?

Dr. MorreLL: Yes, they are individually administered for different things.

Mr. HowARrp: Undoubtedly you have seen the series of articles which
have appeared in Macleans magazine this year with respect to the drug and
so on. One of the articles dealt with this question of combination drugs, or
the combining of drugs used for different purposes, resulting in a new thera-
peutic value. Do you now have within the food and drug directorate any facili-
ties for testing the toxicity or efficacy of these drugs?

Dr. MorreLL: The efficacy, if I might refer to it first, can really only be
obtlained by clinical trials. We have no facilities whatsoever to carry out clin-
ical trials.
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Toxicity at times can be measured up to a certain point at least by
tests on animals. We do have some facilities for testing toxicity on animals
of various species. I want to point out that there are hundreds of new drug
submissions sent to us every year. There are dozens of other materials such
as food additives, pesticides and so on, submitted to us every year for some
kind of examination or review. If we tested them all we would have to have
a very, very large staff and a large colony of animals. Therefore, we feel, and
I still think it is right, that the responsibility for testing the drug for these
hazards and value rests with the manufacturer who is going to sell it. Our re-
sponsibility is to see that the manufacturer obeys the law when he makes his
tests and puts his drug on the market.

Mr. HowaRrp: Perhaps this is hypothetical, but suppose a manufacturer
makes the required tests but the side effects or toxic effects which may result
from a newly developed drug do not show up for some period of time, such
as I gather was the case with thalidomide and other drugs which had a variety
of side effects; and if you were to come to the conclusion that the toxic effects
were extremely disastrous, what steps could you take to have the drug with-
drawn from the market? Could you put it on schedule H?

Dr. MoRrreELL: At the present time we can put such a drug on schedule H.
Mr. HowaARD: Prior to now you could not do that?
Dr. MoRreLL: No.

Mr. HowarDp: Do you have any authority to assess the efficacy of drugs
as to whether one is better for some particular ailment than another, even
though it is claimed to be?

Dr. MorreLL: We have an indirect authority that pertains to the labelling
of drugs. One cannot label or advertise a drug falsely or in a manner that is
likely to give an erroneous impression regarding its value. However, we have
no other authority in respect of efficacy. I think that the efficacy of a drug can
only be determined after very wide usage for a considerable time, I mean
on millions of patients perhaps over a period of years by a large number of
practitioners. So many drugs start out with a bang and somehow or other
peter out. It is not possible to tell within a few months or within a year
whether a drug is really going to be valuable in the long run. Then again its
efficacy is a relative thing. It has to be determined whether it is effective on
every patient to a certain degree or effective only on a few patients. This is
all very difficult and I do not think that a government department should be
the authority or the agency which says that this drug is of value and that
drug is not of value. This can only be determined by the medical profession
itself after a long usage of that drug.

Mr. HowaRD: There has been a tremendous increase, since the last few
years anyhow, in the number of drugs that come on the market. Is this true?
Do you anticipate that there will be a greater use made of schedule H in the
Food and Drugs Act as a result of this?

Dr. MoRrreLL: It is always there, Mr. Howard, if it is needed. Personally
I would think that schedule H should be used very sparingly.

Mr. HAamAsz: Mr. Chairman, I am still not completely clear why the food
and drugs directorate does not prohibit Dr. Liefmann from using liefcort on
his patients.

Dr. MorRreLL: The only answer I can give, unless someone else can think
of another answer, is that he is not violating any section of the Food and
Drugs Act and regulations. Unless we are going to get into some regulation
that tells a doctor what he can prescribe, and in fact that regulates medical
practice, I do not see how we can stop it. That is the only answer I can
give you.
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Mr. Hamasz: But you have already stated that the dose of estradiol is
ten times above the therapeutic dose.

Dr. MorreLL: No, the usual dose.
Mr. Hamasz: Is that not unsafe?

Dr. MoRreELL: Perhaps Dr. Murphy could answer that. He is a medical
doctor.

Dr. J. B. MurpHY (Chief Medical Officer, Food and Drug Directorate):
Well, Mr. Chairman, first of all I should point out that if a physician were
treating a cancer patient with estradiol, he might well have to use doses of
that drug well in excess of a recommended dose for, say, the treatment of
dysmenorrhea, or something like this. With liefcort, all Dr. Liefmann did
was to mix three drugs together. These were for the purpose of treating
primarily rheumatoid arthritis. It was an experimental mixture and Dr.
Liefmann deemed it advisable to have the drug mixtures in these particular
doses. The fact that estradiol was ten times the usual recommended dose was
known by Dr. Liefmann and in his judgment, I presume, he felt this dosage
was necessary.

Mr. Hamasz: My question was whether in the judgement of the food
and drugs directorate a dose ten times the therapeutic dose is acceptable in
the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis.

Dr. MurpHY: This is a question which could only be answered after the
patient has been treated.

Mr. Hamasz: There have been patients and there has been evidence of
serious side effects.

Dr. MurpHY: But we also have evidence, on the basis of reports we have
received both from physicians and testimonials from patients, that the drug
combination was effective.

Mr. Hamasz: For what?

Dr. MurpHY: For the treatment of their arthritis.

Mr. HAamAsz: But you have other evidence also that this drug has caused
serious side effects.

Dr. MurpHY: We have heard of cases in which the use of the drug has
caused some serious side effects to the patient.

Mr. Hamasz: You think this situation should continue?

Dr. MurpHY: I will only point out to you that many other drugs can
cause serious side effects if misused either by the patient or if they are not
given properly by the physician.

Dr. MorreLL: Mr. Chairman, the situation is not continuing in the sense
that liefcort is being used by other physicians or that it is being distributed
or manufactured in a commercial way. We are interested, under the Food and
Drugs Act, in the commercial practice not in medical practice itself. If estra-
diol, which seems to be the ingredient of liefcort that is being spoken of just
now, were given separately by a doctor in ten times the usual recommended
therapeutic dose, I do not believe we would say that that doctor could not use
estradiol in the future. It seems to me that this situation is analogous to that,
Dr. Haidasz.

Mr. HAamasz: According to regulation C.01.307 we are also involved in the
safety and dosage of drugs, and, as you said, liefcort or estradiol given in ten
times the therapeutic dose is unsafe, therefore you are involved in safety.

Dr. MorreLL: I have not said that, Dr. Haidasz. It is possible that in some
cases it would be quite safe. I have no evidence that on the whole you must
stick only to the usual recommended dose of estradiol. I would think it should
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be a doctor’s judgement or a doctor’s opinion as to what dose of estradiol
he should give to a particular patient rather than have me tell him what dose
he should give to a patient.

Mr. Hamnasz: The whole problem is this, that you have ruled that thalido-
mide in certain cases is unsafe and therefore it must be banned, and yet liefcort
is unsafe in certain cases and is not banned, it is not put on schedule H.

Dr. MogrreLL: Liefcort in a sense is banned in that it is not commercially
available. It is not now available for clinical trial; it is available only to Dr.
Liefmann in his own practice. He buys the ingredients, he mixes them up—
in what proportion at the moment I do not know—but there are many doctors
in Canada and what they are giving to their patients I do not really know
and I suppose it is not my business.

Mr. HARLEY: I have a question which does not deal with liefcort.

The CHAIRMAN: Any other questions on liefcort?

Mr. RYNARD: Dr. Morrell, I wanted to clarify this point. Is not this situa-
tion altogether different? Is Dr. Liefmann not now under disciplinary action
of the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of the province of Quebec
so that if he is doing anything wrong they will look after it?

Dr. MorreLL: There is such a thing as malpractice.

Mr. Rynarp: Therefore, this does not enter into the picture at all?

The second point is that therapeutic doses differ according to the condition
the doctor is treating. There is no therapeutic level dose because it depends on
the condition you treat.

Mr. BaLpwiN: To go back to the point made by Dr. Haidasz, section
C.01.307 applies to manufacturing and selling, but then, the response to Dr.
Rynard indicates that this is in a different category, this is not a case of selling,
to which C.01.307 applies.

Dr. MorreLL: That was the point I tried to make, sir.
Mr. HARLEY: Is everyone ready to leave the question of liefcort?
Mr. Howarp: I have an indirect question.

Mr. HARLEY: I wonder if you could give us some idea of whether the rules
of the food and drug directorate actually apply, and if so, how they apply to
different vitamin preparations which are on the market in very profuse num-
bers? I am thinking particularly of the drugs which have come on the market
in very large quantities under very strong tactics, such as “nutro-bio” and
that type of thing.

Dr. MoRRELL: You mean what can we do about this?

Mr. HaRLEY: Yes. How do the rules of the food and drug directorate apply
to food additives and diet additives?

Dr. MORRELL: There is a section in the food and drug regulations which
deals with vitamins only—as you probably know—and this applies. There is
a list of vitamins given which people may represent as being vitamins and
the amounts which are permitted in various preparations are listed; if you are
going to sell a preparation as a vitamin supplement, you may not have in the
vitamin preparation more than a given amount of each vitamin, and actually
that is all listed.

If you are going to sell a vitamin preparation for therapeutic use, in the
treatment of a deficiency disease, you must go higher in your vitamin content
in the preparation, and it is lawful, but you must label it for therapeutic use
only. You do not advertise it to the general public at all. This is also listed. In
other words, there is a level beyond which the product—if it says that it con-
tains vitamins exceeding that level—must be labelled for therapeutic use only
and not advertised to the general public.
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The claims which can be made for each of the vitamins are specified in
these regulations.

Now, in respect of enforcement measures we pick up samples; usually they
are picked up as samples from products on the market, and we analyze them
for their vitamin content. We also look at the label to see if it meets the require-
ments of the regulations, and we would look at the claims made, whether they
be in advertising or on the label, to see that they do not exceed those laid
down in the regulations.

These requirements apply to all vitamin products sold in Canada whether
by unusual means—such as you mentioned—or sold in pharmacies. We try to
apply them across the board. Does that answer your question?

Mr. MiTcHELL: The date is necessary on certain vitamins, is that correct?

Dr. MorreLL: We have an indirect date on the vitamins, in as much as
the batch number indicates the date of manufacture according to a code which
gives our inspector, the pharmacist and the manufacturer, of course, an
indication of the date on which it was made. Therefore those who are selling
and dealing with it—and our own people—are able to tell when the product
has been on the market for perhaps too long.

Mr. HARLEY: I would like to return and ask a question in reference to what
we were talking about a few minutes ago. It was my understanding that the
drug I mentioned, and similar ones like it, would actually come within the
ruling of the food and drug directorate because they were labelled as something
else, and not vitamins.

Dr. MorreLL: That certainly came within the purview of the Food and
Drugs Act, and of the authority of the regulations; and we did go further, as a
matter of fact. I think the members of the firm promoting it came to see us
about their advertising and we corrected it and brought it down to what we
thought was in line with the requirements of the regulations. The product itself
was analyzed and the packages in which they came were examined, and in so
far as we were able to ascertain, it was sold in a legal manner. We of course
were not able to be present at the door when the salesman was there, so we do
not know exactly what he said. But all printed advertising was within the
requirements of our law.

Mr. HowarD: Sometime in the later part of 1960 the directorate submitted
or prepared some draft regulations with respect to drugs which were to have
been submitted to the minister after they had been circulated to the drug
manufacturing industry; and there was some discussion in the house about it
around that time. Could you tell me what happened to those proposed
regulations?

Dr. MoRRELL: Yes.

Mr. HowaRrDp: Perhaps this matter was dealt with when I was unable to be
present, at a previous meeting.

Dr. MorreLL: What you refer to as regulations are trade information
letters; they were not regulations at all. There was an information letter con-
taining a proposed draft of regulations which we thought would be useful and
perhaps necessary in controlling the manufacturing controls in relation to the
production of pharmaceuticals and other drugs. The proposals were sent out to
the industry and we had comments from various parts of the industry, and we
had meetings with them. We remodified them to some extent and we sent them
around again, and we ourselves had a lot of discussion among ourselves and so
time passed. Last fall I believe they were submitted to the minister and there
has been some discussion about them since. I think they are before him now.
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Mr. HOwARD: One of the things which intrigued me about it is this: I could
not get them in the house by motion; so we had to try another way to get them.
It says, as proposed in C.01.014—is that the way you designate these clauses?

Dr. MoRRELL: Yes.
Mr. HowaARrD: It reads as follows:

C.01.014. No manufacturer shall sell a drug unless the drug has been
manufactured and tested under conditions that are suitable to ensure
that the drug will not be unsafe for use.

C.01.014. For the purposes of C.01.014 the conditions that are suit-
able to ensure that a drug will not be unsafe for use shall include:

(i) a system of control that will permit a complete and rapid recall of
any lot or batch of a drug from the market when such is found to be
unsatisfactory or dangerous.

(j) the maintenance, in a form, manner and content satisfactory to the
director, of records showing:

(vi) the measures taken to ensure the recall from the market of unsatis-
factory or dangerous lots or batches of drugs.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Morrell did say yesterday in answer to questions from
Dr. Horner and Dr. Orlikow that there was a certain section which was in-
tended to tighten up this situation. I thought I should draw that to your at-
tention, Mr. Howard.

Mr. HowARrp: Yes, certainly. Perhaps this is something you would not
care to answer, Dr. Morrell?

Dr. MorreLL: No, no.

Mr. HowARD: Are these provisions, as attached to your trade information
letter of December 28, in the proposed regulations which you submitted to the
minister last fall?

Dr. MorreLL: They are still there, yes.

Mr. Barpwin: I would like to deal with another subject which is some-
what related to what we have been discussing so far. Under the Broad-
casting Act I understand that indirectly certain responsibility comes on your
department in that before there can be commercial advertising permitted of
drugs the advertisement must be approved by your department. Dealing with
the procedure in that regard—and in answering you might give us some idea
of what is done—do you feel, in the procedure followed now, that the material
submitted to you by the various advertisers is satisfactory so that you are
capable of delivering the opinion you are called upon to give?

Dr. MoRReELL: Mr. Chairman, as Mr. Baldwin has said, in the regulations
under the Broadcasting Act there is this requirement that all commercials for
T.V. and radio must be submitted to the Department of National Health and
Welfare for approval—and the word “approve” is used—before they are put
on the air. There is an arrangement now under which T.V. and radio com-
mercials are sent to us routinely. I think there are 30 to 35,000 per year which
come to us. These are examined by a group of persons who are technically
qualified in the inspection services of the headquarters to see that they comply
with the requirements of the Food and Drugs Act in respect of advertising. In
fact, the section reads to the effect that no person shall advertise any product—

Mr. BALpwin: Sections 5 and 9.

Dr. MorreLL: You are right. There is a good deal of work necessary on
many of them. A blue pencil is used quite frequently. When we are finished with
it the script is returned to the broadcasting officer who deals with these and
then I think of course they are looked at from their own point of view, too. I
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think, however, that the arrangements are quite satisfactory in so far as we
are concerned now, and I think we have been able to deal with them quite
well. That is my opinion, at least.

Mr. BALpwiN: You feel that you have an adequate staff to deal with the
quantum of 35,000 in a year?

Dr. MogrgreLL: Well, it is pretty fast work.

Mr. NicuoLsoN: I would like to follow up what Mr. Baldwin has had
to say about this matter. How closely does your branch work with your op-
posite numbers in the United States? I am thinking now of the larger cities like
Montreal, Toronto, Hamilton, Windsor and Vancouver, all of which have
American T.V. and radio stations coming in to them. Speaking for myself, so far
as Vancouver is concerned, we get far more advertising from United States
stations telling us the wonderful properties of these drugs that come on the
market. You must have a working arrangement with the United States on that.
Do they have similar provisions? How do you work on this as between the
respective branches of government?

Dr. MorgreLL: We have not been able to exercise any authority over
advertising that originates in the United States. I might add that this is also
true of printed advertising which comes in here from the United States. The
food and drug administration in Washington does not have authority over
advertising in the sense that the food and drug directorate in Canada has.
In the United States the control of advertising is exercised by the federal trade
commission in Washington. I have visited the federal trade commission and
have spoken with them about the problems which arise because of the
differences in our laws; but they have not been able to suggest anything which
would be particularly helpful to us. So, I am afraid we are faced with this
difference between the advertising originating in the two countries. Frankly,
I do not know what to do about it.

Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): I would like to question Dr. Morrell in
respect of quality control. First of all, do you think this is a government
responsibility or a responsibility of the manufacturer.

Dr. MorgreLL: I think quality control is a responsibility of the manu-
facturer firstly, positively and very strongly. Then, secondly, I think the
government has a part to play in seeing that the manufacturer does have
and does exercise adequate and suitable quality control over his products.

Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): I notice in the annual report you say that
your recommendations in respect of the new regulations will help you do this;
that is, help you to have some supervision over quality control.

Dr. MorreLL: Yes, indeed; I am sure they will.

Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): Which you do not have now?

Dr. MorreLL: Not in nearly the same degree; they are not spelled out
in the detail they are spelled out in the proposed regulations.

Mr. HORNER (Jasper-Edson): I am thinking primarily of the important
antibiotics going out under their generic names. Will this have an effect on
these?

Dr. MorgreLL: I think it will, yes.

Mr. HARLEY: First of all, has the medical profession, as a profession and
not as an individual, ever asked the food and drug directorate to remove a
drug from the market?

Dr. MorgreLL: No.

Mr. HARLEY: Mr. Chairman, I wonder whether this committee woul.d
consider a five minute recess to give Dr. Morrell a short respite from his
questioning?
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The CHAIRMAN: Is the committee in agreement with that request?
Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: We will resume at five minutes to 11 sharp.

—Recess.

—Upon resuming:
The CHAIRMAN: Order, gentlemen. We will commence with Dr. Harley.

Mr. HARLEY: Mr. Chairman, I was wondering if perhaps we could switch
the questioning and ask, through you, some questions of Mr. Hammond. I am
thinking particularly of the control of drugs and I would like to ask him if he
can tell us whether there is much of a problem these days in connection with
the control of narcotic and controlled drugs.

Mr. R. C. HaAmmonD (Chief of the Narcotic Control Division, Department
of National Health and Welfare): Mr. Chairman, we do have problems in
respect of both narcotics and controlled drugs. In so far as narcotics are con-
cerned, the material that is being distributed in Canada for medical use causes
few if any problems in the illicit traffic because of our system of control and
the co-operation which is afforded to the department by those entrusted with
supplies.

A somewhat different situation exists in relation to the controlled drugs
(the barbiturates and the amphetamines); in other words the depressants and
stimulants. The material causing the problem up until recently was supplies
that were being diverted from that intended for medical use.

To recapitulate, the narcotic material causing problems in Canada is heroin
which is being smuggled into the country, and in so far as the depressants and
stimulants are concerned, the material which has been subject to abuse is
medical supplies being diverted.

Subsequent to September, 1961, when the legislation in reference to con-
trolled drugs was brought into force, a licensing system was provided over
distributors and manufacturers and in addition controls in the form of records
at the retail pharmacy level. Since that time there has been a marked improve-
ment in so far as controlled drugs are concerned.

Mr. HARLEY: This question would probably be a better one to pose to the
R.C.M.P. However, have you any idea of the amount of illegal trafficking going
on in connection with these two groups and, as we have been talking about
the safety of drugs, have you any idea of the number of fatalities recorded in
Canada as a result of the illegal use of these materials?

Mr. HammMonDd: I cannot comment on that. We are endeavouring to main-
tain statistics in connection with fatalities. We know in the city of Vancouver
for example, within the last three years, there has been quite a noticeable
increase in the number of fatalities attributed to the use of barbiturates. I
would not even venture to give a figure at the moment, but I think in 1962 the
total number of fatalities which occurred from January 1 to August 1 of that
year almost equalled or exceeded the number of fatalities in the previous year.

Mr. HARLEY: Would that figure cover fatalities from overdosage, or would
it include suicides?

Mr. HammonDp: This figure I believe would be separate from the figure
in respect of suicidal deaths.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: Following up that line of thought, is it not a fact that
many of these fatalities result because people in a confused state of mind mix

different things without knowing the right proportions? Have not the verdicts
of coroners inquiries disclosed that fact in Vancouver?
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Mr. HaAMmMoND: Many of these fatalities result from the combination of
alcohol and barbiturates.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: I understand these individuals take goof balls with aleohol
in an attempt to get the biggest kick without there being any medical knowl-
edge involved.

I am not sure, Mr. Chairman, whether the question I intend to ask should
be directed to Doctor Morrell or not. Has anyone on your staff, Doctor Morrell,
made a study of the work that has been going on in Britain where they have
these clinics supplying narcotics to drug addicts? I have read a great deal
about this program in the newspapers but I am not sure of the accuracy of
these reports. Has anyone made a study of whether or not that program is in
fact curtailing the use of narcotics or preventing associated crimes?

The CHAIRMAN: I might just say that I do not intend in any way to restrict
this committee but my view is that we are straying a little far from the aspect
of safety in regard to drugs in Canada. I may be wrong in that view and 1
hope members of this committee will give me their views in this respect.

I think Doctor Cameron will have something to say in regard to that
question.

Dr. CAMERON: Mr. Chairman, we are endeavouring to follow the work
being done in Britain and we certainly are in consultation with medical groups
and others in this country with a view to finding improved methods of dealing
with confirmed addicts. I do not think the information we have from Britain
so far makes it possible to draw any hard or fast conclusions about the success
of the work which they are doing there.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: I do not wish to pursue this matter to any great length,
but a great deal of attention has been directed toward this program through
newspapers and other news media. I am not sure of the accuracy of the press
and other reports in this regard. Is it possible, or do you know, Doctor Cameron,
for an addict in Britain to get a fix, as they refer to it, quite readily?

Dr. CAMERON: Are you referring to Canada?

Mr. NicHoLson: No, I directed my question in respect of England. Are
the newspaper articles which indicate this availability of drugs to addicts
exaggerated?

Dr. Cameron: I think the position there is that if a duly qualified medical
person wishes to undertake the treatment of an addict it is perfectly legitimate
for him to do so. Here and there you will find medical people who take this type
of treatment upon themselves.

If such a doctor in the course of that treatment decides that it is reasonable
to give an addict a dose of a drug it is perfectly legitimate.

The aspect of this which is contrary to the law here, and I imagine it is
also in Britain, although I cannot say for certain, is the provision of drugs for
the purpose of peddling them. If the drug is being given for treatment and
honestly administered by a physician in the belief that he is doing this properly,
then it is not against the law and we would not interfere with such a practice
at all.

It is perfectly evident to us all, and I might even say glaringly evident, that
we need much better methods of dealing with drug addiction than we have at
the present time. We do not feel that we are really coping with this problem
at all. We are trying to suppress the illegal trafficking in drugs, but the progress
in the direction of a reasonable and effective treatment of a drug addict is very
very slow and discouraging.

Mr. HARLEY: Mr. Chairman, I should like to direct my line of questioning
to that aspect of our scope of the terms of reference. I am referring to controlled
drugs and the associated enforcement in this regard.
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In view of the results attained by the inclusion of amphetamines and
phenobarbs in the controlled schedule, do you feel that it would be of assistance
to you if this new family of tranquilizers was also included in the controlled
schedules? If your answer is in the affirmative, then I should like to ask how
much additional work and change such a step would mean to your department
in terms of staff and money.

Dr. MorreLL: Mr. Chairman, we are of course watching the sale of drugs
other than those which are on schedule G. The purpose of schedule G, as I
understand it, is to stamp out the illegal trafficking on the streets by pedlars
to those individuals wishing to buy them in dance halls, or wherever they do
buy them. As far as I know that was the sole purpose of the amendment to the
act and the regulations involving the enforcement of schedule G. If we find
that there is evidence that trafficking in drugs other than those under schedule
G, I would feel we will have to make a recommendation to the minister that
such other drugs be added to the schedule.

I cannot say at this time whether this illegal sale is imminent or very likely
in the near future, but it certainly is a possibility which we have in mind.

Secondly, and perhaps Mr. Hammond could say a word or two in this
regard, having had years of experience in the enforcement of the Narcotic
Control Act, the addition of the extra work required by the enforcement of
schedule G has been very considerable. The reason for this is that of the much
wider use. Mr. Hammond can correct me if I am wrong, but I feel there are
more dealers and more products in this regard and therefore a great deal more
work in connection with the enforcement of schedule G than perhaps there is
in connection with the Narcotic Control Act. Any addition to schedule G of a
group of drugs such as all of the tranquilizers would of necessity require a very
considerable increase in the work of enforcement. I do not think such an addi-
tion would be justified unless there is evidence of significant trafficking in these
particular drugs. This is the attitude we are now adopting.

Have I answered your question?

Mr. HARLEY: I wanted to ask Mr. Hammond whether he would like to com-
ment on the increase in the work of enforcement if such drugs were included in
schedule G.

Mr. HAvvonDp: Mr. Chairman, as Doctor Morrell pointed out, controlled
drugs are used much more extensively, as Doctor Harley will realize, than
narcotics, and the increase in the work involved to establish control is con-
siderable.

We have roughly 160 odd firms licensed to deal in narcotics and there are
approximately 320 odd firms licensed to deal in controlled drugs. While I
think that controls in themselves are essential, other factors are equally im-
portant in preventing abuse of these drugs.

The CHAIRMAN: At the last meeting several members of the committee
asked me if I would get Mr. Curran to explain the federal-provincial responsi-
bility with regard to licensing in a full way, if possible. I wonder whether it
is the wish of the committee now that Mr. Curran make his statement on
that.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: How long is it likely to take, Mr. Chairman?

Mr. R. E. CurraN (Legal Adwvisor, Food .and Drugs Directorate): Mr.
Chairman, it should not take too long. It depends on the number of questions
that will be asked.

The CHAIRMAN: Was there some reason, Mr. Nicholson? Is there another
meeting you wish to attend?

Mr. NicHoLsON: Yes. The Liberal contingent here has a problem.
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The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Curran, if you could make your statement between
now and 11.30, we will then reserve the questions until the next meeting. Would
that be all right?

Mr. NicHoLsON: Yes.

Mr. CurraN: Mr. Chairman, firstly, I am glad to have the opportunity to
clarify a position which is not always clear even to lawyers, and also I hope
I will be forgiven if I do not make this thing as clear as I might to people who
are not lawyers.

The Food and Drugs Act, as I mentioned at the last meeting, is on the
basis of criminal law, and under the authority of criminal law there is no power
to license a trade or profession generally. Now, I wish to distinguish between
licensing particular products which are manufactured by the trade and licensing
a trade to carry on generally its operations. If you look at sections 12 and
13 of the act you will see this distinction.

The CHAIRMAN: What page?

Mr. CurraN: Page 3 of the act. You will see in sections 12 and 13 that
no person shall sell any drug described in schedules C, D or E unless the
minister has, in prescribed form and manner, indicated that the premises
in which the drug is manufactured and the process and conditions of manufacture
therein are suitable to ensure that the drug will not be unsafe for use. Follow-
ing along from that, if you look at pages 91 and 100 of the regulations you
will see that regulations have been made to implement the provisions of the
two sections to which I referred. The first of them is on page 91 and it deals
with what are called “schedule C drugs”. On page 100 you will see reference
to drugs which are on schedule D. The licensing authority here is very
strictly limited to the manufacturing process and the conditions of manufacture
to ensure that the drug is not unsafe for use. These are the criteria which form
the basis of licensing in both of these areas.

Some reference has been made to licensing of controlled drugs. This is
pursuant to a special part of the act which is part III and which was added
a year ago. I am not going to get into the question of narcotics which in-
volves separate consideration but nevertheless is much on the same basis. So
we have under the authority of sections 12 and 13 and under the authority of
part III provided for a form of licensing in relation to particular substances.
This must be distinguished from the licensing of a trade in general to carry on its
business. Here the licence is limited to particular products, and obviously
based upon some reason to subject a drug to this form of licence. In the case
of the drugs in schedules C, D, and E, I think the reason is given in referring
to the conditions of manufacture being suitable to ensure that the drug will
not be unsafe for use. Even though a licence is given, it does not mean that
the drug does not otherwise have to conform to the requirements of the law.
Broadly, every drug which is sold in this country, either manufactured here
or brnucht in, must conform.to two provisions of the act amongst others: one
is that the drug must meet the standard under which it is manufactured and the
standard must be identified on the label, and the other is that the drug may not
be deceptively advertised or sold. These are the general overriding conditions
which apply to all drugs including those for which a licence is granted.

Now, it has been suggested from time to time that we should have a
provision that no person shall manufacture any drug unless he has a licence.
Such a provision in my view would certainly be at least arguable as to va-
lidity, subject of course to any different views held by the lawyers on this
committee as to whether they feel this would be a valid exercise of parlia-
mentary authority. I think, under the basis of the Food and Drugs Act, it would
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be a very dubious provision and easily could be challenged in court and im-
peril the very broad and good administration which has been developed. So we
have been very careful to limit our licensing authority to those drugs which pose
special problems either in health fields or perhaps in the broad field of fraud—
but particularly in the health field—where the conditions of manufacture have
unusual features and where safety of a drug as related to manufacture may
not be readily detremined even on analyses.

There are many drugs which on analysis of the end product might not
reflect certain essential conditions of manufacture, and so it is necessary,
in relation to those drugs, to ensure that the conditions of manufacture are
adequate for the purpose, and to ensure that the drug will not be unsafe for use.

That, broadly, is the basis on which we have developed a form of licensing.
You will see that even in the act itself we are very careful in sections 12 and
13 not to use the word “licensing”. We talk about the prescribed form and man-
ner of the ministers indication of approval which in effect is a form of licensing.
We have used the word “licence” in controlled drugs, which involves separate
considerations.

Now, at the provincial level it would be appropriate, I think, under the
authority which is contained in section 92 of the British North America Act,
for a province under the property and civil rights provision to insist on the
form of licensing of any manufacturer carrying on business in the province. I
am not prepared to say to what extent the provinces have got into the form
of licensing but certainly it would be of very dubious validity if the federal
government, under the authority of the Food and Drugs Act purported to
license every manufacturer for a drug. So I want to make it abundantly clear
that we are distinguishing between the general authority to license a trade
or business, which in my view is beyond the competence of parliament, and
the authority to license a manufacturer in relation to a particular product which
can be potentially harmful.

Mr. MiTcHELL: May I ask Mr. Curran a question? Speaking provincially,
would this be under the provincial department of health or under the pharmacy
act or something of that nature?

Mr. CURRAN: It could be under any form of legislation the province wished
to devise. It could be under the factories act which would require a form of
licensing, or under the pharmacy law or under the department of health of
a province. Where a province puts the authority is its own decision.

As I said a moment ago, I am not prepared to say to what extent the prov-
inces have entered into this field. I think the field is one in which the provinces
have not intervened even though they might do so. There are many factors
which would need to be considered by a provincial authority in licensing a
manufacturer and particularly one which was carrying on business in many
parts of Canada as well as perhaps internationally. This poses a separate area
and the area I have broadly attempted to explain is the licensing of certain
products under the Food and Drugs Act. I might add that the schedules in
question can be amended by adding anything to the schedules or deleting any-
thing therefrom in the interest of health.

I have attempted to explain the rather unusual situation which arises
when we talk about licensing a product in one context, while in the other con-
text we say that we have no authority to license a trade. If I have made clear
to you the subtle distinction between licensing a product and licensing the
manufacturer at large, I am glad. If not, I would be happy to try again. Does
what I have said generally cover the situation?

The CHAIRMAN: I think so. We have only four minutes, gentlemen.
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Mr. NicHOLSON: While Mr. Curran is here, there are a couple of points
concerning the work of this committee which disturb me. First of all, I refer
to section 13 of the Food and Drugs Act which reads as follows:

13. No person shall sell any drug described in schedule E unless
the minister has, in prescribed form and manner, indicated that the
batch from which the drug was taken is not unsafe for use.

Does that mean that every new batch of a drug has to be approved by the
minister—or by his representative?

Mr. CurraN: Yes. Broadly speaking, with respect to the drugs in schedule
E, a sample test is made from each batch.

Mr. NicHOLSON: You mean from every individual batch?

Mr. CurraN: Every batch, that is right. Before the drug is released for
sale, there must be clearance given by Dr. Morrell that the drug has met the
particular condition.

The CHAIRMAN: That only applies to the drugs mentioned in schedule E?

Mr. NicHoLsoN: I know, but schedule E is very comprehensive. Just how
are the tests made? Is it done by means of a spot check?

Dr. MoRrrReLL: You will notice the drugs on schedule E are mentioned at
page 10 of the act.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: There are 6 classifications given in schedule E, and I
notice ‘“sensitivity disecs and tablets”.

Dr. MoRrRELL: Sensitivity discs and tablets are those paper discs or tablets
which contain various antibiotics and which are used to test the sensitivity of
bacteria or effectiveness of certain antibiotics against certain bacteria which
may be affecting the patient. Each one of these is tested prior to distribution.
This involves, of course, quite a lot of work as you will imagine.

Mr. NicHoLsoN: It is not done by means of spot tests? There is an actual
detailed test made of each batch?

Dr. MorreLL: That is right.

Mr. HARLEY: There would not be very much volume in the actual amount
in the case of most of these drugs?

Dr. MorreLL: When I started to work in the laboratory, these were quite
important. But with the introduction of antibiotics such as penicillin, this has
made them of rather minor therapeutic use.

Mr. NicHOLSON: My next question is prompted by section 14 subsection 2
“distribution of samples prohibited”.
14. (1) No person shall distribute or cause to be distributed any
drug as a sample.
(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to the distribution of samples of
drugs by mail or otherwise to physicians, dentists or veterinary surgeons
or to the distribution of drugs, other than those mentioned in schedule F,
to registered pharmacists for individual redistribution to adults only or to
a distributor in compliance with individual requests.

The distribution of samples is done on a large scale to doctors, and sub-
section 2 of section F is so wide, that I wonder why samples are not distributed
to pediatricians, for instance, and why they are limited for distribution to
adults only?

Dr. MorreLL: That has been amended, as you know by bill C-3, and it
is no longer the law.

Mr. CURRAN: There is a new section 14 in the amending act.
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Mr. NicHOLSON: Perhaps I had better get it and study it before I pursue
this.

Mr. HARLEY: I believe it includes all branches and pediatricians. Certainly
pediatricians do get samples.

The CBHAIRMAN: It is just about 11.30, and before we adjourn, may I say
that on Tuesday next, February 5, at 9.30, a special committee of the Royal
College of Physicians and Surgeons will be here. I hope you will have a chance
to look at their brief over the weekend. I also hope that this presentation and
the questioning of the people who are going to be here might be finished on
Tuesday, for certain reasons. However, if it cannot be done, then that is that.
But we are thinking of sitting from 9.30 to 12.30, and after the orders of
the day until 5.30 in the hope that in those 5 hours we might be able to get
this matter cleaned up.

Mr. MiTcHELL: We will be coming back to the witnesses who are here
now?

The CHAIRMAN: Oh yes, the witnesses of the department are available.

Mr. MiTcHELL: You are only suggesting that the out-of-towners be given
a hearing next week.

The CHAIRMAN: I think it is only fair when any witnesses are brought
here from away that we give them a specific time so that they will not be here
a week or two. The men coming are very busy, so if we could confine our
examination to the witnesses, that would relieve two or three members until
next week and we could get it done expeditiously.

In respect of our proposed trip to Montreal the first of the week I shall
be asking the house for permission. We shall start on February 14, a Thursday.
The train leaves the Ottawa station at 7.55 in the morning. I hope there is
no objection to that.

Mr. BALpwiN: Would it be possible for Dr. Cameron or Dr. Morrell to
make available to us the 1961 amendments, and the amendments for this
year to supplement the consolidated statutes that we now have?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, Dr. Morrell will do that.

The other point I wish to bring up is that the Canadian Pharmaceutical
Manufacturers Association will be here on March 5th and we have arranged
for it. They are bringing a complete presentation and also specialists in the
fields of pharmacology and chemistry, that is, from the industries they are
involved with, and they are preparing papers for us in each of the sections
involved in the presentation. So we will have a very comprehensive hearing.
The reason we have left it until March 5 is to give them ample time to have
all these things prepared, for it will be done in great detail.

Mr. HARLEY: Could they provide the material to us before they arrive?

The CHAIRMAN: You mean if we could get their brief beforehand; but there
will be a general brief from their association, and each of the specialists in the
fields will give a supplementary paper which I think he would want to give
personally rather than to have a written statement given to the committee
beforehand. But so far as the over-all production of the brief is concerned,
there will be ample time for it.

Mr. NicHOLsoN: I think we should get it as far in advance as possible.

The CHAIRMAN: I shall ask them to give it to us in advance. I hope there
will be sufficient length of time.

Mr. NicHOLSON: I hope you will suggest a few days.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps we had better discuss this right now. It is my view
that if a witness is coming to this committee he should be required to send us a
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written statement beforehand. But in general practice if we bring a pharma-
cologist, let us say, from the University of British Columbia, to examine him
on something specific, I do not think he should be required to file with this
committee the evidence of what he is going to say. However, I think that with
associations, at least, they should give us an outline of what they are going to
do specifically, but I do not think they could be forced by this committee to give
a complete documentation of what specialists they intend to bring in are going
to deal with. Is that in accordance with the wishes of the committee? Is there
any further business?

Mr. HARLEY: Is it the intention of the committee to sit this afternoon to try
to finish our questioning of Dr. Morrell?

The CHAIRMAN: It is my view that there will be other business on our
mind that we might all want to think about this afternoon, and that we might
wait until 9:30 on Tuesday morning next.




MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TuEsDAY, February 5, 1963.
(5)

The Special Committee on Food and Drugs met at 10.10 a.m. this day,
the Chairman Mr. R. M. T. McDonald, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Fairweather, Haidasz, Harley, Marcoux,
McDonald (Hamilton South), Mitchell, Nicholson, Rynard, and Valade—(10).

In attendance: Dr. F. S. Brien, Professor of Medicine, and Head of the
Department, University of Western Ontario, London, Ontario; Dr. E. A. Sellers,
Professor of Pharmacology, Head of the Department, University of Toronto,
Toronto, Ontario; Dr. R. Roger Dufresne, Director, Department of Medicine,
University of Montreal, Montreal, Quebec; from the Department of National
Health and Welfare: Dr. G. D. W. Cameron, Deputy Minister of National Health;
Mr. R. E. Curran, Legal Adviser; Mr. Eric Preston, Director of Personnel;
Mr. B. Hazelton, Personnel Administrator for Food and Drugs; Mr. D. H. Duns-
muir, Executive Assistant to the Minister; Dr. C. A. Morrell, Director of the
Food and Drug Directorate.

The Chairman observed the presence of a quorum. He introduced the
three members of the Special Committee on New Drugs appointed by The
Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada at the request of the
Minister of National Health and Welfare, namely: Dr. Brien, Dr. Sellers and
Dr. Dufresne, and invited the Chairman of the said committee to make a state-
ment based on the contents of their report.

Dr. Brien emphasized the working conditions of the Food and Drug Direc-
torate and the need for a method to deal with drugs that have been used
for many years. He also dealt with the recommendation pertaining to the
establishment of a “Working” standing drug committee.

The Chairman thanked him and the other two members of the Special
Committee on New Drugs for the work they have done during seven months
to prepare this Report.

Dr. Brien, assisted by Dr. Dufresne, Dr. Sellers and Dr. Morrell answered
questions, more particularly Need for Expansion of the Food and Drug Directo-
rate, and Clinical Trials in Canada.

At 12.15 p.m. the Committee adjourned until 3.30 p.m.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(6)

The Committee reconvened at 4.15 p.m. and continued its examination of
the members of the Special Committee on New Drugs appointed by The Royal
College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Enns, Fairweather, Haidasz, Harley,
Marcoux, McDonald (Hamilton South), Mitchell, Nicholson, Rynard, Valade—
{11).
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In attendance: Same as at morning sitting.

At the request of the Chairman, the Committee agreed to hear Dr. Sellers
first.

Dr. Sellers made a short statement on Sections 4 and 5 of the Report dealing
with Concepts of New Drug Control and Present Procedures of the Department
with respect to New Drugs. Dr. Cameron added an explanation about training
of departmental staff. Dr. Sellers, Dr. Brien and Dr. Dufresne were jointly
questioned. Dr. Sellers was permitted to leave.

On Section 10, Consideration of the Division of the Food and Drug Directo-
rate into Food and Drug Sections, Dr. Brien, Dr. Morrell and Dr. Dufresne
answered questions asked by Members.

Sections 12 and 13, Summary of Recommendations and Conclusion were
considered.

Before concluding the discussions, the Chairman thanked Dr. Brien, Dr.
Sellers and Dr. Dufresne for appearing before the Committee and for the
information they had given. He expressed his regret that Committee proceedings
had appeared to be rushed and were delayed in starting. These circumstances,
however, were beyond the control of the Committee.

On motion of Mr. Mitchell, seconded by Mr. Rynard,

Resolved,—That the Report of the Special Committee on New Drugs
appointed by The Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada at the
request of the Minister of National Health and Welfare be printed as an
appendix to the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of today’s sitting.
(See appendix “A”).

At 5.50 p.m. the Committee adjourned until Thursday, February 7, at
9.30 a.m.

Gabrielle Savard,
Clerk of the Committee.




EVIDENCE

TuESDAY, February 5, 1963.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. Before we get to today’s
proceedings I would like to check just one thing with the committee. The clerk
of the committee sent around a note about a proposed trip to Montreal next
week. I wonder if those who are going would inform her before tonight so that
we can make definite arrangements.

We have with us today the special committee of the Royal College of
Physicians and Surgeons pertaining to the new drug situation. Dr. F. S. Brien,
professor of medicine and head of the department of the University of Western
Ontario and chairman of the special committee of the Royal College is on my
right. Dr. Roger Dufresne, director of the department of medicine, University of
Montreal, is on the right of Dr. Brien, and Dr. E. A. Sellers, professor of
pharmacology, head of the department of the University of Toronto is on Dr.
Dufresne’s right.

It was thought that the chairman of this committee would make a state-
ment, and then this committee could ask questions on the general statement,
but, for continuity, it was thought that in the context of the proceedings of the
Royal College we should keep to specific questions so that we would have
continuity. If that is in accordance with the views of the committee I think
we will now call on Dr. Brien to make his initial statement.

Dr. F. S. BriEN (Professor of Medicine and head of the department, Uni-
versity of Western Ontario and chairman of the special committee):

Mr. Chairman, I presume that you are all quite familiar with the contents
of this report. There are just a couple of areas that I would like to emphasize.
In the first place, it is perfectly obvious to us as a committee that the food and
drug directorate is working under conditions that, to say the least, are
infinitely more difficult than it can cope with with its present staff. Therefore,
we have pointed this out and we have recommended to the minister that steps
be taken to increase the membership of the directorate particularly in the
higher echelons. As you already know, considerably more than 50 per cent
of the time and energy of many of the directorate is expended on food and
food additives as contrasted with drugs, and we have given various reasons for
the need for increased staff.

The second point I would like to make is that as we have proceeded through
the study which actually has encompassed about seven months, it has become
quite obvious to us that there is a need for a consideration not only of our
methods for dealing with drugs that may properly be termed new within the
framework of the act but also with respect to any old ones, ones that have been
used for many years. This, in particular I think, is important with respect to,
firstly, children, and secondly, pregnant women. The hazards and the effects
of drug dosage that have been hitherto unsuspected have become increasingly
apparent over the last few years especially. This was one of the reasons why the
other recommendation which we consider to be most important was, further
setting up, either from the presently existent Canadian drug advisory com-
mittee or from other sources, or partly from it and partly from other sources,
what we chose to call a standing drug committee. You will notice that we
put “working” before the capitalized words ‘“standing drug committee”. I am
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perfectly sure, and I think I have the concurrence of my colleagues here to my
right, when I say that if this committee is going to be any good it will require
the same kind of effort that the three of us have put into this report and all
that has gone before it.

I am sure that some sort of a committee such as that can grapple with
problems not only as they arise but also with the ones we have dug out in
this list of appendices which totals 48—and I have another one which I
received last week, which I will submit as a latecomer and which I think you
will find very interesting. In it, and particularly in appendix 48, are brought
together the subjects that we as a group felt required the most pressing or the
most urgent study. We felt that this committee should be a continuing one
and that it should not be a static group. We did not specify the number but we
felt it should be a relatively small one in which most, but not necessarily all, of
the members should be physicians, and that they should be appointed with
overlapping periods of service. We used the term “short duration” and by that
we mean either two or three years, although again we did not specify that.

Now, I think that those two matters to which I have alluded are the most
important of all. We have made certain recommendations—I think five in all—
for what we regarded as not general or drastic changes in the regulations as
they presently exist, and we felt that no committee, constituted as we were,
could properly undertake any general revision of the regulations even just
relating to new drugs. We did make one recommendation with respect to bill
C-3, dealing with the total proscription of L.S.D. and thalidomide in which we
suggested that perhaps L.S.D. could be loosened up a little bit but with all
the controls you want on it, and that thalidomide might be released to the ex-
perimental and laboratory field but not to the clinical field. As you all know,
there is a mechanism whereby any drug that is proscribed may be obtained
legally in this country, and all it requires is to get the assent of the cabinet.
I gather that this could be a difficult feat on most occasions, but in fact there
is such a mechanism. That is all, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: I am sure you would like me to say, on behalf of the com-
mittee, that we are indebted to these three men and to the Royal College of
Physicians and Surgeons for the work they have done in the seven months they
took to make up this report. I think we will throw the meeting open to
questions generally and then we will try to speak specifically, starting with se-
tion 4 in the index, which is the concepts of new drug control, so that we can
have some continuity. Can we have a general question on the chairman’s state-
ment?

Mr. BaLpwin: I wonder what you had in mind, Dr. Brien. Do you feel we
could use the existing machinery provided by the amendment we made to the
act last year to deal with the two drugs you have mentioned. Do you feel that
the existing machinery, as we provided it by year’s amendment or by this
parliament’s amendment, is now capable of effecting the purposes you have in
mind?

Dr. Brien: I take it that you know that the only information I have is what
I either heard on the news or read in the paper and that was to the effect that
thalidomide would be released for animal usage and L.S.D. for either animal
usage or for certain qualified investigators or clinics. Am I correct in that?

Mr. BALDWIN: Dr. Morrell might probably have the answer.

Dr. C. A. MorreLL (Chief, Food and Drug Directorate, Department of
National Health and Welfare): So far regulations have been passed exempting
L.S.D. from the total prohibition and providing restrictions on its distribution
to institutions approved by the minister for use in those institutions by qualified
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investigators under certain restrictions. Thalidomide has not yet been dealt with
in any way.

Dr. BrIEN: So far as I am concerned, and I am speaking personally now,
in so far as L.S.D. is concerned I would consider that this is adequate. As
you might well suspect I have been bombarded by people who were interested
in L.S.D. either from the standpoint of the treatment of acute alcoholism
or, in some instances, the broader area of mental illness. I would be quite
satisfied with its release under the conditions that Dr. Morrell has set forth.
I would suggest, in reply to Dr. Rynard, that it can be a very useful tool in
the investigation of either congenital defects on the one hand or perhaps in
the inhibition of cancerous growths on the other, certainly in the laboratory
field. Again, speaking personally at this time, I am not sure that I would go
further than that, and there are very sound reasons for this which I am
sure are known to all of you.

If we obtain good experimental evidence that it is useful in the animal
field, then I think there might be occasions where it would be justifiable to
release it under control. When one works in a hospital where they count the
medicines three times a day, as they do in the one where I work, and in all hos-
pitals in respect of controlled drugs, it is the wastage that bothers me. I am not
concerned about somebody that wastes or gets away with a single pill. You
cannot get away with a lot of pills. However, when you are dealing with
thalidomide one pill is too many. This is one of the reasons why right now I
would restrict it myself to the animal field unless you could convince the
governor in council that a certain amount should be released to an individual
to do a particular piece of work. If I were that individual, I am afraid I
would keep it in my pocket and deal it out pill by pill. That is the only way I
could account for my own conscience.

Mr. RyNARD: Dr. Brien has answered about four-fifths of my questions.
Do I take it that there is the occasional one across Canada—and I think all
of us have had letters from somebody—who feels that thalidomide is very
useful in his case and that it has helped him more than anything else he
has had? I had a letter from a lady, who incidentally was not a patient of
mine, who had migraine. She now has her migraine back and cannot get
thalidomide. I am wondering whether there is some way in which these
persons could get this drug? I am wondering whether it might be the feeling
of this committee that it could be done in such a way that it would not
affect the dangers of it getting out of hand, but could be used, for instance,
by such a person in a small dosage for a certain number of days.

Dr. BrieN: This is very interesting. There is no doubt, in dealing with
older persons, that thalidomide is an excellent hypnotic. I am sure that many
of you have heard objections expressed in respect of its withdrawal. I do
not know whether this is true, but I have been told that it has now been
released for use in mental hospitals in Great Britain; whether this is so or
not, I do not know. I am not worried about that, but I am worried about
the persons working in the mental hospitals and the danger that some of
this drug might leak out.

The thing that bothers me is the number of persons who are pill changers.
I know four very prominent ladies who go to four different doctors and they
exchange pills. This is the thing that makes you fearful in dealing with an
individual such as your patient. If we could be sure that no one else but
this patient would get it, then it would not worry me in the slightest.

Mr. HARLEY: Dr. Brien, you mentioned the setting up of an action
committee of the advisory committee on drugs.

Dr. BrieN: Yes.

29484-3—7



92 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Mr. HARLEY: And you mentioned that it became obvious to you that there
should be some method of reviewing not only the new drugs coming on the
market, but also the old ones. I am wondering whether, in your thinking,
you would go a little further and say how you think this could be done at
the present time.

Dr. BrieN: Would you tell me what kind of practice you are in?

Mr. HARLEY: General practice.

Dr. BrieN: One area which is very, very interested in this, as you can
perhaps imagine from my remarks, is the Canadian pediatric society. They
looked into this with great care. They actually submitted some most useful
comments, particularly in the dosage field and other aspects which relate to
children. The Canadian drug advisory committee, which I think has 14 mem-
bers, meets relatively infrequently, one or more times a year. You cannot take
this group. This is something which requires the kind of work that we have
done and it needs somebody to sit down and go through all the things that
worry the pediatricians in an effort to straighten them out. Sometimes these
children need many more times the dosage proportionately than adults do
and sometimes infinitely less. There are effects that nobody dreamed about at
the time I was a student. There must be a long-term study with regard to
whether a drug might have some effect in producing cancer, or leukemia, or
perhaps affect pregnant ladies, and so on. The pediatricians are, of course,
very interested in that too, because they get the products of the delivery to
deal with.

I think there are grounds for looking at the whole drug structure, particu-
larly as it relates to pediatrics. There are a whole lot of drugs that need to be
looked at. For instance, there is the whole spectrum in respect of the effect on
the womb, the kidney, and things like that.

Mr. MitcHELL: Dr. Brien, I am not one of these physicians, but I am a
practising pharmacist. In respect of your suggestion concerning the standing
drug committee, do you feel that the drug advisory board as now set up is not
doing its duty? There are a number of these things and sometimes I feel there
are too many committees. I happen to know that the drug advisory board is
meeting today. Is that correct, Dr. Morrell? Do you feel they are not doing
their duty? I do not feel—and I am probably thinking of the directorate when
I say this—that another standing committee can add anything more than the
drug advisory board that is sitting now.

Dr. BriEN: I can tell you exactly what I think about this without the
slightest hesitation. This is a committee which I believe is composed of 14 mem-
bers—and you can look this up because it is set out by order in council. It has
the power to appoint subcommittees; that is quite true. What we are asking
is the appointment of a working committee—whether it be a subcommittee of
that one or something else, I could not be in the least worried about that. It
would need three, four or five, preferably an uneven number of members,
who would get down and really slug at it. A committee that meets once, twice
or even five times a year is not even going to scratch the surface of what we
envisage needs to be and should be done. That is putting it in a nutshell. I
am not for a minute being critical of the drug advisory committee. It has
not been consulted nor has it acted in the fashion in which we envisage here.
I think probably that would be a fair statement, Dr. Morrell.

Dr. MorreLL: Mr. Chairman, I do not think it was set up with anything
like this in mind at all.

Dr. Brien: No. As a committee of the whole it is too big; I am sure of that.
Also, if you were to go ahead and endeavour to get three, four or five people
out of it, or two or three out of it and a couple from somewhere else, and
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try to work at this, I think you would have a difficult chore. It was because
we realized this that we made such an ambiguous motion.

Mr. MrTcHELL: Could the answer to my question be that this advisory
board might meet more frequently?

Dr. R. R. DUFRESNE, B.A.M.D., F.R.C.P. (Canada), (Member, Royal College
of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada): No.

Dr. BRIEN: We have a member of it here, Dr. Dufresne.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Dufresne, would you like to elaborate on this?

Dr. DUFRESNE: I would like to repeat what Dr. Morrell said a minute
ago. This advisory committee was not set up to carry out the type of task
we are hoping to get from this standing working committee. As the task of
this prospective committee is envisaged, we look upon it as a working group,
as we have stressed and underlined the word, and this could not be accomplished
by a committee which has the mere task of meeting once or twice a year.

Mr. MitcHELL: If this committee was flexible enough to handle the
action you want the standing committee to handle, and met more often, would
this be satisfactory?

Dr. BrIEN: What would you call flexible enough?

Mr. MiTcHELL: So that it would cover exactly what you are asking for
here, which you say they are not doing for the simple reason that they
have not had the opportunity or that they do not meet often enough.

Dr. BrRIEN: They have not been asked to do it.
Mr. MiTcHELL: That is why I use the word “flexible”.

Dr. Brien: In that case the word “flexible” would be enough.
In this country it is difficult to get people to meet often enough; this
is a problem.

Mr. MiTcHELL: I realize that, but I also realize that the setting up of
too many committees does not always achieve what you want.

Dr. BrIEN: I beg ycur pardon?

Mr. MitcHELL: The setting up of more committees than you need does
not always accomplish what one actually started out to do. I am not speaking
of this particular committee, but rather many, many committees.

Dr. BrieN: I agree.

Mr. MitcHELL: If they were asked, they could be given the flexibility
to do it.

Dr. Brien: Yes, and they would also ask for the proper means to do it.
These would have to be busy people—and I do not mean that the advisory
committee is not composed of busy people, it is—and if you have busy
people you have to get them together and find a way of fostering this
kind of meeting. What we envisage would require, I would say, not weekly
but semi-monthly meetings for a long time in order to get the job done.

Mr. RynArD: I would like to ask Dr. Brien if the thought behind this—
and this certainly has been my feeling—is that the material that would go
before this committee would come from the universities, the medical schools
and from research work—but primarily from medical schools—and pharma-
ceutical departments of the schools and universities across Canada. I am
wondering whether that is true—and I surmise it is—and do you feel that
the people who are dealing with drugs in the universities and hospitals across
Canada, particularly at the university centres, should be the ones appointed?
I wonder whether that might meet a number of the objections to this organiza-
tion which Mr. Mitchell was mentioning?
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Dr. BrIEN: There is a tremendous overlap of work in committees of
this sort of which you are probably well aware. Here we have the professor
of medicine from the university of Montreal on the drug advisory committee
right now; there are other university people on it, of course; there are other
persons from the university who are not medical persons or who at least
are from departments other than clinical medicine, and persons who are
completely outside the university. It is a good over-all committee. It is quite
true that most of the information that is contained in that last appendix is
from universities in the sense that it comes chiefly from faculties of medicine,
faculties of pharmacy—there are 20 submissions from those two alone—and
from veterinary medicine; some very cogent material has come from veterinary
medicine. The dentists were less interested in it, although this is not exclusive
at all; they are interested in mouth hygiene, of course.

Then the professional societies are greatly interested in this and they
include men who are both in universities and out. One of the very important
submissions came from the pharmacological society of Canada, which includes
one of our members here; it also includes some of the spectators here this
morning. It represents chiefly teaching, industry and investigation of one sort
or another. So, this is not completely a university affair. The information
we have collected has come from a wide variety of sources which we deliberately
tapped. We tapped everything we could think of which we thought would be
helpful. A committee to deal with these matters should not necessarily be purely
a university committee or from a group of universities. It is very apt to have a
fair number of people on it because they are the kind of folks whom you can
lure into doing this sort of work. This committee here is a classic example of
that. They are the only kind of people—I am not just making it exclusive of
all the other areas—who have the time and the energy to devote to it. You
cannot take someone who works by himself and put him at something that
takes all the time we have spent on this for the simple reason that whatever
he is supposed to be doing suffers, as indeed it has so far as we are concerned.

Mr. RYNARD: Is there not a danger that this new committee might get into
the same position of—I would not say chaos—lack of frequency of meeting
that you have mentioned in respect of the other drug advisory board that is
now meeting?

Dr. BrieN: I am not sure. Dr. Morrell just said a few moments ago that it
was not set up to do particularly the sort of job we figured this committee could
do. It is quite true it has the power, as it is constituted, to set up subcommittees.
We have just looked at the wording here. We deliberately tried to be diplomatic
and, in fact, I discussed this both with Dr. Morrell and Mr. Monteith on several
occasions before this was written because it is a very unusual recommendation
to make.

We did not say that the committee was no good or anything of that sort,
and that it should be replaced by another. We did not mean that either. The
committee as it is now constituted and as it now operates is not doing this.
If you could get out of it the people who would do what we want, then that
would be fine. The thing we were anxious to do was to get this done, and if
it could be done within the framework of the C.D.A.C., fine; and if it could
take part of it, fine. But nobody on it would do it. I think the important thing
is that if you set up this committee the people should agree to work on it and
know exactly what they are getting into, and they are willing to do this. It
is a real chore, let me tell you that. My wife is threatening to make an appoint-
ment to see me.

Mr. NICHOLSON: Mr. Chairman, I would like to discuss with Dr. Brien the
angle pursued by Dr. Rynard earlier with regard to thalidomide itself.
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Dr. BriEN: Yes.

Mr. NicHOLSON: The doctor said very definitely, or I gathered the impres-
sion, that he thought that thalidomide was in the right place now, on the
prohibited list, and is not even being released for use in laboratories. That
leads me to ask this question: in the work of your committee, or in your medical
research generally, have there been adverse side effects of thalidomide other
than the one we associate with deformed babies, which leads you to that
conclusion?

Dr. BrieN: I can answer this again quite straight forwardly at least from
such knowledge that I have. I said that I thought that thalidomide should be
released to the laboratories, but not beyond because I am sure it is a useful
tool, and has a place; and that if there was a suggestion that it might have
a further useful place, we might subsequently take further action.

Now, the thing which led Dr. Kelsey to put a damper on thalidomide
was not the problems that have rocked this country at all. It was, as far as.I
am aware, the fact that some paralytic phenomena were observed in people
who had taken substantial doses over a period of three to six months, or
something of that order. But they were adults; a